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CORPORATE MILESTONE
EXRERR

2016

September
9A

Mr. Ko Po Ming and Mr. Chang Tat Joel were
appointed as the CEO and the COO of the Group
respectively and a new growth strategy was
established.
SEREEMBERLEDNBZEAREET
HRE N EERE  REE2MBEBER -

Mr oz

Introduction of Mr. Hui Wing Mau as the Group’s
strategic investor.
SINAME D ERT LK TEERABIRIZEES -

2016

November
11H

WA
BRI £ B AT

M Bl Gt gL

MASOM FINANCIAL HOLDIN

The Group completed the acquisition of Reproductive
Healthcare Group Limited, a leading private assisted
reproductive service provider in Hong Kong.

AN 52 [ 72 Ak U B S 4B o O LA B B AR A AR 7 it
NEREBEEARAR -
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CORPORATE MILESTONE
o SV ES T

2016

128

The Group completed the acquisition of 42.87%
interest in Pangenia Inc (formerly known as DiagCor
Technology Limited), a leading molecular diagnostics
company in Hong Kong.
REBTHRINBEAELN D FLE AR DAY
BMEBRAG(AIE: EXERREERAA) 2
42.87% #E 2

R & M

MASON GROUP

52

2017

March
3A

December

The Group completed the acquisition of Aiyingdao
Zhuhai Business Chain Limited, the franchisor of a
leading franchise in mother-infant-children products
retail business in Southern China.

AEETERBEFHEEEERLNSEEERT
EEBETEERRIMEEENBEHBR AT -

§ PANGENIA

A step ahead for healthcare

2017

July
7H

Change of company name from “Mason Financial
Holdings Limited” to “Mason Group Holdings Limited”.
AAEEHIREEEERAFRI EARIKREE
ERBRAFR] .

o Ol
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CORPORATE MILESTONE
EXRERR

2017

September
9A

The Group completed the acquisition of Blend
and Pack Pty. Ltd., a major infant formula
manufacturer in Australia.
REB TR RN EE R 2 7B 7 I &iE S
Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd. °

-+« - BLENDZPACK

The Group completed the acquisition of Raiffeisen
Privatbank Liechtenstein AG, a private bank in RAI Fi'?éSAElv]NK

Liechtenstein . P
AEBTHRBEBALZNIZTHLEENLARIT T _

(ah i 211
X A

L ILCLIoLCL1]
Raiffeisen Privatbank Liechtenstein AG e
May
5A°

(A

I-I The Group completed the acquisition of Harris Fraser

—_ Har‘r‘ls Fr‘aser‘ Group, which is engaged in the provision of wealth
YA == i

" % ?ﬁ % management Services.

AEETKEEREMEEERBENEHNEER -
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CORPORATE MILESTONE
ot V3T

2018

The Group completed the merger of

Reproductive Healthcare Group Limited and The
Wwomen'’s Clinic Group Limited and established Asia’s
leading IVF medical group.
RNEBTKNEEZEBEEEFR AR EThe Women's
Clinic Group Limited #)& £ » I X 37 58 )N <8 5¢ HY & B)
EERESE -

Q=

WeDOC'tOT"

June
6 A

Introduction of We Doctor Holdings Limited as a
strategic investor in the Group'’s IVF medical platform.
SIANEERERATMEARNEEHPEHEEETS
BB IR EE -

2018

October

—_—

FTAIEE 3 AR EEERAS
NWS NWS HOLDINGS LIMITED

104

Introduction of NWS Holdings Limited (659.HK) as a
strategic investor of Mason Healthcare Group Limited.
SINFEIEEBBRAFGIHNERKREREE
BRAFIHEEERESE -

2018

December

Completed an investment in Genea Limited, one
of the world's leading fertility groups.
TEREERIRELEDAEERGSEE 2 — 8
Genea Limited

12R
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
RIERKE

IFAPC Outstanding Listed
Company Award 2018
BERESTAHE -
FTRRIFEARSE 2018

-

R R L
2018 EmnE
O i Bt s ten
e c—

L MASIN EAOLP MOLDWGS LIMITED
3 AREEANENECE

Shock Code 1273

2018 Listed Companies
Distinguished Awards
2018 £ LT AT

Metro Awards for Banking &
Finance Corporations 2018 -
Best MA Financing Award

- R1T N & REPR TS R 3£ 282018
Teas - SEfmmELE

Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Excellence
Awards 2018

BB RNAIEREMEE2018

Mirror Post — The 7
Outstanding Corporate
Social Responsibility

e

1R R ARER
AERNR R Award
. N
= HEEER

Hong Kong Star
Brand 2018 —
Enterprise Award
EBERmE 2018
- (e
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER|E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Mason Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to our
shareholders the consolidated results and prospects of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Year”).

EXPANSION ON A GLOBAL SCALE

2018 was a banner year for the Group. We have achieved a
turnaround in our performance during the Year, made possible by
our continuing efforts devoted to the healthcare as well as the
financial business segments. The implementation of our two-pronged
development strategy of “Health + Wealth” and the enrichment of
our business portfolio have reaped gratifying rewards. The expansion
of our geographical presence beyond Asia has in turn ushered in a
new era in our development. We are en route to cementing our
position as the leading global “Health and Wealth Solutions Partner”.

Having laid the groundwork to capitalize on the immense opportunities
in the Greater Bay Area, we set our sights on extending our reach in
the Asia-Pacific region. Our endeavors to expand on a global scale
have seen an extension of our footprint in Europe and Australia in
2018. At the same time, we have strengthened our foothold in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, and introduced strategic partners, We
Doctor Holdings Limited and NWS Holdings Limited to our healthcare
platform.

AANERREREEZRARQFA(AARDE
Fe((EEE ) ARRMAZBARALENE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFERE

The establishment of our healthcare ecosystem has progressed in
leaps and bounds during the Year. With a focus on the growth
potential of and booming demand for the reproductive sciences, we
consolidated the in vitro fertilization (“IVF") market in Hong Kong in
July 2018, through the merger of our subsidiary, Reproductive
Healthcare Group Limited, with the newly acquired The HK Women's
Clinic Group Limited to form the Reproductive Healthcare Group in
July 2018. It brought together two renowned pioneering practitioners
in the field to create a platform that wields influence across Asia. In
addition, we invested in Genea Limited (“Genea”), a global leading
fertility group offering a comprehensive range of assisted
reproductive services and innovative technologies in assisted
reproduction. Valuable synergy is expected to be generated from
Reproductive Healthcare Group and Genea to the Group's healthcare
division, bringing us closer to realizing our vision of creating an Asian
hub for the best and most advanced IVF services to meet the high
demand for assisted reproductive services in the region.

Concurrently, our financial services platform has likewise evolved,
specifically with the acquisition of Raiffeisen Privatbank Liechtenstein
AG ("RPL"), a European private bank and Harris Fraser Group Limited,
Harris Fraser (Hong Kong) Limited and Halena Co. Ltd. ("HFG
Group”), an Asia-based wealth management company during the
Year. The integration of RPL and HFG Group into the Group has
helped to reshape our financial services platform and the shift of
business emphasis to wealth management is particularly apt at this
juncture when the global economy is cloaked in uncertainty due to
rising trade protectionism and geopolitical tensions.

Our healthy performance and visible turnaround during the Year
have given proof to our strategic acumen: the Group's revenue
surged by 20.91% to approximately HK$3,507 million and profit
climbed to approximately HK$176 million, and | am delighted to
report that most business segments have recorded positive gains.

As indicated in my last report in our Interim Results, the Group is on
course to scale up its total asset under management (“AUM")
through acquisitions and organic growth to US$30 billion by 2022,
and | would like to state with satisfaction that we have successfully
accrued a total AUM of US$1.1 billion during the Year.

FORGING AHEAD WITH CONVICTION AND
CAUTION

While we forge ahead with conviction towards fulfilling the vision of
growing into a premier global provider of healthcare and financial
solutions, we will exercise caution in view of the uncertainties in the
global trade landscape.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER|E

As such, for the Group's financial services business, we will reinforce
our commitment to serving our customers in the preservation and
management of wealth, and, on the other hand, to the management
of risks, drawing on our extensive experience in this area to refrain
from high risk endeavors. Furthermore and will deploy additional
resources to the development of our wealth and asset management
business and will continue to explore investment opportunities in the
related sector in the Asia Pacific to strengthen our presence in the
region and elevate our capabilities. Despite growing anxiety over the
global capital markets, we are confident in our progress and
business acumen, and believe that the Group will be able to
withstand the predicted economic downturn.

For the Group's healthcare business, we will continue our efforts in
exploiting the growth potential of the Greater Bay Area, in addition to
seizing opportunities from the closer economic ties between
countries along the “21st century Silk Road” as a result of China’s
“Belt and Road initiative”. Our work in consolidating the reproductive
healthcare supply chain under the Group will serve as a solid
foundation on which we can build a strong future in expanding our
competencies into different facets of health services. We have taken
a step forward by investing in a health check center providing
medical examination and physical check-ups in Hong Kong. We stand
ready for the expansion of our healthcare platform through organic
growth and strategic investments, particularly in Asia.

The encouraging results the Group achieved in 2018 was a testament
to the merit of the development direction we have followed.
Harnessing the synergistic benefits of our complementary healthcare
and financial platforms, we will advance forward along the path
charted by our overarching “Health + Wealth” strategy and strive to
deliver greater value to our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my full gratitude to all
our clients, business partners, and shareholders for their loyalty and
firm belief in the Group, and to our employees whose devotion and
hard work has enriched this journey towards great achievement and
fulfillment.

KO Po Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER R DT

OVERVIEW

The Group is a health and wealth solutions service conglomerate. It
principally provides comprehensive financial services in Hong Kong,
including dealing in securities, commodities broking, provision of
securities margin financing, provision of investment and corporate
finance advisory services, investment in securities trading, money
lending and investment holding. The Group also pursues an
“investment business model” by making direct investments in the
healthcare sector.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s turnover was
approximately HK$4,074.27 million (2017: HK$3,721.73 million),
representing a slight increase of 9.47% from 2017. The operating
income was approximately HK$3,506.99 million (2017: HK$2,900.44
million), representing a 20.91% increase from 2017. The Group’s net
profit for the Year was approximately HK$176.01 million (2017:
HK$26.47 million), representing a 564.94% rise over the previous
year, the increase over the previous year was mainly due to (i) an
increase in profit generated from the operating business, including
the provision of margin financing, loan financing services, securities
and futures brokerage services and related services and the
distribution and franchising of mother-infant-child products; (ii) the
two new streams of profit generated from HFG Group and RPL during
the Year; and (iii) the gain on deemed disposal of interests in
Reproductive Healthcare Group Limited ("RHG") and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “"RHG Group”).

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$90.18 million in 2018, compared to a loss
attributable to equity holder of the Group of approximately HK$53.16
million in 2017. As a result, basic and diluted earnings per share
reached HK0.20 cent (2017: loss of HK0.13 cent).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWR DT

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group achieved a financial turnaround in 2018, delivering
positive performances in most business segments and achieving
steady growth in its healthcare and financial services platforms.

Financial Services Business

Global business sentiment was dampened during the Year by the
escalated trade friction between the US and China. Given the anxiety
on the global economic landscape, the Group has taken a more
prudent approach in risk management to mitigate market
uncertainty.

The Group's financial services business segment comprises asset
management, wealth management, private banking, financing
services, trading of securities investments, financial brokerage and
related services.

In financial services, the Group’s performance was boosted by the
acquisition of RPL, a European private bank, and HFG Group, an Asia-
based wealth management group company. These two acquisitions
have enabled the Group to build a global financial platform and
enhance the Group’s global presence in the wealth management
and private banking. The combination of organic growth, acquisitions
and investments during the Year resulted in the substantial
expansion of the Group's geographical footprint to Europe and Asia
Pacific. All these efforts significantly strengthen the Group's
distribution channels and service capabilities, allowing it to provide
more comprehensive wealth solutions to its clients and create a
foundation on which further development can thrive.

The total turnover and operating income contributed by this business
segment amounted to approximately HK$901.39 million and
HK$334.12 million, respectively, during the Year (2017: HK$1,033.77
million and HK$212.48 million, respectively), accounting for
approximately 22.12% and 9.53% of the Group's total turnover and
operating income, respectively. The total loss contributed by this
segment amounted to approximately HK$48.42 million during the
Year (2017: loss of HK$6.81 million) due to the trading of securities
investments recorded a loss of approximately HK$58.78 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER R DT

Wealth and Asset Management

The Group strengthened its wealth and asset management
operations with the newly acquired Liechtenstein-based private
bank, RPL, in March 2018 and the Hong Kong-headquartered wealth
management company, HFG Group, in May 2018. With the integration
of RPL and HFG Group, our wealth and asset management business
generated a total operating income of approximately HK$169.74
million and total profit of approximately HK$19.63 million to the
Group during the Year. The management expect our prudent risk
management and client targeting strategies will pave the way for
good returns in the coming years.

The acquisition of RPL and HFG Group marked significant milestones
in the Group's endeavors in establishing a wealth management
platform with global asset allocation capability and in reconfiguring
the Group’s financial services platform with a business focus in
wealth and asset management. The integration of RPL has added
impetus to the growth of the Group’s wealth and asset management
operations and is expected to generate synergies by offering
European private banking solutions to the Group'’s clients in Asia and
facilitating cross-selling across the globe. The addition of HFG Group
to the Group's financial services platform has taken the Group’s
development beyond Hong Kong and enhanced the Group's service
offerings in investment and financial advisory services. New growth
plans are in the pipeline for both RPL and HFG Group, including the
broadening of HFG Group’s network in Asia, as well as widening of
both HFG Group and RPL's product and service range to offer better
financial solutions to clients.

Following the introduction of the Group'’s first multi-strategy fund,
targeting financial institutions and professional investors in early
2018, an additional Hong Kong equities fund was launched during
the Year as part of the implementation of the Group's strategy to
increase AUM. There are also plans to introduce more funds that can
generate consistent and long term returns for wealth and asset
management and institutional clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWR DT

Investment Banking Services — securities and futures
brokerage and related services, securities margin
financing, leveraged and acquisition financing,
corporate finance services and related services

The Hong Kong stock market experienced high volatility in 2018.
After reaching a record high in January 2018, the Hang Seng Index
(“HSI") corrected and hit a 17-month low in October 2018. During the
Year, the HSI and the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (“HSCEI")
dropped 13.6% and 13.5% respectively, which was the largest drop
in the past 7 years against a backdrop of trade tensions between the
US and Mainland China. A slowing China economy coupled with a
weakening Renminbi (“RMB") further raised uncertainties about the
outlook for corporate earnings.

In brokerage business, the Group continued to empower its business
with technologies by upgrading the trading and supporting system
and strengthened internal and external cooperation. In response to
market volatility and global economic and policy uncertainties
triggered by head wind in the trade environment since the second
half of 2018, the Group has put extra efforts in and placed more
emphasis on risk management and has refrained from high risk
business endeavors and investments to minimize exposure to
adverse conditions.

Due to unsatisfactory performance of the secondary market, many
initial public offering (“IPQ") applicants have delayed their IPO plans.
Despite the poor market and rigorous regulatory environment, the
Group's corporate finance department has successfully obtained an
IPO sponsor license and built a professional investment banking
team. Our corporate finance department mandated several pre-IPO
and financial advisory projects and completed the first equity capital
market deal in the end of 2018.

The Group's securities and futures brokerage business, securities
margin financing, corporate finance advisory services, and other
related financial services generated an operating income of
approximately HK$83.29 million (2017: HK$78.96 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 5.48% and
loss of approximately HK$15.34 million (2017: HK$16.39 million).
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Financing Services (mortgage and loans business)
During the Year, the Group's financing services business, including
leveraged and acquisition finance activities and mortgage loan
securitization business in Hong Kong continued to expand,
contributing a total operating income of approximately HK$130.68
million (2017: HK$119.08 million), which showed an increase of
approximately 9.74%, while profit of the business segment was
approximately HK$6.07 million (2017: HK$5.54 million).

The Group launched an asset-backed fixed income product as a part
of the mortgage loan securitization business. The product was
successfully distributed to institutional clients in Northeast Asia. The
total size of the Group's loan portfolio of mortgage and loan
business, including the term loans granted by RPL, amounted to
approximately HK$1,509.60 million in 2018 (2017: HK$1,490.97
million). The Group maintains sufficient collateral and guarantees and
pays close attention to the credit qualifications of the borrowers.

Trading of Securities Investments

The listed securities held by the Group are mainly listed on the Hong
Kong and overseas stock market. In view of the turbulence in the
capital markets that was reflected by the HSI, suffering a 15% decline
over 2018, the Group has divested the some of its stock portfolio to
redirect its resources to more robust and risk-averse activities in the
financial division and to reduce exposure to market volatility.
Affected by the downward pressure on stock prices, the Group’s
trading of investments recorded a loss of approximately HK$58.78
million (2017: profit of HK$4.05 million). This was mainly due to the
increase in fair value losses of the Group's trading securities
investment portfolio. The Group remains caution about the trading
performance to minimise trading risks.
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Healthcare Business Investments

The infertility ratio of couples in China at childbearing age continues
to rise and one in every eight married couples in the country has
experience fertility problem. The Group has created a solid
foundation for the ongoing development of its healthcare business
to tap into the promising assisted reproduction market. The market
potential is even greater with the rising demand for premium
services in this field, particularly from Chinese outbound medical
tourists in various medical areas including assisted reproductive
Services.

Major milestones have been reached with the consolidation of the
assisted reproductive services in the region with the establishment
of RHG Group through the merger of RHG and The HK Women's
Clinic Group Limited, a leading premium IVF practice in Hong Kong,
and the participation in a consortium to invest in Genea, one of the
world’s leading fertility groups based in Australia.

With the participation in the investment in Genea in October 2018,
the Group made considerable progress in building its IVF medical
platform. Established for more than 30 years, Genea is the only
integrated assisted reproductive technology (“ART") platform in the
industry worldwide that both provides ART services and develops
technology including culture media and embryo transfer catheters
used in more than 600 clinics across 60 countries. Genea offers a
comprehensive range of ART services, including IVF, egg and embryo
freezing, genetic testing, sperm bank, day surgeries, and pathology
in Australia, New Zealand, and Thailand. The investment in Genea
marked a crucial step for the Group in expanding its assisted
reproductive services supply chain and in broadening its healthcare
division’s reach beyond Asia while at the same time signaled a major
landmark for Genea in expanding its presence outside of Australia. It
is a big leap for the Group towards its goal of consolidating premium
medical services and expanding the geographical outreach of its IVF
business.
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The Group’s healthcare business investment, comprising the
provision of IVF services, genetic diagnostic and advisory services,
and health screening services, generated an operating income of
approximately HK$65.35 million in 2018 (2017: HK$143.23 million),
contributing approximately 1.86% to the Group's total operating
income. The healthcare division recorded a profit of approximately
HK$140.85 million (2017: HK$42.36 million), representing
approximately 232.51% increase. The decrease of operating income
was due to RHG Group's cessation as a subsidiary of the Company
after the merger of RHG and The HK Women’s Clinic Group Limited
on 8 June 2018 (the "Merger”). The Merger of RHG and The HK
Women's Clinic Group Limited has formed a leading premium IVF
practice in Hong Kong during the Year. The merger brought together
14 prominent doctors and specialists and 2 pioneers in the field of
assisted reproduction. The consolidation of resources allows RHG to
provide a more comprehensive range of IVF medical services
including intra-uterine insemination, IVF/test tube baby, frozen-
thawed embryo transfer and egg freezing services. Subsequent to
the Merger, RHG ceased to be a subsidiary but an associate
company of the Group, with the introduction of We Doctor Holdings
Limited ("WeDoctor”) as its strategic investor, its operating income
no longer contributed to the Group’s overall operating income. The
reported profits of RHG Group (including the profits of RHG before
the Merger and share of profits after becoming an associate) and the
gain on deemed disposal of interests in RHG for the Year was
approximately HK$127.41 million (2017: HK$36.34 million).

In late 2018, the Group seized the opportunity to invest in a health
check centre in Hong Kong which provides health screening services.
The centre will add to the Group’s healthcare provision business and
is expected to complement the services offered by RHG and its
associate company, Pangenia Inc and its subsidiaries (“Pangenia”),
a genetic diagnostic and advisory service provider. The reported
share of profits of Pangenia for the Year was approximately HK$13.44
million (2017: HK$6.02 million).
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Mother-infant-child Consumer Investments

The Group's investments in mother-infant-child consumer business
consists of franchising and retailing of mother-infant-child products,
and manufacturing of infant formula and nutritional products. The
segment posted an operating income of approximately HK$3,107.53
million during the Year (2017: HK$2,544.73 million), demonstrating an
increase of 22.12% and accounting for 88.61% of the Group's total
operating income. Profit recorded for the division was approximately
HK$116.16 million during the Year (2017: loss of HK$5.12 million).

Franchising and Retailing of Mother-Infant-Child
Products

The foothold of AYD Group Limited ("AYD") and its subsidiaries
(collectively, "AYD Group”) in China strengthened in 2018,
accumulating over 1,200 franchised and direct-sale stores and 6,756
partnership stores in its regional network, with growth particularly
evidenced by the number of franchised stores in Southern and
Eastern China. During the Year, AYD Group's franchising and retailing
of mother-infant-child products contributed an operating income of
approximately HK$3,016.01 million (2017: HK$2,511.78 million), which
marked an increase of approximately 20.07%, and a profit of
approximately HK$136.60 million (2017: loss of HK$5.35 million).

Manufacture of Infant Formula and Nutritional
Products

The Group’s dairy products business investment, consisting of
Australian infant formula manufacturer, Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd.
("Blend & Pack”), generated approximately HK$91.52 million (2017:
HK$32.95 million) in operating income and earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") of approximately
HK$940,000 (2017: HK$7.02 million) contributed to the Group during
the Year. In 2018, Blend & Pack produced 4.9 million cans of milk
powder and sold 4.6 million cans.

In the light of changing global economic conditions, rising trade
barriers between countries and regulatory uncertainties in the food
industry, the Group decided to adopt a more prudent approach by
reducing its exposure to cross border trading business. As a result,
the Group agreed to sell its 46% stake in Blend & Pack and entered
into put and call options for its remaining 29% stake in Blend & Pack.
Further details are set out in the announcements issued by the
Company on 8 February 2019 and 22 February 2019.
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PROSPECTS

Financial Platform

With the completion of acquisition and full integration of RPL and
HFG Group into the Group’s wealth management platform, the Group
now eyes expansion opportunities in the Asia Pacific region. The
Group will continue to integrate its existing financial assets to
maximize the synergies and cross-selling opportunities. The Group
will also focus on expanding and strengthening its distribution
network, as well as enriching its product offerings to attract more
clients in a bid to increase its AUM. Given the uncertainties in global
economic outlook in the forthcoming year, the Group believes the
preservation and management of wealth and assets should be the
focus for its financial service platform.

Healthcare Platform

The Group will continue to explore investment opportunities that are
synergistic to its existing healthcare investments to create more
value for its shareholders.

The implementation of the “two child policy” and deteriorating
fertility rates have led to an increased demand for assisted
reproductive services in China. The lack of domestic assisted
reproductive medical resources and services due to strict
regulations, however, have driven this demand overseas.

The Group achieved a major milestone in 2018 by creating a
comprehensive IVF and biotechnology platform with pioneers in the
field to capitalize on the growth potential of the market of assisted
reproductive services in Asia, especially China. The Group has also
extended the scope of its healthcare services and decided to invest
in a healthcare centre in Hong Kong that provides premium health
screening and selected medical services to tap into strong demand
in medical tourism.

Going forward, the Group plans to seek and to participate in more
investment opportunities in the health sector to reinforce its services
capabilities and cement its position as the leading premium medical
service provider in the region.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,594.68 million when compared
with approximately HK$3,219.40 million as at 31 December 2017. The
current ratio, expressed as current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 1.62 (2017: approximately 4.12). As at 31 December
2018, the total equity of the Group was approximately HK$6,801.63
million (including non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$640.21 million), representing an increase of 4.76% when
compared with approximately HK$6,492.84 million as at 31 December
2017.

Bank deposits and cash of the Group as at 31 December 2018 were
approximately HK$2,813.52 million (2017: HK$1,817.78 million), which
included fixed deposits and pledged bank deposit of approximately
HK$1,210.44 million (2017: HK$58.36 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of our bank loans and
other borrowings was approximately HK$443.55 million, including
secured bank loans and unsecured loans amounting to HK$262.65
million and HK$180.90 million respectively. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of our bank loans and other borrowings was
approximately HK$320.02 million, including secured bank loans and
unsecured loans amounting to HK$120.83 million and HK$199.19
million respectively.
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As at 31 December 2018, the secured bank loans of approximately
HK$262.65 million (2017: HK$84.94 million) were secured by pledged
deposits of approximately HK$63.98 million (2017: HK$42.00 million)
together with shares of a subsidiary of the Company and corporate
guarantee. The carrying interest of secured bank loans of
approximately HK$111.22 million is from 5.22% to 7% per annum
(2017: 5.52% t0 6.96% per annum) and the carry interest of secured
bank loans of approximately HK$151.43 million is 3 months ICE LIBOR
plus 1.50% to 2.50% per annum depending on the net profit margin
of the Company (2017: Nil). Bank loans and other borrowings of
approximately HK$176.12 million, HK$116.00 million and HK$151.44
million were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars and
United States dollar respectively, in which approximately HK$235.19
million were at fixed interest rate and the rest balances were either
at variable rates with average rate of 4.31% per annum or non-
interest-bearing. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had unutilised
bank loan facilities of approximately HK$108.63 million (2017: Nil).

Furthermore, there were two outstanding unsecured bonds with
principal amounts of approximately HK$10 million each, which were
issued in 2014 to two third party investors. The bonds interest rates
were both 5% per annum payable annually in arrears and will mature
in 2021.

During the Year, the Group acquired 100% interest in Liechtensein
based RPL, a private bank providing services including bond and
asset-backed financing. RPL offers its customers the possibility to
create liquidity in exchange for collateral in the form of securities, by
means of reserve repurchase agreements (repo transactions).
Securities received as collateral are not recognized in the balance
sheet. Securities originating from the bank’s own resources are
recognized in the corresponding balance sheet items. RPL entered
into reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements
amounted to approximately CHF142.03 million (equivalent to
HK$1,130.37 million) and approximately CHF44.00 million (equivalent
to HK$350.19 million) which account for approximately 9.94% and
7.65% of the total assets and total liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2018 respectively.

Of the total bank loans and other borrowings as at 31 December
2018, approximately HK$423.55 million was repayable within one
year or on demand and approximately HK$20 million was repayable
after one years but within five years. None was repayable after five
years.
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During the Year, a subsidiary of the Group issued 20,000,000 non-
voting preferred shares to an investor, Classic Harmony Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 659)
(“Investor”) for an aggregate consideration of US$20 million
(equivalent to HK$156.00 million). The Investor is entitled to receive
cash dividend at a rate of US$0.02 per annum per preferred share.
The Investor has the right to exchange the preferred shares for the
shares of Mason Reproductive Technology Limited, Pangenia Inc,
and/or MW Fertility Pte Limited (or economic interests attributable to
such shares) which are owned by the Company. The maximum
amount of preferred shares that may be exchanged is 100% of the
principal amount of preferred shares as at the date of issue and any
outstanding unpaid interest.

All outstanding preferred shares will be redeemed in three years (i.e.
25 October 2021) and will be settled at the election of the Investor,
either (i) in cash at an amount equal to the subscription price at
US$1.00 per preferred share (the “Subscription Price”) plus interest
at a rate of 4% on the Subscription Price compounded annually for
the period commencing on 26 October 2018 and ending on 25
October 2021; or (ii) by the issue of such number of new shares of
the Company as determined by dividing the aggregate subscription
price for all outstanding preferred shares by the issue price. The
issue price is determined at the higher of HK$0.28 or 80% of the
average closing price of a share of the Company as quoted on the
daily quotation sheet published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) for the 5 consecutive trading days
immediately before 25 October 2021.

The Group's total debt to equity ratio, calculated as total loans and
borrowings, repurchase agreements and the issued preferred shares
of approximately HK$951.48 million (2017: HK$320.02 million) divided
by shareholder’s equity of the Group of approximately HK$6,801.63
million (2017: HK$6,492.84 million) was approximately 0.14 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 0.05).

After taking into account the bank deposits and cash, the bank loans
and other borrowings, repurchase agreements and the issued
preferred shares of the Group as at the reporting date, and the
estimated cash flows generated from the Group's operations, the
directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its present requirements for the
foreseeable future. As such, the management believes that the
Group is well positioned with sufficient operating funds to manage its
existing operations and future expansion.
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Treasury Policies

Having considered the Group’s current cash and cash equivalents,
bank and other borrowings and banking facilities, the management
believes that the Group's financial resources are sufficient for its
day-to-day operations. The Group did not use financial instruments
for financial hedging purposes during the Year. The Group’s business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
Australia dollars, Swiss Franc, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in foreign currency may have an impact on the Group's
results and net asset value as the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group's treasury
policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure only when its
potential financial impact is material to the Group. The Group will
continue to monitor its foreign exchange position and, if necessary,
utilize hedging tools, if available, to manage its foreign currency
exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total capital commitment
of approximately HK$25.14 million (2017: HK$143.43 million),
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements in
respect of the acquisition of intangible assets and subscription of
funds.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has provided guarantees in
favour of banks, financial institutions, and third party individuals, in
respect of facilities granted to certain subsidiaries, amounting to
approximately HK$428.21 million (2017: HK$204.57 million). Of these
facilities, a total of approximately HK$319.58 million (2017: HK$180.64
million) has been utilized.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided a guarantee in respect
of a loan granted to a third party individual with the principal amount
of approximately RMB51.00 million (equivalent to HK$58.07 million)
(2017: HK$57.27 million) for a loan guarantee fee income of
approximately HK$0.59 million (2017: HK$1.27 million) recognised in
the profit or loss. The maximum liability of the Group under this
guarantee was approximately RMB54.68 million (equivalent to
HK$62.26 million) (2017: HK$58.85 million), representing the
outstanding amount of the loan and interest payable to the third
party as at 31 December 2018. The management does not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Group under this
guarantee and the loan was repaid in February 2019.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged the bank deposits of
approximately HK$94.26 million and the shares of a subsidiary to
certain banks to secure loan facilities amounting to approximately
HK$268.80 million and bill payables amounting to approximately
HK$72.35 million (31 December 2017: bank deposits, inventories and
trade receivables of HK$58.36 million, HK$61.01 million and HK$61.01
million respectively were pledged to certain banks to secure loan
facilities amounting to HK$96.90 million and bill payables). Loan
facilities and bill payables amounting to approximately HK$208.37
million and bill payables amounting to approximately HK$52.55
million were utilized as at the end of the Year (2017: HK$84.94
million).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 28 March 2018, the Group completed its acquisition of 100%
interest in RPL, a private bank based in Liechtenstein. Founded in
1998, RPL provides comprehensive wealth management services,
including asset support and monitoring, asset management,
inheritance and succession planning, and portfolio analysis. The
consideration for the acquisition was CHF58.60 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$468.80 million). The consideration shall be
adjusted subject to the equity portion adjustment and potential top-
ups arising from certain provisions and/or reservations made in the
completion accounts. The estimated consideration for the acquisition
was approximately CHF63.27 million (equivalent to HK$556.83 million)
and subject to the contingent payments. RPL greatly complements
the Group's existing financial segments, by facilitating further cross
selling and synergies across the Group's different lines of business.
Including the offering of a full suite of Asian financial products to
European clients and the provision of European private banking
services to high net worth clients in the Asia Pacific.
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On 21 May 2018, the Group completed its acquisition of 100%
interest in HFG Group, a well-established wealth management
company with a long history of serving affluent clients across the
Asia Pacific region. Established in 1990, HFG Group’s services include
asset management, corporate and trust services, investment savings
plans, tax planning, life and general insurance, and MPF advisory
services. With offices in Hong Kong, and distribution business
partners in Taipei, Beijing, Singapore, Sydney, and Tokyo, HFG Group
has an extensive network of professional financial advisers. The
consideration for the acquisition was approximately HK$116.50
million. The consideration shall be adjusted based on the aggregate
net profit of HFG Group for financial year 2019 audited consolidated
or combined financial accounts of the HFG Group. The expected
consideration for the acquisition is approximately HK$128.02 million
and will be finalised by September 2019. With the addition of HFG
Group, the Group has expanded financial services capabilities,
including the provision of a wider range of quality financial products
and the enhancement of its investment and financial advisory
services. HFG Group has added investment advisory services, as well
as a network of 70 professional financial advisers, enabling the sales
and distribution of a diverse range of products to clients in Asia and
Europe, thus strengthening the competitiveness of the Group’s
financial platform.

On 8 June 2018, our indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary, RHG, a
leading premium private IVF practice in Hong Kong completed the
merger with The HK Women's Clinic Group Limited and its
subsidiaries. Established in 1991, The HK Women's Clinic Group
Limited was founded by Dr. Leong Ka Hong, Milton, the medical
practitioner who successfully completed the first IVF case in Hong
Kong. The clinic promotes a comprehensive concept of education
and development, in addition to providing diagnosis and treatment.
Its IVF centre is managed by several doctors and embryo specialists.
The consideration for The HK Women's Clinic Group Limited was
approximately HK$435.01 million and was settled as to HK$210
million in cash and as to approximately HK$225.01 million by the
allotment and issue of the shares of RHG. Its amalgamation into our
medical platform further consolidates and promotes the
development of the IVF industry in this region. Upon the issue of the
shares of RHG, RHG ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.
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On 17 May 2018, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Mason
Healthcare Group Limited ("“MHG"), entered into the transfer
agreement with each of the strategic shareholders, including
WeDoctor, Hong Kong Zhongya Environmental Group Company
Limited and Aldworth Equity | SP and Aldworth Opportunities Fund
SP for the disposal of 35.2% interest of MHG's shares in Mason
Reproductive Technology Limited (“MRT"), which owned 46.71% of
RHG after the Merger. The transfer was completed on 3 July 2018.
With the scale and reputation of the merged business, along with the
successful introduction of WeDoctor as a strategic shareholder, the
Group is well positioned to take advantage of the growing cross-
border demand for IVF services in Asia.

On 5 July 2018, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Pioneer Leap
Investments Limited (“Pioneer Leap”), transferred 809 AYD shares
to Cosmicfield Investments Limited (“Cosmicfield”) under the terms
of the investment agreement entered on 30 December 2016 with
Golden Metro Investments Limited (“Golden Metro”), Cosmicfield,
AYD and their management team (comprising Mr. Yip Shing Fung,
Mr. Ye Faduan, Mr. Ye Fachao, Mr. Lin Han and Ms. Gao Qin)
in relation to the acquisition of 55% equity interest in
AYD (the “Investment Agreement”). The Investment Agreement
provides that in the event that the consolidated net profit attributable
to the equity holders of AYD for the year ended 31 December 2017
("2017 Attributable Profit”) is more than RMB85 million by 5% or
more, Pioneer Leap shall, as bonus, transfer such number of shares
in AYD to Cosmicfield to be determined under the formula as set out
in the Investment Agreement. As the 2017 Attributable Profit was
approximately RMB120.40 million and exceeded RMB85 million by
more than 5%, Pioneer Leap transferred 809 AYD shares to
Cosmicfield on 5 July 2018. After the transfer, Pioneer Leap holds
46.91% of the issued capital of AYD, and Cosmicfield and Golden
Metro Investments Limited holds 27.01% and 26.08% of the issued
capital of AYD respectively.
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On 28 December 2018, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Wealth
Infinity Global Limited ("WIG"), completed the investment of AU$30
million (equivalent to approximately HK$168 million) in TT Holdings
Limited for the purpose of investing in Genea. Genea is one of the
world’s leading fertility groups with an outstanding track record
spanning over 30 years. Genea developed technology including
culture media and embryo transfer catheters used in more than 600
clinics across 60 countries. Headquartered in Sydney with over 400
employees and operations globally, Genea is the only integrated ART
platform, with both services and technology, in the industry
worldwide. Genea offers a comprehensive range of ART services,
including IVF, egg and embryo freezing, genetic testing, sperm bank,
day surgeries and pathology in Australia, New Zealand and Thailand
and is the third largest IVF clinic group in Australia by IVF cycle
volume. Leveraging on its extensive experience and technologies,
this investment adds synergies to the Group’s healthcare platform
and further enhances the Group's presence in the IVF industry
across the Asia Pacific region.

Other than the above, there was no other material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies by the Group
during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group remains cautious about the trading performance of its
portfolio of securities. With volatile global financial markets during
the Year, the Group had disposed of some of its stock investments
to minimize the capital loss. As trading of securities remains one of
the principal businesses of the Group, the Group may consider
investing in global and local stocks conservatively to preserve the
value of its portfolio in the future. The Group will also leverage on the
Group's healthcare and consumer eco-system to identify securities
investment opportunities with an aim of not just benefiting the Group
as a result of stock performance but also creating synergetic value
by the investee companies.
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Loss from the sale and net fair value gain recognized for the Group's
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
approximately HK$64.21 million and HK$8.49 million respectively
during the Year. The Group held a few listed investments as set out

below:

List of significant stocks in terms of market value
as at 31 December 2018

Name of stock listed on
Stock Exchange/overseas
stock exchange

RESRT/
BHEERAH
twzRGER

Sheng Ye Capital
Limited
BEERBRAR

Camsing International
Holding Limited
ARRRERERAR

Yadea Group Holdings
Limited
T ERRRERAR

Beijing Sports and
Entertainment
Industry Group Limited

FRBEEEEE
BRAF

Rici Healthcare Holdings
Limited
REREREERERAT

Stock code

8469

2662

1585

1803

1526

Number of
shares held
asat

31 December
2018

Brief description of
the business

R=B-N\%
+=A=1-8
FERGHA

Provision of factoring services, including 28,600,000
the provision of financing services
(secured by accounts receivable) to
factoring customers and the accounts
receivable

REERERS - AREARERPRMARME
PR (APEMCER R R IR) RIEMR S
B -

Development, sales and distribution of 7,330,000
intellectual property rights derived
products and mobile devices

¥ REREGEERNNERBER
wRER

Development, manufacture and sales of 16,600,000
electric two-wheeled vehicles and
related accessories

FE - REREEEHMEES
RARAEH

Provision of air freight service in the 15,000,000
wholesale market

M ETHREZERS

General hospital business, medical 13,619,000
examination business and clinic
business

GRAERER  RRERRDMER

RAFE

C AR BIRAFEFABENTHEE

ERRNEEFEBRREFATFERES O E
64,210,000 7T & 8,490,000 7T - ANEEEIF A /)
BT EMEESIWOT

R-EB-NE+ZA=+—BRMEL
ERONEERFEIIR

Proportion of
shares held
asat

31 December
2018

R=B-N\E
+=H=+—H
FrisRpa

3.25%

0.68%

0.55%

1.15%

0.86%

Percentage to
total assets
value of the
Group as at

31 December
2018

Market value
asat
31 December

Investment
cost as at

31 December
2018

R=B-N\E
+=A=1-A
ZRERE
HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000
AR TAT
57,797 191,906 169%
39,151 65,457 0.58%
1,45 50,132 0.44%
1,979 42,000 0.37%
25,581 23,833 0.21%
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List of significant stocks in terms of marketvalue R=-TE—t&£+=-A=+—HBRHEL
as at 31 December 2017 BEINEEREIX

Percentage to

Number of Proportion of total assets

Name of stock listed shares held Shares held Investment Market value value of the

on Stock Exchange/ asat asat cost as at asat Group as at

overseas stock Brief description of 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
exchange Stock code  the business 2017 2017

tF

&
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT AT

Kong Sun Holdings 295 Investment in and operation of 101,880,213 0.68% 122,684 31,583 0.41%
Limited photovoltaic power plants, properties
TILERER AR investment, manufacturing and sale of
life-like plants.
KREULERE  RUHERE ZE R
HEhEREY -
Hengtou Securities Co., 1476 Provision of financial products & services 40,376,000 8.96% 161,99 117,898 1.51%
Limited — H Shares to corporations, financial institutions,
BEREFRABERAF government entities & individuals,
—HR through brokerage & wealth

management, investment
management, proprietary trading &
investment banking business.
BRELRIEEE RAEE FiE
RHRRERT RBACE SRE
B BINERREARMERELR

R -
QTechnology (Group) 1478 Engagement in the design, research, 382,000 0.03% 4,642 4,202 0.05%
Company Limited development, manufacture and sales of
EitRE(5E) camera modules.
BRAH fesikit  BE - RE - DERBERK
SRIEAR -
Sheng Ye Capital 8469 Provision of factoring services, including 28,600,000 3.86% 57,797 199,342 256%
Limited the provision of financing services
BREERERAT (secured by accounts receivable) to

factoring customers and the accounts

receivable management Services.
REVRERT - AERREEPRAME

TR (CAREUER 3N (R AR) RIBER S

BRI -
Wattle Health Australia ~ WHA Developing, sourcing and marketing high 236,429 0.16% 827 2,639 0.03%
Limited (Australian quality Australian made consumer food
Stock products
Exchange) H% REREHEDRNZERE
WHA ERMREM
(EMEH
RHH)
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BE-ZF—\F+ZA=+—HLEFEE
BEERZEWE (EA)

Significant stocks gains/(losses) for the year
ended 31 December 2018

Realised Unrealised Dividend
gains/(losses)  gains/(losses) received for
for the year for the year the year
ended ended ended
Name of stock listed on 31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Exchange 2018 2018 2018
BZE
—E-N\F BZE BZE
+=—B=+—H —E-N\F —E-N\F
+t&¥E2 +=-A=+—H +=A=+—H
B8R LFEZRER LtFEEZ
REERPTEHZRGER IR 13X 5R Wz (&8) Wz (&) EWRE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET THET THET
Kong Sun Holdings Limited 295 (17,460) - -
TIERER AR
Hengtou Securities Co., Limited — H Shares 1476 (37,363) - 4,217
BERBLHERMHDEBRAF —HE
Sheng Ye Capital Limited 8469 - (7,436) -
BREBABRAT]
Camsing International Holding Limited 2662 6 26,376 38
AEBEEIERER A A
Yadea Group Holdings Limited 1585 @) 8,681 663
HmEEERERA A
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Significant stocks gains/(losses) for the year
ended 31 December 2017

Realised
gains/(losses)
for the year
ended

31 December
2017

HE
—E—tF
+=—A=+—8
IEFEZ
E#R
Wz, (E18)
HK$'000
FHET

Name of stock listed on
Stock Exchange

TRBE 32 P £ 2 B An % 7 Bt HRER

Kong Sun Holdings Limited 295 -

LI AR A A

Hengtou Securities Co., Limited — H shares 1476 -

BERBLEBRMHDERAF —HR

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. 2799 1,256

PEEREESERNDBRAR

Harbin Bank Co., Ltd. 6138 11,007

BRAERTTIRNDBRAF

Sheng Ye Capital Limited

BEBABRAT] 8469 -
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Unrealised
gains/(losses)
for the year
ended

31 December
2017
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BEEERWR DT

USE OF PROCEEDS

Reference is made to the announcement, the circular and the
prospectus issued by the Company on 22 September 2016, 28
October 2016, 13 December 2016, 13 January 2017, 7 February 2017
and 8 September 2017 respectively, the annual report 2017, the
interim report 2017 and annual report 2016, in relation to, among
other things, the rights issue on the basis of six (6) rights shares for
every five (5) shares (the “Rights Issue”). The Company (i) allotted
and issued 22,124,799,450 ordinary shares to the qualifying
shareholders on the register as at 12 January 2017 at a subscription
price of HK$0.13 per share for a total consideration, before expenses,
of approximately HK$2,876 million and (ii) allotted and issued
4,056,213,232 new shares (the “Bonus Shares”) of the Company to
qualifying shareholders, on the basis of one Bonus Share for every
ten shares held by the qualifying shareholders at the date for
determining their entitlements (the “Bonus Issue”). Both the Rights
Issue and Bonus Issue were completed in February 2017 and the net
proceeds from the Rights Issue was approximately HK$2,840 million.
Following completion, the Company changed the original intended
use of proceeds. Further details of the change are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 September 2017. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had unused proceeds of approximately
HK$13.77 million towards IT upgrade of financial services.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 1,245
employees around the globe (as at 31 December 2017: 1,139) of
whom 1,217 are full-time employees and 28 are part-time
employees. The remuneration policy and package of the Group'’s
employees are structured in accordance to market terms and
statutory requirements where appropriate. In addition, the Group
also provides other staff benefits such as medical insurance and
mandatory provident fund.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types of risk
within the organisation and the external environment with active
management participation and effective internal control procedures
in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.
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Mr. Ko Po Ming, aged 60, has over 35 years of extensive
experience in finance and investment banking business. Mr. Ko has
been appointed as the Joint Chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 8
September 2016. Mr. Ko has been re-designated as the Chairman of
the Board and appointed as the chairman of nomination committee
on 2 January 2018. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, including being appointed as the chairman of board
member of Raiffeisen Privatbank Liechtenstein AG and the chairman
of AYD Group Limited (formerly known as Shining Time Holdings
Limited). Mr. Ko is mainly responsible for the formulation of
development strategies of the Group, as well as giving guidance to
the Group's project planning, financing and investment. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ko was the chief executive officer of CMBC
International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the China
Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. From October 2012 to March 2015, Mr.
Ko was a consultant of China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong
Kong Branch and was responsible for the setting up of CMBC
International Holdings Limited. Prior to cofounding Goldbond Capital
Holdings Limited (“GCHL") in 2003, he was the head of asian
corporate finance of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited where he
was in charge of the corporate finance business in Asia. GCHL was
acquired by Piper Jaffray Companies (NYSE: PJC) in 2007 and its
name was changed to Piper Jaffray Asia Holdings Limited (“PJA").
Since then and until September 2012, Mr. Ko served as the chief
executive officer of PJA. Mr. Ko graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration.

At present, Mr. Ko is an independent non-executive director of
Minshang Creative Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1632.
hk) and a non-executive director of Globe Metals and Mining Limited
(ASX: GBE). He had acted as independent non-executive directors of
a number of Hong Kong and Mainland China listed companies,
including (i) Nanjing Panda Electronics Company Limited (stock code:
553.hk) between 1996 and 1999; (ii) Dazhong Transport (Group)
Company Limited (SHA: 600611) between 1997 and 2003; (i) Chinese
Energy Holdings Limited (formerly known as iMerchants Limited
(stock code: 8009.hk)) between 2000 and 2004; and (iv) Tianjin Capital
Environmental Protection Group Company Limited (stock code: 1065.
hk), between 2003 and 2009. Mr. Ko had acted as a non-executive
director of Petro-king Qilfield Services Limited (stock code: 2178.hk),
between February 2013 and March 2018. Mr. Ko was a Listing
Committee member of the Main Board and GEM of the Stock
Exchange between May 2003 and June 2009. He is also a trustee of
St. Johnsbury Academy, an independent day and boarding secondary
school. St. Johnsbury Academy is a non-profit corporation under
section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in the United States
of America.
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Mr. Chang Tat Joel, aged 50, has been appointed as an executive
Director, a member of the remuneration committee of the Company,
the Chief Operating Officer and the Authorised Representative of the
Company since 8 September 2016. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chang has considerable strategic,
financial and advisory experience. Mr. Chang is responsible for
leading the overall strategic development and the general operation
of the Group. He was a founder of Genius Link Assets Management
Limited, a private equity investment company. Prior to that, he was
the chief investment officer of Investec Asia Limited, a managing
director of China Everbright Capital Limited and an executive director
of BNP Prime Peregrine Capital Limited. He is also a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Economics from Monash University in 1990.

Mr. Chang is an independent non-executive director of OCI
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 329.hk), and an
independent non-executive director of Hailiang International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2336.hk). He was formerly an independent non-
executive director of AID Life Science Holdings Limited (formerly
known as AID Partners Technology Holdings Limited, stock code:
8088.hk), and he was a non-executive director of Kong Sun Holdings
Ltd. (stock code: 295.hk). He was an independent director of China
Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited, a company
previously listed on NASDAQ.
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Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela, aged 44, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since 26 April 2016. Ms. Lui is
also the chief financial officer of the Group, the company secretary
and authorised representative of the Company. She is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for overall
financial strategies, planning and management of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Lui had over 4 years of experience in audits in
an international certified public accounting firms, over 17 years of
experience in accounts, finance, operations, compliance and
company secretarial duties in a listed securities firm and over 8 years
of experience in company secretarial duties in a listed electroplating
equipment designing and manufacturing company in Hong Kong. She
has over 21 years of experience in management, finance and
operations of securities business as well as company secretary. Ms.
Lui graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from
Azusa Pacific University in California, USA and a Postgraduate
Diploma in Corporate Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is currently a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley, aged 46, is the chief human resources
officer of the Group and has been appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 24 May 2017. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for the overall
human resources strategies, planning and management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, she has over 21 years of
experience in the field of human resources management. Ms. Fu is
mainly responsible for the human resources and related functions of
the Group. She worked in the human resources management of
multinational organizations like JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN AMRO Bank N.V. and UBS AG before
joining the Company. She is a seasoned human resource
professional responsible for managing the full spectrum of the
human resources functions. Ms. Fu graduated with a Bachelor of
business degree in human resources management from La Trobe
University in Australia. She is currently an associate member of Hong
Kong Institution of Human Resource Management.
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Mr. Cao Lu, aged 37, has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company since 1 December 2018. Mr. Cao joined the
Company as the managing director of the internal audit department
of the Company in September 2017 and has been re-designated as
the senior country officer for China of the Company since 1 November
2018. He is also a director of Raiffeisen Privatbank Liechtenstein AG,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Cao is primarily
responsible for developing business partner relationships to support
the Company's development and for implementing strategic plans to
expand the businesses geographically. Mr. Cao also drives diversified
marketing plans on brand building, products and services and
handles client acquisition and maintenance for the China market. Mr.
Cao has over 10 years of experience in investment banking, direct
investment, mergers and acquisition in China. He has in-depth
understanding of the China market with extensive knowledge about
capital markets and investment banking. He obtained his Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Nankai University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol, aged 43, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company since 5 October 2016. Ms.
Hui has more than 20 years' experience in property development,
and more than 12 years’ experience in management and strategic
planning of listed companies. Ms. Hui obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Commerce majoring in Accounting from Macquarie University in
Australia in 1997. She is also a Certified Practising Accountant in
Australia. Ms. Hui is currently a member of Beijing Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a council
member of Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and a
member of the Youth Committee of All-China Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese. Ms. Hui is currently the vice chairman of Shanghai
Shimao Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(SHA: 600823), and the vice chairman and president of Shimao
International Holdings Limited. Ms. Hui is also the sole director of
Future Achiever Limited (“FAL") and the daughter of Mr. Hui Wing
Mau, the beneficial owner of FAL which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Ren Can, aged 57, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, and is the member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 26 April 2016. Mr. Tian has more
than 21 years of working experience in the field of finance. Mr. Tian
is currently the chief executive officer of UBP Investments
Management (Shanghai) Limited. He was the chief executive officer
of HFT Investments Management Co., Ltd. from April 2003 to March
2015. Before that, Mr. Tian worked for multi-national financial
institutes. Mr. Tian obtained a Master Degree of Business
Administration awarded jointly by Manchester Business School and
University of Wales of the United Kingdom. He obtained a Master
Degree in Political Sciences International Relations from Shanghai
International Studies University. Mr. Tian graduated from Shanghai
Foreign Languages Institute with a Bachelor Degree in French
Language and French Literature. Mr. Tian was an executive director
of Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2277.hk).
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Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 64, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and the chairman of the
remuneration committee and member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company with
effect from 24 May 2017. Ms. Kan has over 26 years of experience in
corporate finance and is well experienced in both the equity and
debt markets. She has held various senior positions in international
and local banks and financial institutions and is currently a controlling
shareholder and the Managing Director of Asia Investment Management
Limited, a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO"). Ms. Kan is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She is also a licensed responsible
officer under the SFO. She currently also serves as independent non-
executive director for several listed companies on the Stock
Exchange, namely, China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 1185.hk), Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 120.hk), Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 78.hk) and Shimao Property Holdings Limited (stock
code: 813.hk) and is also an independent director of AVIC
International Maritime Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Catalist Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
She was an independent non-executive director of Shougang
Concord International Enterprises Company Limited (stock code: 697.
hk) from 2014 to 2018

BEELZLT  Mm RZE—tFRA=+HEA
BZERARNRIBUINTESR  RHMEES
FHEURBEZZEGRIEREEGNKE - it
B2 FREMELS  WERARESMSE
BEEER - HERERRAMRITAR & 5
BRETZESEEN BREMNEEERERA
A (BEHLBAEGA((BERBEHHDETZ
BREAR) 2ERBRRARERBLIR - BT A
RERNTARGIAE  BAEEZ2E R
IR ATEFRTEUREBSHMACEE -
BHRELFRAEROBETZHEEEAS -
HRIMEEZME R EmAaE - BFRERAE
TREE (SE) AR A (BRMH RS 1185.hk) -
e EREEBR AR (RN 120hk) ~ 5
SOBE BRI R A E (BRH RS - 78.nk) &
HEXE M EZRE R QA (DR 813.hk))
BB IENITES - N ATMERMERIERER
RAI(RFNEFEHRZHBRAAENFR LT
MAR)MBUES BR-Z—NWFE_T
—NFGET BRERCEGRAA(BRHA
5% 697.hK) BB FEFITE S o

39

EREEZRERATF / 2018 FEHRE



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EE=EE

Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund, aged 46, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company, and is the
chairman of the audit committee and member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since July 2017. Mr. Chen has over 21 years of solid experiences in
business management, auditing, accounting and internal control. Mr.
Chen was a non-executive director of KOALA Financial Group Limited
(formerly known as Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited, stock
code: 8226.hk), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
from November 2014 to January 2016. Mr. Chen graduated from City
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy in
June 1996. Mr. Chen has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since 2001 and a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2016.

Mr. Wang Cong, aged 28, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, and is the member of each
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 1 December 2018. Mr. Wang
graduated from National University of Singapore with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Engineering Science in 2013. In 2014, he obtained his
Master's Degree in Aeronautics from California Institute of
Technology. Since 2014, Mr. Wang has joined a research group in
Aeronautics at California Institute of Technology and is working
towards a Doctor of Philosophy in Aeronautics. He is a co-inventor of
three patents under application* filed with the United States Patent
and Trademark Office, including medical device and fluid dynamic.

*Note:

(1) Patent application no. 14/947767 filed on 20 November, 2015 “Micro-
Needle Drug Delivery Systems”

(2)  Patent application no. 15/411544 filed on 20 January, 2017 “Vertical
Carbon Nanotube and Lithium lon Battery Chemistries, Articles,
Architectures and Manufacture”

(3)  Patent application no. 15/663595 filed on 28 July, 2017 "System,
Methods, and Apparatuses for Reducing Hydrodynamic Frictional Drag”
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®RE

The board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) presents
their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a health and wealth solutions service conglomerate. It
principally provides comprehensive financial services in Hong Kong,
including dealing in securities, commodities broking, provision of
securities margin financing, provision of investment and corporate
finance advisory services, investment in securities trading, money
lending and investment holding. The Group also pursues an
“investment business model” by making direct investments in the
healthcare sector.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review with financial key performance indicators
analysis and future development in the Group’s business can be
found in the “Chairman Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” sections of this annual report while details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and
discussion on the environmental policies and performance, were set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section of
this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 131 to 132. The Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK0.067 cent per
ordinary share of the Company for the Year (the “Final Dividend")
(2017: Nil), subject to the proposed Final Dividend being approved by
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 24 May 2019 (the "AGM").
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the notes 40 and 56 to the consolidated
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 135 to 136 of the consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted

to HK$257,000 (2017: HK$159,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on pages 343 and
344,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the pledge of assets of the Group are set out in notes 29
and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE BONDS
Details of corporate bonds of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REDEEMABLE AND EXCHANGEABLE PREFERRED
SHARE

Details of redeemable and exchangeable preferred share of the
Group are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

42

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018

i
RNEBKEARRNAEE 2 FHHESDHEHNGREH
TEIRRMI T A0 56 A R E 135 B 136 B 2 R A1

&Zg%
=EH) o

ZERBX
RNEBRFANEZIBHE257,0008T(ZF
—-+4 1 159,000/87T) °

HREHE
AEENBERAEVRFEzZ2EHEERARE
TEEHNE M3 R34 E -

ME - BERRE
REBZYE BEEREBRAFEZE
BN EMBRERME 16

15

itk
B TA

AEBZFRERFBER G M BRI T
32

EERM
AEBEERAOFBERNGEEMBIRKRME29
K32

[} &N

RABRAFE 2 WAE B F BN ERE M BH
REIFE39 ©

NEES

AEBRAEFNFBTHRNGEAMBRRME
32

o] R B R T R S R

RNEEAE D M AT ERE RN BEHREE Y
TEIRERMIFEST -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®RE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 22 May 2012 (the “Adoption Date") which will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date to
provide the participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole. Under the Scheme,
the Directors may at their discretion grant options to participants
including all directors and employees of the Group and any other
persons including consultants, advisors, agents, customers,
suppliers, service provider, contractor, business partner or
connected person of the Group or its associates to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at any point in time. The limit may be
refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month period
unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.
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Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date of the grant of the options; (i) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as
at 31 December 2018 was 4,461,834,555 shares which represented
10% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at 31 December
2018.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Ccompany.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Po Ming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela

Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley

Mr. Cao Lu (appointed on 1 December 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol
Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph (resigned on 2 January 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund

Mr. Wang Cong (appointed on 1 December 2018)
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Pursuant to articles 96 and 115 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Lui
Choi Yiu, Angela, Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley, Mr. Cao Lu, Ms. Kan Lai
Kuen, Alice and Mr. Wang Cong will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company. The Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting do not
have service contracts which are not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of the independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of Directors who have served on the Boards of the
Company'’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out below:

Ko Po Ming

Chang Tat Joel

Lui Choi Yiu, Angela

Fu Yau Ching, Shirley
Cao Lu

Attrux Clare

Cai Quan

Chan Tung Yuen

Chan Wing Kei

Chen Jeff Hungche
Chong Ka Yee

Doo Alexander Kenneth
Tschutscher Niklaus Werner
Widmer Florian Dominik
Fok Kenny Tsz Chun
Gao Qin

Grant Andrew James
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Ho Chan Yuk Lin Anita
Ho Wing Chiu, Clement
Hung Hugo

lun Sio Hong

Guo Jian

Karasawvidis Lazarus
Phillip Kevin Andre
Lam Ching Shuen

Lam Po Mui

Lam Sze Wai Derek
Lam Wai Hung

Lau Cheuk Hang

Lau Tuen Mui

Lau Wai Yee Susanna
Lee Tai Hay Dominic
Leong Milton Ka Hong
Leung Chun Keung
Leung Tim Chiu Richard
Liew Mun Kiong

Lin John Sian-zu

Lucas Blair Andrew
Ramroop Natisha Nicole
Ng Yuen Yee

Phey Serene Sai Lin
Poon Chi Keung
Tseung Yuk Hei Kenneth
Wong Chi Kit Nelson
wong Shun Yun

wong Tai Tung

Wong Wei Man

Ye Fachao

Ye Faduan

Yip Shing Fung

Ye Faqiu
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2018:

EERROREBRO ZEERAR

RZFB-N\F+-_A=1t—8 ARAEFKK
BITBRABRARAHEBBEE(EERLE S
NAEGDI([E S RAERM ) EXVER) 2Bt -
HBEBR O R EST R ALCHENARRIRIEES
NRHEEGPIEI2GFE 2 B L MARIE LH
TABRETEFR S 2ZRETA ([ RESFA D
BRITTHEARP LBz S RRIAT

RZZ—NFE+ZA=+—H RKAR
KARRER D 2 ¥ B0

Al BAX

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued share

ordinary capital of the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held Company

HARATBBIT

EEnH B REmME FESERYE REZHBANESL

Ko Po Ming Interest of controlled corporation 632,104,000 1.42%
SEH REHEE R (Note Bzt 1)

Chang Tat Joel Interest of controlled corporation 483,370,800 1.08%
(i) REGDEE R (Note f1 73 2)

Notes: ffet -

1. These shares are held by Jovial Epoch Holdings Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Ko Po Ming, an executive Director, the chief
executive officer and the chairman of the Company.

2. These shares are held by True Elite Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Chang Tat Joel, an executive Director and the chief operating
officer of the Company.

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER FERREEMALTARS REBER®S
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN ZRERRKR
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2018, the following interests and short positions RZ-Z—NF+-A=+—0 KQFABREZH
of 5% or more of the issued share capital and underlying shares of &Hﬁiéﬂﬂﬂ%%é 1RFTTF B 2 Em e et 8x A
the Company (other than a Director or chief executive of the i(jrilw T%%‘X?Eﬁﬂ(}\s)ﬁﬁ$
Company) were recorded in the register of interests required to be A FIEBEITRA RARR A ) 5% 3 A £ 2
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: A
Long position L)
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares held shareholding
EEME i BEREA RESNE DL
Hui Wing Mau Interest of controlled corporation 7,656,916,000 17.16%
FTERTX Rt EE R (Note ffzt 1)
Chen Sung-Tse Interest of controlled corporation 3,976,495,616 8.91%
PRAAZ RYEHLEBRE R (Note Mt 2)
Notes: Biat

1.

These shares are held by Future Achiever Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Hui Wing Mau.

These shares are held by Investment Talent Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Chen Sung-Tse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
this annual report, had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong to all staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income. Details of the retirement
scheme are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

the largest supplier 27.72%
five largest suppliers in aggregate 64.61%
Sales

the largest customer 0.58%
five largest customers in aggregate 6.39%

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a Director,
an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) have any interest in any of
the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of the Company has respectively entered into a service
contract/letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 3
years unless terminated by not less than three month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other. Each non-executive
Director of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company with no specific term and such service contract can be
terminated by not less than three month'’s notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 53 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Details of the capital commitments are set out in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 December 2018, the market capitalization of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$5,755,766,577
based on the total number of 44,618,345,557 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$0.129 per shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the corporate governance report contained in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provide that every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to
the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover for legal
actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, save for Ms.
Kan Lai Kuen, Alice’s interest in Asia Investment Management
Limited, which is licensed corporation under the SFO, no Director of
the Company is considered to have an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that such competition, if any, is neither
significant nor material to the Group as a whole. Furthermore Ms.
Kan Lai Kuen, Alice will fulfill her fiduciary duties in order to ensure
that she will act in the best interest of the Shareholders and the
Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the businesses of such companies.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group or existed
during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group (which did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the Year are
set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements contained
herein.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following connected transactions
that were subject to the Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for
disclosure in annual report.

Connected Transaction with WeDoctor

In December 2018, Wealth Infinity Global Limited (“Wealth Infinity”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, made an
investment of AU$30 million for approximately 33.96% of the issued
share capital of TT Holdings Limited (“TT Holdings"). One of the
shareholders of TT Holdings is We Doctor (HK) Limited (“WeDoctor
HK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of WeDoctor. WeDoctor is
interested in approximately 19.50% of Mason Reproductive
Technology Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and is a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level. Accordingly, Wealth Infinity’s investment in TT
Holdings constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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TT Holdings (through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Talent Triumph
Developments Limited) applied the proceeds from Wealth Infinity’s
investment together with the investment proceeds from other
investors including WeDoctor HK as capital contribution to MW
Fertility Pte. Limited ("MW Fertility”) for approximately 60.26% of
the issued share capital of MW Fertility. MW Fertility acquired 89.50%
of the issued capital of Genea Limited, one of the world’s leading
fertility groups based in Australia, on 28 December 2018.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 October 2018.

Connected Transaction with Cosmicfield

On 30 December 2016, Pioneer Leap entered into the Investment
Agreement, in which the Investment Agreement provides that in the
event that the 2017 Attributable Profit is more than RMB85,000,000
by 5% or more, Pioneer Leap shall, as bonus, transfer such number
of shares in AYD to Cosmicfield to be determined under the formula
as set out in the Investment Agreement. As the 2017 attributable
profit was RMB120,402,000 and exceeded RMB85,000,000 by more
than 5%, Pioneer Leap was required to transfer 809 issued shares of
AYD to Cosmicfield under the terms of the Investment Agreement.
Upon completion of the transfer on 5 July 2018, the Company holds
46.91% of the issued capital of AYD, while Cosmicfield and Golden
Metro hold 27.01% and 26.08% of the issued capital of AYD
respectively.
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Since (i) Cosmicfield is a substantial shareholder of AYD and is a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level; (i) the
Board (including all the independent non-executive directors) had
approved the transaction and (iii) the independent non-executive
directors have confirmed that the transaction was fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole, the transfer of shares by
Pioneer Leap to Cosmicfield under the terms of the Investment
Agreement was subject to the annual reporting and announcement
requirements but was exempted from circular, independent financial
advice and shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to rule
14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2016 and 30 June 2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

At the same time of entering into the Investment Agreement referred
to above in “Connected Transactions”, Pioneer Leap granted a loan
in the amount of RMB140.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$157.70 million) (the “Loan”) to Cosmicfield under a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”). The Loan was drawdown on
28 February 2017 and is secured by share charges of shares held by
Cosmicfield in AYD and shares held by Golden Metro in AYD
respectively.

Since (i) each of Cosmicfield and Golden Metro was regarded as a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level; (i) the
Board (including all the independent non-executive directors) had
approved the transaction and (iii) the independent non-executive
directors have confirmed that the transaction was fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole, the transaction
contemplated under the Loan Agreement was subject to the annual
reporting and announcement requirements but was exempted from
circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.
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For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.

On 30 June 2018, Golden Metro, Cosmicfield and Pioneer Leap
entered into a supplementary agreement (the “Supplementary
Loan Agreement”) to amend and supplement, the Loan Agreement.
The terms of the Loan Agreement were set out in the section headed
“The Loan Agreement” of the announcement of the Company dated
30 December 2016. Under the Supplementary Loan Agreement, the
terms of the Loan are amended as follows:

(i)

The initial public offering of AYD on the Stock Exchange (the
“AYD IPQ") is anticipated as part of the development of AYD
gives its growth and prospect. Depending on the date of
obtaining the PN15 Approval, the maturity date of the Loan (the
“Maturity Date”) is set out below:

M

If the Company cannot obtain the approval from the
Stock Exchange in respect of the spin-off and separate
listing of the business of AYD on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (the “PN15 Approval”) by 31 December
2019, the Maturity Date will be 2 July 2020.

If the Company obtains the PN15 Approval by 30 June
2020, the Maturity Date for the an amount of RMB59
million (equivalent to approximately HK$67.18 million),
which will represent all or part of (if the principal
outstanding is less than RMB59 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$67.18 million)) the principal of the
outstanding Loan and the corresponding interest accrued
(the "Agreed Amount”), will, at the option of
Cosmicfield, be 30 June 2021 and the remaining
outstanding amount of the Loan will be 31 December
2020.
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(3) If the Company cannot obtain the PN15 Approval by 30
June 2020, the Maturity Date for the Agreed Amount will,
at the option of Cosmicfield, be extended to 30 June 2021
while the remainder (if any) will remain as 2 July 2020,
provided that if Cosmicfield and Golden Metro exercises
the call option to acquire from Pioneer Leap its entire
shareholding in AYD on 2 July 2020, then the Maturity
Date will be further extended to:

(@  the completion date of the disposal of the shares of
AYD, provided that the parties enter into the
definitive sale and purchase agreement and all the
necessary approvals in relation to the disposal of
the AYD shares (including but not limited to the
approval from the shareholders’ of the Company (if
required)) (the "Relevant Approvals”) are
obtained and Cosmicfield has no right to extend
the Maturity Date to 30 June 2021 if the completion
date is earlier; or

(b)  the later of (1) 180 days after notification by the
Company that Relevant Approvals cannot be
obtained; or (2) 31 December 2020, if no definitive
agreement were entered into or the Relevant
Approvals were not obtained.

If the Maturity Date were extended in accordance with
paragraph 3(a) or 3(b) above, the Agreed Amount may, at
the discretion of Cosmicfield, be further extended to 30
June 2021.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transaction and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction has been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal
commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and are in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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For the propose of rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of
the Company provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transaction mentioned above:

() was not approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(i) was not in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if
the transaction involves provision of financial assistance by the
Group;

(i) was not entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transaction; and

(iv)  was not exceeded the annual cap as no annual cap was set by
the Company.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Details of the financial risks management objective and policies of
the Group are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Rules and Regulations Risk

The Group’s businesses and investments are principally operated in
mainland China, Hong Kong, Europe, Cayman Islands and Australia
and are subject to different industry standards and government
regulations in different jurisdictions. These standards, rules and
regulations include, but not limited to, financial services, bank, food
hygiene, medical related and safety related laws and regulations,
ordinances or acts, environmental protection regulations,
employment regulations and relevant tax laws, etc. The Group’s
internal legal and compliance department will ensure compliance
with the laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group.

Failure to comply with the applicable rules and regulations may
result in fines, restrictions on the Group’s activities or even
suspension or revocation of some or all of the Group’s business
licences/certifications. The Group faces increasing compliance
burden with its rapid expansion into new business and investment
areas, new jurisdictions and the ever-changing laws and regulations.
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Investment Risk

The Group's rapid expansion plans through mergers and acquisitions
carry the risk of its investments not achieving the Group's strategic
business objectives or failing to maintain or make profit. Failure to
properly manage its new investments will affect the Group’s
reputation and its shareholders’ confidence and in the more severe
cases, the long term sustainability of the Group will be impacted
and/or the exit strategies for the investments will be delayed or
aborted.

Even though the Group has established a strategic development
department to carry out detailed analysis, valuation assessments
and due diligence review work for each of its investment and
acquisition projects and its investment committee carries out in-
depth review and approval process for each of its investment
decisions, the Group is still subject to the inherent risk of its
investments not performing according to expectations. The Group
continues to strengthen its investment review and approval
processes including setting specific milestones and measurable Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) for its new investments.

Liquidity Risk

As the Group's financial service businesses are highly capital
intensive, any cash shortfalls of the Group may lead to inadequacy of
funds to support its daily operations and in severe cases, bankruptcy,
business expansion failures, reputational damages and stakeholders’
suits. In order to finance the growth of its financial services
businesses and its current strategic expansions, the Group requires
substantial funding resources and a strong capital base. The Group'’s
finance department is responsible to manage its relationship with
banks and other financial institutions and to closely monitor the
Group's cash flow adequacy. To build up its capital base, the
Company completed a rights issue exercise last year which
successfully raised approximately HK$2,840 million. The Group may
consider other fund raising activities, such as share placements, the
issuance of convertible bonds, etc. to strengthen the Group'’s capital
base and bank/other borrowings and trade facilities to improve its
financial position if necessary.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group'’s businesses and investments for the Year were mainly
located in the mainland China, Hong Kong, Europe and Australia. All
domestic operations are transacted in the local currencies, whereas
export sales and imports of raw materials, machineries and
equipment are transacted in foreign currencies. Previously, the
Group was mainly affected by RMB and, AU$ fluctuations, however,
during the Year, the Group was further exposed to the Euro and CHF
exchange rate fluctuations as a result of its acquisition of RPL in
Liechtenstein and HFG Group in Hong Kong.

The Group closely monitors its foreign exchange exposure and would
consider hedging when necessary. Please refer to note 48 to the
financial statements of the annual report for the foreign currency risk
exposures as at the end of the reporting period.

Systems vulnerability and Cyber-attacks

The operation of the Group’s businesses and in particular, its
financial services sector is highly dependent on its trading, data
management and information technology platform. The information
technology landscape of the Group may be vulnerable to a number
of disruptions such as computer viruses and/or cyber-attacks. Such
disruptions may cause data corruption and interruptions, delay or
cessation in the services provided through the Group's securities
trading facilities, exposure of sensitive/confidential information to
unauthorized persons, non-compliance with data privacy
requirements, stolen intellectual properties, etc. During the Year, the
Group has made substantial investment in improving its IT Infrastructure
including enhancing its IT security and protection against cyber-
attacks. The Group has successfully implemented a world class 2-tier
firewall and solutions against Distributed Denial of Service (DDoS)
attacks, etc. The Group also carries out regular reviews on its
compliance with The Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC")
cyber security regulations and provides training on cyber security to
its relevant staff. At the same time, the Group's business continuity
plan is being revised to meet new needs resulting from its rapid
expansion and growth.
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Competitive Risk

In the financial services sector, the Group faces intense competition
from the new e-services that have emerged as a result of the
advancement in technology in recent years. The growing acceptance
of retail investors to these new emerging e-brokerage services has
also added to the competition faced by traditional brokerage
companies. Together, these factors have put immense pressure on
traditional securities brokerage companies, including the Group, to
lower their commission rates.

The healthcare services industry is highly competitive. Even though
the Group's healthcare services are highly specialized and skill-
intensive i.e. in the provision of IVF treatments which caters mainly
to a niche market segment and the Group strives to be the leading
provider in this premium medical services segment, it still faces
competition from other healthcare services providers and specialist
healthcare solutions providers in Hong Kong.

Financial Services Business Related Risks

Market Risk

The Group’s financial services related businesses are exposed to
market risk. The Hong Kong financial markets are directly affected
by, among others, the global and local political, economic and social
environments. Historically, global and local financial markets have
fluctuated considerably over time. Any sudden downturn in these
financial markets may adversely affect the market sentiment in
general.

Settlement Risk

There is a minimum margin deposit for the opening of each futures
contract as required by The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
(the “Futures Exchange”). Clients of the Group are required to
maintain such minimum margin deposit with the Group at all times
as determined by the Futures Exchange. Although the Group is
entitled to close out the futures contract when a client is unable to
meet his/her margin call, in the event that the client’s margin deposit
with the Group is unable to cover the loss arising from closing out of
the futures contract, the Group would be exposed to the risk of not
being able to recover such shortfall from the clients, particularly in
times of a volatile market.
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Credit Risk

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations may be
affected by its ability to maintain and/or improve the quality of its
loan portfolio. Deterioration in the quality of its loan portfolio may
occur due to the general slowdown of the economy. Moreover,
actual or perceived deterioration of the creditworthiness of
borrowers, a slowdown of the economic growth, reduced profitability
or cash flows of corporate borrowers or the unemployment of
individual borrowers, may cause our asset quality to deteriorate and
may lead to significant increases in its allowance for impairment
losses on loans.

The Group normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash deposits as
collateral for providing margin financing to its clients. Margin loans
provided to a client is required to be maintained within the margin
value of his pledged securities, which means the aggregate market
value of his pledged securities after discounts. In the event that a
client is unable to meet a margin call, the Group is entitled to dispose
of the pledged securities and use the sale proceeds thereof towards
repayment of the loan. However, there is a risk that the amount
recovered from the disposal of the pledged securities may fall short
of the outstanding amount of the loan. The Group would suffer a loss
if it fails to recover the shortfall from its clients.

Mother-Infant-Child Investment Related Risks

The Group’s mother-infant-child investment carried out under AYD
Group, is dependent on a number of factors such as the popularity
and strength of the brands it carries, the company’s relationship with
the brand owners, seasonality of sales and its ability to expand its
franchise network.

AYD Group sources products directly from brand owners and the
success of its business is highly dependent on its ability to source
the right brands and the popularity and strength of these brands
which are in turn dependent on customers’ perception of them. AYD
Group has little or no control over the design, production and
marketing of these products which are carried out directly by the
brand owners.

AYD Group's sales are, similar to other retail businesses, affected by
seasonal factors and consumer consumption patterns, most of
which are outside AYD Group’s control.
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AYD Group's ability to expand its franchise network is dependent on
its ability to find suitable franchisees, its ability to negotiate with the
franchisees for competitive franchisee fees and its ability to manage
the relationship with its franchisees going forward. Furthermore,
AYD Group needs to continue to monitor trends in the distribution
channels for mother-infant-child products in China and to make
necessary changes in order to optimize its distribution network. If it
is unable to maintain and further develop its distribution network, its
business will be adversely affected.

Healthcare Investments Related Risks

The Group’s specialized healthcare investments are highly
dependent on its ability to attract and retain highly skilled and
professional medical specialists and embryologists in Hong Kong.
Competition for such skilled and qualified professionals in Hong Kong
is intense as the pool of these specialist doctors and registered
medical practitioners is small. The healthcare investment and its
future growth expansion are dependent on its ability to attract and
retain these specialists and medical practitioners to practice at its
medical centers.

The IVF and diagnostics business is also dependent on the technological
advancements in the IVF treatment technigues, diagnostics techniques
and the investments in these advancements will have an impact the
Group's future performance and competitiveness.

The success of the Group’s healthcare services is also dependent to
a significant extent on the recognition of its brand and reputation as
a reliable and results-proven service provider. Any complaint or
litigation from its clients in relation to the quality or result of services
provided by the Group may adversely affect its reputation or image
and may in turn, materially and adversely affect the demand for its
Services.
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Infant Milk Powder Investment Related Risks

The Group's infant milk powder investment, Blend & Pack faces a
number of key risks and uncertainties such as the market demand
for its customers’ brands of milk powder products, consumers’
perception of and confidence in Australian manufacturers, changes
in the Chinese Government's regulations governing the infant milk
powder industry and the reliability of its highly automated
manufacturing process. As Blend & Pack intends to focus on export
sales to the China market, any regulatory changes in China and in
particular the Certificate and Accreditation Administration of the PRC
(CNCA) or China Food and Drug Administration (CFDA) regulations
and any failure by its three selected brands to be commercially
viable or to penetrate the Chinese market will affect the company’s
financial performance.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate and effective risk management
procedures which enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control
the various types of risks that it faces. This is supplemented by active
management involvement and effective internal controls in the best
interests of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of events after the reporting period are set on in note 54 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by BDO Limited, who
will retire and a resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mason Group Holdings Limited

Ko Po Ming
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

26 March 2019
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The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to protect and enhance the benefits of
shareholders. The Board and senior management of the Company
recognizes their responsibility to maintain the interest of the
shareholders and to enhance their value. The Board also believes a
deliberate policy of corporate governance can facilitate a company
in rapid growth under a healthy governance structure and strengthen
the confidence of shareholders and investors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and integrity, and to ensuring transparent and adequate
levels of disclosure. No corporate governance committee was
established and the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “"CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Board will continue to review
and recommend such steps as appropriate in a timely manner in
order to comply with the requirements of the CG Code.

Throughout the Year, the Company complied with all of the code
provisions set out in the CG Code, save for the deviations from code
provision A.2.1 as explained below.

Provision A.2.1 of CG Code, stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEO") should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ko Po Ming (“Mr. Ko") is
the chairman of the Company and has also carried out the
responsibility of chief executive officer which constitutes a deviation
from the code provision A.2.1. Mr. Ko possesses essential leadership
skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge in the business
of the Group. The daily operation and management of the Company
is monitored by the executive Directors. The Board considers the
present structure more suitable for the Company as it can promote
the efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s
strategies. The current leadership structure facilitates the execution
of the business strategies, decision-making and maximizes the
effectiveness of the Group's operations.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all of the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the requirements as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE
Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise-
wide risk is a priority of the Company. The Company is convinced
that corporate governance and Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance (the “D&O Insurance”) complement each other. The
Company has arranged appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The D&O Insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The board currently comprises ten members, of whom there are five
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and four
independent non-executive Directors namely:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Po Ming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela

Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley

Mr. Cao Lu (appointed on 1 December 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol
Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph (resigned on 2 January 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund

Mr. Wang Cong (appointed on 1 December 2018)
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Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business strategy,
management planning and control of the Company. The
management is responsible for day-to-day management of the
Group. The Directors have accumulated sufficient and valuable
experience to carry out their duties in an efficient and effective
manner. Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors”
on pages 34 to 40 of this annual report. None of the members of the
Board has, in any respect, relation to each other in any
circumstances.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with an induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she has
adequate understanding of the businesses and operations of the
Group. The Directors are also kept informed on a timely basis of their
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules, as well as
other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements. The Company
also encourages its Directors to participate in other continuous
professional development programmes for directors.

All of the Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the
best interests of the Company and the shareholders of the Company.
Other than the statutory duties imposed on each of them, all of the
Directors have exercised due care in monitoring the corporate
matters of the Company and have provided grave concern, sufficient
time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the
Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The chairman is responsible for the management of the Board and
external corporate communication whereas the chief executive is
responsible for the day-to-day operation, among other matters, the
implementation of overall strategy and direction set by the Board.

Mr. Ko is the chairman of the Company and has also carried out the
responsibility of chief executive officer. Mr. Ko possesses essential
leadership skills to manage the Board, providing extensive knowledge
in the business of the Group. The Board considers the present
structure more suitable for the Company because it can promote
efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies.
The current leadership structure facilitates the execution of the
business strategies, decision-making and maximizes the effectiveness
of the Group's operations. The Board recognizes that this constitutes
a deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Non-executive Director

Each of the existing independent non-executive Directors was
appointed for a specific term of 3 years and the non-executive
Director has been appointed with no specific term of office, subject
to retirement and rotation under the Articles of Association of the
Ccompany.

Pursuant to rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors.
Two of the independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received confirmations of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors and considers them to be independent.
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Board Composition EES4AR

The Board has established a set of board diversity policy setting out ZEZ=E€CDHTFTEETSZILLEE  HW<SESFE
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board aiming at enhancing #E&%tibr H#t SEEAE TR N %¥
Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving &4 BEREKBENAFHERE - EEgKE
our business objectives and sustainable development. Board %t ZEBEMAEE @ BEETER K
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including 5l - F# - XL RHBEE S Bk - HELR -
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, — FFEEA - £4E - MALRBEY - E=ZSHH
ethnicity, professional experience, required expertise, skills, MHmZT{tEEFSKEMARK AR ARNEKRE
knowledge and length of service. The current Board consists of a sk o

diverse mix of Board members appropriate to the requirement of the

business of the Company.

Attendance Records
Details of the attendance of the Board members are as follows:

R
BEERBEZHFEHBOT

Meeting Attended/Held During the Year Ended
31 December 2018
HE-Z-\Ft-A=+-HLEEHE ET2eH

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting
EEg ENRZEE §FMZEE REZEES BRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ko Po Ming BERLE 1313 NATER N/ANE A 2/2 2/2
Mr. Chang Tat Joel BEALE 1313 NATER 55  NATER 2/2
Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela RS 13113 N/ATNER N/AT N/AT R 2/2
Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley BXEZL 13/13 N/A 3 A N/ATE N/ARiEF 212
Mr. Cao Lu (appointed on EREER-E-NF 11 N/ATE N/ANE N/ANE 0/0
1 December 2018) +ZA—REZH)
Non-executive Directors ~ JH{TEZ
Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph EERAE 00  NATER N/AE A 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 2 January 2018) (RZ=Z—\F
—AZAEHT)
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol Bt e 10/13 N/ANER 5/5 2/2 112
Independent non-executive B k#HTES
Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can BEREE 12/13 8/9 5/5 212 0/2
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice EBERT 11/13 9/9 5/5 2/2 2/2
Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund  BRIGER% & 13/13 9/9 4/5 212 0/2
Mr. Wang Cong (appointed on  FHA%A(RZE—)\F 1/1 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0

1 December 2018) +-A—BEZT)
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Save for regular board meetings held in 2018, meetings of the
Directors were held to discuss and transact other special businesses.
The Board members are provided with appropriate and sufficient
information in a timely manner to keep abreast of the Group's latest
developments. All businesses transacted at board meetings are
properly documented and recorded.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings of the Company were
voted by way of poll and the announcement on the poll vote results
was made by the Company after the general meetings in the manner
prescribed under rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has arranged and funded suitable trainings, placing
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director. The company secretarial department of the
Company would provide relevant reading materials to the Directors
to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums, or
training courses on relevant topics. During the Year, the Directors of
the Company had provided their records of continuous professional
development to the Company. The Board has reviewed and
monitored the continuous professional development of the Directors.
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The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and  #iE (EhaE) U T RSERXENTHEEY

refreshed by, inter alia, the following means: GBS ES T
Types of
Trainings
EEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ko Po Ming SERLE A
Mr. Chang Tat Joel EEMR A A
Ms. Lui Choi Yiu, Angela Bl L A
Ms. Fu Yau Ching, Shirley BFXBZL A
Mr. Cao Lu EREE B
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Tong Tang, Joseph EELE TEM
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol PR+ A
Independent non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund PR & BR 5 A A
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice Bk e A
Mr. Tian Ren Can &L E A
Mr. Wang Cong FHRASAE B
A attending seminars/courses/conferences in person or by teleconference A HENEREFRAS AR NEBLITARES
in relation to the responsibilities of directors’ of a listed company, EF CETAHRESSTENNHTe 3
corporate governance and regulatory updates i e
B: orientation and training of newly-appointed directors B: BT EE MR
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 28 June 2005. The written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee were formulated and
were adopted by the Company in compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and were revised on 29 March 2012 and 18
December 2015.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among others, are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditor

@)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to act as the key representative for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” shall include any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed,
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Review of the Company’s financial information

©)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. In reviewing
these reports before submission to the Board, the Audit
Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices,

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding (e) above: (i) members of the Audit Committee
should liaise with the Board and senior management and the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company’s auditor; and (ii) the Audit Committee should
consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by the
Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and compliance function or the auditor;

Oversight of the Company'’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems

®

/2

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or by
the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function;

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018
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(®)

to consider any findings of major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and the management’s response
to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness,

to review the group'’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and the management’s response,

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters and the Audit Committee is to ensure proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund (chairman)
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong
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During the Year, the Audit Committee met nine times with the
external auditor and/or representatives of the management of the
Company. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 with the external auditors and reviewed
the Company’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2018. The Audit Committee also reviewed and discussed the
internal control necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Audit Committee submitted its
views and recommendations on the Group’s financial statements to
the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 28 June 2005. The
written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee were
formulated and were adopted by the Company in compliance with
the code provision in the CG Code and was revised on 18 December
2015.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others,
are:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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(f)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive,

(@ toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h)  toensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

() when the occasion arises, to advise shareholders on how to
vote with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules; and

() to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four independent non-executive Directors, one executive Director
and one non-executive Director, namely:

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (chairman)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong

The Remuneration Committee held five meetings in 2018 to review
and assess the performance and remuneration of the Directors, to
review the proposed remuneration packages of the new Directors
and their terms of service and to make recommendations to the
Board.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee of the Company annually.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 of the
consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the Year, the remuneration of senior management is listed as
below by band:

EEHM

EEMOAKRRENRERGIAE - RtBlE B
EEELEBERONE  BERKRBEURAEHE
EEMETE - N EEHMNEARAFHNEE
BEFEMN  EEHWNFBRNREVBRE
Pz -

=R EE B M
REFE  =REEBZRGESSNEH M
™

No. of person A

HK$5,000,000 and below 5,000,000 % 7T & AT 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 5,000,001 7t & 10,000,000 %5 7T 2
HK$10,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 10,000,001 7 7T 2 15,000,000 7% 7T -
HK$15,000,001 to HK$20,000,000 15,000,001 78 7T 2 20,000,000 7% 7T 1

The senior management are also the executive Directors of the
Ccompany.

Nomination Committee and Policy

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012. The
written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee was
formulated and was adopted by the Company in compliance with the
code provision in the CG Code and was revised on 18 December
2015 and 26 March 2019.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee, among others, are:

(@  to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;
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to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

to review the board diversity policy of the Company
periodically, as appropriate, and review the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

where the Nomination Committee proposes a resolution to
elect an individual as an independent non-executive director at
the general meeting, to advise the Board setting out in the
circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected and
the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

Il. if the proposed independent non-executive director will
be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the Board believes the individual would

still be able to devote sufficient time to the Board;

. the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

IV.  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board,

to consider other topics as defined by the Board.
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When considering candidates for the nomination and
appointment as Directors, the Nomination Committee aims to:

— ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company; and

— there will be continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level.

The nomination and appointment process is carried out strictly
in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s terms of
reference, the articles of association of the Company and all
applicable rules and regulations.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following factors would be considered:

— Diversity in all aspects with reference to the Diversity
Policy of the Board.

— Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

— Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and diversity.

— Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company's business and succession plan and where
applicable, as may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

Notwithstanding that the Board has delegated its responsibilities
and authority for selection and appointment of directors of the
Company to the Nomination Committee of the Company, the
ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of directors
of the Company rests with the entire Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
four independent non-executive Directors, one executive Director
and one non-executive Director, namely:

Mr. Ko Po Ming (chairman)
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

Mr. Chen Wai Chung, Edmund
Mr. Wang Cong

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2018 to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, to make
recommendations to the Board on the new appointments and the
re-elections of Directors and to review the composition of the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY

Directors’ and Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements and believe that these
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs
and of its results. The Board has adopted appropriate accounting
policies and made proper estimates for the preparation of financial
statements. The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in
preparing the financial statements for the financial year of 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the Company with effect
from 4 January 2018 and BDO Limited (“BDQ") was appointed as
auditor of the Company on 4 January 2018 to fill the casual vacancy
so arising. There has been no other change in auditor of the
Company in the past three years. BDO is subject to reappointment
as independent auditor of the Group at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. It is the auditor’s responsibility to
form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Company and for
no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
independent auditor’s report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditor of the Company, BDO and reviewing any non-
audit services performed by the BDO. During the Year, the
subsidiaries of the Group engaged external auditors to perform audit
and provide non-audit services, other than BDO. The remunerations
paid to the external auditors for the provision of services are set out
as follows:

B BEm
BESTMEBAERRREBERNR AXE
B B -Z2-NF-ANBARERREBILER
SEAMEBRERAANTLIERERD N -Z
—NF—AHBEZRERADRIZEEAED - LB
FREANRISZER - ARFRHBENBE=FIL
BHMEY - JERFARARAEERRBSF
RELENZERAEEB I ZEEN - ZEEIH
BEEDREBEEZTHENGER  BZFUWHRE
BRBUBR - WEMARRERS - TAIAE
Hib ik - XA T S B I X BEI RS A
B HEMEMALAERFAEEE -

ERZERAEFI AR RIMNEREMLERS
ZAEan RAmEt AR SR 2 E A PERBURTS
RAFE » AEEWB AR ZBILERSIAIN
HSN L RN E TR A RIRHIEES IR - B M
SNEEAZ BB ST ) AR IS BN 2 # PN a0 T

HK$'000
TET

Audit services % B AR TS
— BDO Limited — AR EEREFMEBAR AR 2,380
— Other Auditors — H bz BAm 2,382
Non-audit services IERZ RS 18,424
23,186

The non-audit services during the Year provided by external auditors
were included interim review, IFRS 9, 15 and 16 implementation and
conversion services, due diligence and advisory services for mergers
and acquisition transactions, internal audit review, risk management
policy review and tax advisory services.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit
committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight and corporate governance roles in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls, and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

The Board has defined and endorsed the enterprise risk
management policy, to align risk management objectives and
strategies of the organization, to ensure necessary resources are
allocated to risk management and to assign accountabilities and
responsibilities at appropriate level within the organization. The
Financial Services Platform Risk Committee (the "Risk Committee”)
was set up under the Executive Committee, which comprises the
executive Directors (the “Executive Committee”) for management
of the enterprise top risks and operational risks in the financial
services segment and the Executive Committee continues owning
the risks in non-financial services segment. Both committees assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in the review of the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis. The Directors through the Audit Committee are kept
regularly apprised of significant risks that may impact on the Group's
performance.

JoR e T T % 0 R B A
EreRREAEEASERREIERAMEE

RO WERERZ e P BFHEARILET
—REZ - BREZBEHPEEIRTHERER

CEEMEE REAEENME  2E& -

B BREERABEEARIBEEREA

TZHRBE

AN
=
E3

-
37|
|:|

EFECATURACLAREREE - AR
RREEAERABERE BRADREES K
RAHERE - CREENREE K EHRBE R
B mMTEEAROBTEEE (HTES
B TR4RRETFLEREES (ARESR
&) NEEGCLSSEBE RSB BANE

2R TR ESEEAEIFSRRIALIN
Rk - ITREERERREFERRZESH

PEFERERZRETREER 5’¢%V¢’§lﬂ
REEMAMEZERGNERE - BEXEZES
Eﬂfﬂi%%%ﬂ—lﬁ‘é%; REBXRBHEXRR

81

EREEZRERATF / 2018 FEHRE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELAWE

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee is delegated by the Executive Committee to
oversee the Group’s enterprise risk management framework and to
keep track of the Group’s top risks mitigation status. The Risk
Committee members include the Group’s executive Directors, senior
management, head of risk management, function heads and
business heads. In 2018, the Group defined its enterprise top risks
and respective governance committees as follows:

Business Transformation Risk
Liquidity Risk

Regulatory Compliance
Cyber-Attacks

Crisis Management

SIEFCENS

The Group’s risk governance structure adopts a “Three Lines of
Defence” model with oversight and directions from the Board, which
entails accountabilities and responsibilities across the organization.
The Group operates a risk governance model to effectively identify
and manage risk.

Risk management systems have been embedded into the core
operating practices of the Group’s business under the 1st Line of
Defence owning the risk identification and management
responsibility. On an ongoing basis, the respective operating units
are responsible for the day-to-day operations and risk management.
Each of these respective operating units will review and assess the
status of potential risks which may impact their ability to achieve
their business objectives. This review process includes assessment
as to whether the existing system of internal controls continues to
remain relevant, adequately addresses potential risks, and/or should
be supplemented. The results of these reviews are recorded in the
risk control self-assessment for monitoring purpose and the
respective operation units need to provide a confirmation to the 2nd
Line of defence on the effectiveness of these systems. Internal Audit
function being the 3rd line of defence reports to the Audit
Committee. It provides independent assurance to the Group that the
risks associated with the Group’s business and operations have been
identified and an effective system of controls over these risks is in
place and is working as intended.
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Three Lines of Defence
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The Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's risk
management approach, policy and framework. The Risk Committee
co-ordinates enterprise risk management activities, reviews
significant aspects of risk management for the Group, and reports to
the Executive Committee at each regularly scheduled meeting
regarding the significant risks of the Group and the appropriate
mitigation and/or transfer of identified risks. The risk owners/internal
control owners identify, analyze, prioritize and monitor their own
risks, and report such risk management activities to Risk Committee
on a regular basis. Proper escalation mechanism with well-defined
threshold and tolerance level is communicated to the risk owners.
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This mandates a consistent and effective approach applied across
the Group to manage the risks associated with its business and
operations. Below table illustrates the key process adopted under
the enterprise risk management policy.

R ARECERREERRRANIZRIE -

Description

Outcome
B mR

The Risk Committee and the chief investment officer of the e
Group should determine the scope and extent of the risk
assessment process (i.e. risk identification, analysis and
evaluation) based on the context of the organisation’s key e
operation areas including new services and activities
which may impact the Group’s strategy and objectives.
The scope would then determine the relevant participants
required for the subsequent risk assessment process.

1. Establish context
[TV

Quarterly update by
business head on new
services and activities
EBKBEETEERN
FTIE AR KOEED

SHBHETARRES S RAEER A BERRE AR
TEELE (R TAY E AR BB R B SR

BRES) EERR G RIZNBEREZE (BIERES -
DT REHE) - BESHERETERERRFEBEMFED
S EE -

2. Risk identification
[ Be2 & A

The risk owners are responsible to identify the risks e
relevant to the scope determined. It should be noted that e
only events that might prevent or delay the achievement

of the Group’s strategy and objectives would constitute as
risks to the organisation. All risks identified will be plotted
into the Group's risk universe.
EfEREEaERTHCETHEEHENRER - BHE
EBTRMAILSEEERASESRREENEHESE
HABEKERR - BB ERBBEE D ZEXREER
Crerleit

Group risk universe
e vbed
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Stage
Eig 3

3. Risk analysis
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4. Risk evaluation
[B\ B FEAE

5. Risk treatment and
monitoring
[2\ B B IR K BE S

Description

8

The Risk Committee is responsible to review and propose
group top risks to be included in the group risk register.
The risk owners are then responsible to analyse the root
causes and consequences for each individual risk
identified to be included in the detailed group risk register.
These risks are to be consolidated into its relevant
category to provide a holistic view across the operations.

lﬁ
FOES

SLEE
=ER

[ e B R 11 o ) (B L B

R & prEE AT

BEFEMRHEIASERRECMFHE
B AR BB 1R B B DT REE R 5IA

NFEA
R AREMER - %%
N RMHBEE S ERRE -

Based on the root causes and consequences for each risk
stated in the detailed group risk register, the risk owners
should identify the existing controls that have been put in
place to mitigate them. Subsequently, the risk owners
should evaluate these risks based on the risk parameters
in order to plot the risks into the relevant cell within the

ente

rprise risk heat map.
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Risk owners should determine whether additional controls
should be planned and implemented. The risk owners
should also consider establishing key risk indicators
(if needed) for these risks for monitoring purpose.
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Group risk register with
the assessment of
inherent risk level
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Enterprise risk heat
map after assessment
of control effectiveness
to conclude the residual
risk level
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Appropriate policies and procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that key risks are identified, assessed and
managed within the defined risk tolerance level. Through such a
systematic approach, assets are safeguarded against improper use
or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

During the Year, besides internal audit activities conducted by the
Group's internal audit function, the Board engaged an external
consultant to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
in certain business and back office functions of the Group with
primary focus on compliance with laws and regulations of fund
management and money lending business, corporate governance
and IT general control. The assessment results and proposed
improvement opportunities were discussed and agreed with
management and were reported to the Audit Committee. The Board
considers the above-mentioned risk management and internal
control systems of the Group during the Year are effective and
adequate.

Company Secretary

According to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company secretary of
the Company has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Enquiries

Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board or put forward
proposals relating to the operations, strategy and/or management of
the Group to be discussed at shareholders’” meetings. Shareholders’
enquiries or proposals can be directed in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the registered office or by
email to info@masonhk.com.

Meetings

Pursuant to article 69 of the Articles of Association of the Company
and Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
shareholder(s) of the Company holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company may request the Board of Directors of
the Company to convene a general meeting by way of depositing a
written request at the registered office of the Company or by email
to info@masonhk.com. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the related requisition which must be authenticated by the
requisitionist(s).

Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s) of
the Company holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights or
not less than 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting may request the Company
to give notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting by way of depositing a written
notice authenticated by the requisitionist(s) at the registered office of
the Company or by email to info@masonhk.com not less than six
weeks before the meeting. The notice shall contain a description of
the proposed resolution desired to be put forward at the meeting,
the reasons for such proposal and any material interest of the
proposing shareholder(s) in such proposal.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy
The Board adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy to ensure
that Shareholders can timely and equally access to reasonable and
understandable information of the Company and such policy is
regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

B2 RFER

&EH

REAREARREAE EFwms AEE 2 5
KHER/LEBENESSELEARREER
Rz ERARBRABNFMPFEETARFE
Eg oA el E sk EE = info@masonhk.com °

=]

RN TSI B 69 16 K 5 622 F 1 T 5
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5% 2 RAAIBB M AR A Z M F L EE
Zinfo@masonhk.comiE 22 £®E 23k 2 ;7 X A&
RAEFCERBARERE - HEEERE
BR2ERKALHE 2 BEE KRR -

BB RFHEPIE 61515 - HARZREHTIORN
25% 2 ANAFMRE » D R0E B ERBSF
ARERABERENRR IR TDRARERINE
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EEBREZAXNERARTELATRZAE L5
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HRAE LREZEBABZRZFE BEER
ZIEHMEZRERNEEEZEN AWEA L -

MR ERBABER

BEEGRMAITVBIABOR - URERBCRAE R &
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POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board has adopted a policy on payment of dividends (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Board takes into account the following
factors when considering the declaration of interim dividends and
proposing the payment of final dividends for the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders:

() financial results of the Group;

(i) general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

(i) capital requirements of the Group;

(iv)  possible effects on the Company’s creditworthiness;

(v)  the Company’s shareholders’ interests;

(vi)  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board will from time to time review the Dividend Policy and
approve any revisions from time to time that may be required to
ensure the effectiveness of the Dividend Policy.

INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company's website (www.masonhk.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the
Company to the shareholders of the Company, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website information
from time to time to inform the shareholders and investors of the

latest development of the Company.

During the Year, no change was made to the constitutional documents
of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company committed to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures and
awareness in our daily business operations. Our Group encourages
environmental protection and promote awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees. The Group adheres to
the principle of recycling and reducing. It implements green office
practices such as double-sided printing and copying, setting up
recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance.
The Group is also using office equipment carrying energy label issued
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department which save
energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of our Group’s businesses to move
towards adhering the 4Rs — Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace
and enhance environmental sustainability.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) report (“ESG Report”) to provide an overview of
the Group’s management on significant issues affecting the operation,
and the performance of the Group in terms of environmental and
social aspects. This ESG Report is prepared by the Group with the
professional assistance of APAC Compliance Consultancy and
Internal Control Services Limited.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules — “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” and has complied with “comply or explain” provision in the
Listing Rules.

This ESG Report summarises the performance of the Group in
respect of corporate social responsibility, covering its operating
activities which are considered as material by the Group — (i)
financial services business in Hong Kong; (ii) wealth and asset
management business and related services in Hong Kong and
Europe; and (iii) franchisor of mother-infant-child products in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). With the aim to optimise and
improve the disclosure requirements in the ESG Report, the Group
has taken initiative to formulate policies, record environmental data,
and implement monitoring measures.

Reporting Period
This ESG Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is a health and wealth solutions service conglomerate. It
principally provides comprehensive financial services in Hong Kong,
including dealing in securities, commodities broking, provision of
securities margin financing, provision of investment and corporate
finance advisory services, investment in securities trading, money
lending and investment holding.

To seize opportunities and respond to possible challenges that may
arise, the Group will continue to promote its “Health + Wealth”
parallel strategy for its development, at the same time it also
endeavours to be an environment-friendly organisation and to fulfil
its responsibilities to the environment and community, whilst
maintaining its position as a global service provider.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have
invested or will invest in the Group; (b) influence the decision making
within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the
potential to be affected by the impact of the Group's activities,
products, services and relationships. It allows the Group to
understand risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship with
each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group'’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.
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The Group acknowledges the importance of information gained from  RNEBEMERZHERRE R LEARED
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the  EBEBRIFEMTIMESZELEEEE - A
Group's business activities. The Group has identified key S£BEEHEERMEBHEREZOE REEVS
stakeholders that are important to our business and established  f@E@EEE - TREMANEBNEBREDE RS
various channels for communication. The following table provides an  &@# 5 « B MEENF 4 MERA R
overview of the Group's key stakeholders, and various platforms and

methods of communication are used to reach, listen and respond.

Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels
& BEE1E SHERE
Government and — Comply with the laws and regulations — On-site inspections and checks
regulatory authorities =~ — Proper tax payment — Research and discussion through work
B REEKE — Promote regional economic conferences, work reports preparation
development and employment and submission for approval
— Annual reports and announcements
— Company website
— EERRERER — BERERRE
— IEEWMH — EBTIESHE  LIERSHRERER
— REMELCEERRERRE HEEFTIR T AR
— FEmERASE
— REIHELL
Shareholders and — Protection of interests and fair — Annual general meeting and other
Investors treatment of shareholders shareholder meetings
BRRERERESE — Annual reports and announcements
— Newsletter

— Meeting with investors and analysts
— Company website and Stock Exchange

— RERTHSRATHHEER — BRBFEAR KBRS
— FERERAE
— B

— BEREERSMEVEHE
— REHEh K32 P
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Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels

& BEEE SHERE

Employees — Safeguard the rights and interests of ~— Meetings and conferences

== employees — Trainings, seminars, briefing sessions
— Working environment — Entertainment
— Career development opportunities — Intranet, emails, circulars and manuals

— Self-actualisation
— QOccupational health and safety
— Staff remuneration, benefits and well-

being
— RIEEEBRER RF = — ERRENRE
— ITERIR — EI - HEe - mhe
— BETRME — SUREE)
— BHER — NEE - B - BERRFM
— BERRERZD

— BIHM M REH

Financial Institutions — Annual reports and announcements
SR — FEHRERAE
Media — Company website
R — Press release
— REIHEL
— E
Public and communities = — Social responsibilities — Volunteering
ABRRHEE — HEgEAF — Charity
— ERES
— ®EE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group FEiBHERHEN —RBR - AEETRIFHED
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The EAZEREE - BESHORESAEEEMELE R
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed — FAZEDRE - I B B 4FsthaT b R BB HILEAH
decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting impact. 2
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The content of this ESG Report is based on the best-practice
recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules) and the GRI Guidelines.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

o Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

o The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on
the importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement
o The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG area
identified above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: validation — Determining Material Issues

o Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured all the key and material ESG areas, which is important
to the business development, were reported and in compliance
with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2018, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Emissions

The Group's business bears low impact on air and carbon emissions.
Throughout the Year, the Group fully complied with all of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in the countries and regions
where we operated, and no concluded cases regarding emissions
brought against the Group were noted. The Group promotes
environmental stewardship throughout our business ecosystem by
introducing a number of measures to enhance the environmental
protection awareness among its employees, encouraging them to
develop environment-friendly working habits and to take action in
protecting the precious environment.

Air Pollutants Emission

Air pollutants emission control is essential for mitigating the impact
on the environment and protecting the health of employees. No
substantial emissions are produced of any fuels in daily operation.
The Group's air pollutants are mainly generated from the mobile
sources.

In view of business expansion in wealth and asset management
segment and increase in revenue generated from franchisor and
retail of mother-infant-child products, an increase in fuel
consumption of vehicle was incurred. It in turn led to significant
increase in air pollutant emission in 2018. During the reporting
period, the detail of air pollutants emission of the Group is as follows:

Financial
services

Air Pollutants business

TREKEE MEREEEE

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg 39.23
A1 A (NOy) T
Particular matter (PM) kg 3.76
kL (PM) F=
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) kg 0.10
—Z &b (SO, T

Wealth
and asset
management

128.43

1.32

0.05

REEHE

23567
AEBEBHERRBI NP ER ) - AEH
WAEE TS BFREIEANEE R R it 2R
SRR ARAR  WESRA MY AL
BRI EFENHIRRL - AREBB— RS
FEIENIRS B THRREH - HRERMER
HELRRFNRRRETE  SWETEMRR
RO TIEREY BRRERTHRETENRE -

ZER5RMBEN
ERSAMPE BRI REIRREE RRERE
REEHER ANAKERARL2EPLEES
REMBHW - REBZERSRYEZRIRN
MER

ENMERBEEEEDMNRBES RIS TEE
REEHBREERELMRAEN  FAit - =H
FEMEAREN EMEH_FT—\FERSR
MHRERBILI - RIM|EHA - FEBEHER
BRMPERFEAT

Franchisor
of mother-
infant-child
products
BEEEM
B EER

277.91 445.57 129.54

29.68 34.76 12.65

25.08 25.23 6.39
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emission

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community as it
affects our daily life. GHG is considered as one of the major
contributors to the climate change and global warming. The Group
tackles the GHG emission by lowering the energy consumption.
Policies and procedures (as mentioned in the section “Use of
Resources”) to encourage energy saving have been incorporated
throughout the operations in order to reduce the carbon footprint.
No GHG emission are generated through stationary sources as the
Group is not engaged in any industrial production. During the
reporting period, our GHG emission scope 1 and 2 mainly came from
mobile combustion and purchased electricity. Same as that
mentioned in “Air Pollutant Emission”, the significant increase in GHG
emission is mainly attributable to the business expansion in wealth
and asset management segment and increase in revenue generated
from franchisor and retail of mother-infant-child products. The detail
of GHG emission of the Group during the reporting period is as
follows:

BERE(DRERE ) K
RIRECFERMNBELE  EMEHZ 4t
BHORT - AEREBRRASRIEE(CRBRE
RHMERREZ — - AREE B KRB ER
RBEREHNER - NEEREHIEBR R
RF(ATERMA] —&d) SEE LR
R BRBEIR - AR AS B EEFEMNITRE
E A EBBEESREELEREREN
B e MEIERA - AR EREINEE1 %2
TERRRBEMERINEE S - B[ ZR)TH
W] Pl E — B0 R EREEINE RRIE N
DEBRRUEREEEED RORBERAKL
FHEERTERREEMELMNRAZ IR
B RBEHAAKENREEREBHERFRD
T~

Franchisor
Financial Wealth of mother-
services and asset infant-child
GHG Emission’ business  management products
BEREE BEBEER
REREHER SRR R BE BTEER
Scope 1? tonnes of 18.91 2.08 454.35 475.34 140.89
CO,€
EERE yN )
tixEE
Scope 2° tonnes of 243.65 0.01 1,840.61 2,084.27 2,315.37
CO,€
#i[E 2 yN )
tixEE
Total GHG emission tonnes of 262.56 2.09 2,294.96 2,559.61 2,456.26
CO,€
BERBASENE N
tixEE

BRERBIMDERNREREREEN [DXS
FHRHREEA | FHE -

! The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the °
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas

protocol.

2 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by 2 FE R E AR B A SR8 SOR ) BB
the Group. W e

3 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by 3 HE? : REAREEFEFEIINES HOOMEBEN -
the Group.
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Franchisor
Financial Wealth of mother-
services and asset infant-child
GHG Emission' business  management products
BEREE BEBEER
RERE SRR 2R BB BEER
GHG intensity tonnes of 0.0360 0.0002 0.5737 Financial:
CO,-e/m? 0.15
Franchisor:
0.50
REREERE F¥EFK R
YN ) 0.15
EiRE S FrEEn
0.50
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes BERBERY

The Group recognizes the importance of waste reduction. Waste
management measures have been introduced to minimize the
amount of waste generated and the impact on the environment. The
Group does not generate hazardous waste, under its business
operation nature, during the reporting period.

For non-hazardous waste, the waste is mainly generated from daily
office operation, storeroom and retail stores. The Group takes
initiative to reduce waste by implementing different measures. The
Group has engaged qualified recycling companies to collect and
handle the waste in accordance to the Waste Disposal Ordinance.
For office, the Group promotes the idea of “green office” by
introducing more paperless solutions in its daily operations to reduce
the volume of paper and printed materials used. The Group
introduces knowledge on environmental protection to all employees
and encourages them to consider environmental-friendly printing
such as double-sided printing and copying. The Group also
encourages employees to reuse single sided non-confidential print
out. On top of that, the Group actively promotes the use of email to
replace traditional mails. Email is used among staff whenever
possible. The Group has also replaced most fax machines with e-fax.
All these measures are geared at reducing waste such as paper
waste which can help mitigate the global greenhouse effect as well.
Recycling bags are available for paper collection. All paper boxes,
paper, newspaper and magazines are collected for recycling
purpose. Besides, notices are posted in the pantries to remind staff
to use less paper cups. The significant increase in paper recycling
rate in 2018 was mainly due to the effective implementation of green
office policy which in turns helped to reduce the burden on landfill.
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MHNERE - ARERE2BE TNARRKRHA
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FNHEEN - REM s EN 8 TEREAIEREEH
MEEITH - ERAEENE - AEBERGREN
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In addition, the Group also encourages the use of electronic means o) - AEE RS ENE BHAULFEREF R E
to communicate with the shareholders of the Company through its AR FIREEER o
website.

The Group takes effort to reduce wastes in our business operation 752 E%% /155 ) 2 15 48 1B 12 7 A A4 HRE W30 DA
and handles wastes in an environmental-friendly way. These wastes — IR{RF RNERIRREY) - ZSBEWED FHFERLER
are separately stored and handled for record. The increase in non-  LAEREEER - —E— \FEHNEZEYEIZMN - K
hazardous waste amount in 2018 was also mainly attributable tothe ZEmRMENEEEREBELETHEENTER
increase in wealth and asset management business and revenue S EERELEMNWZIEIN - REERHRE HHEE
generated from franchisor and retail of franchisor of mother-infant-  £®EE®WT :

child products. The wastes generated by the Group during the

reporting period are as follows:

Franchisor
Financial Wealth of mother-
services and asset infant-child
Wastes disposal business  management products
BEBESER
B SRREEE HEREEEE BHEEE
Hazardous wastes tonnes - - - - 0.72
BERED N
Hazardous wastes tonnes/m? - - - - 0.0073*

produced intensity
PREH B EEYRE Ny

Non-hazardous tonnes 17.40 4.62 31.20 53.22 46.20
wastes produced
PITEE ) REY) N
Non-hazardous wastes tonnes/m? 0.0024 0.0003 0.0078 Financial:
produced intensity N/A®
Franchisor:
0.0073
FrIEAMNBEEEYRE AWE/ TRl
7K TERA®
KT
0.0073

4 Hazardous wastes were generated by provision of medical and  * BEEDEE_Z—+FRENZRIERER

laboratory services business segment only in 2017. BEBIHESE -

5 “N/A”" refers to “not available”. The non-hazardous waste amount was ~ ° INAIETTER] - BEEMETEANR-S
not available for both financial services segment and wealth and asset —tFNERBBEI BRI EREEETRER D
management business segment in 2017. 7 o
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Financial Wealth
Non-hazardous services and asset
wastes recycled business management
BERYERRER SRBKEE HEREEEE
Paper tonnes 2.24
i NI

Use of Resources

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business. The Group
attaches great importance to efficient utilisation of resources by
introducing various measures. It understands that staff participation
is the key to achieve such goals. As a part of such effort, green leafy
plants are used as one of the office decorations to provide a green
and lively working environment. The Group strives to build up a
working environment that emphasises the “Environmental 4Rs”,
which consists of Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace.

Energy

The Group promotes the concept of energy saving and emission
reduction into the entire process of its development and operation.
In the meantime, the Group puts effort to promote energy saving
awareness among its staff by posting related reminders or messages
through emails, recommending them to switch off all the lights,
computers and printers by the end of the work day. The Group
encourages all of its employees to set their computers to sleep-
mode automatically when left idle for a certain period of time.
Printers and copiers are also set to sleep-mode automatically for the
computers. Receptionists are responsible for turning off lights and all
the electronic appliances after meetings. Notices are posted in the
office to remind staff to turn off light before leaving office. Air-
conditioners are set within a reasonable range of around 25.5
degrees Celsius. During lunch time, air-conditioners in the office area
are switched off. Under these measures, it is believed that less
electricity will be consumed.

1.98

Franchisor
of mother-
infant-child

products
BEEER
BETEERE

- 4.22 1.04

ERA A
FEBRRERE/THENEEFLENER
M E D - AREREERY BEBSIARER
Eﬁ TRERNSAAAE - ARERREINSH

ERELRRNER - ERAB NN B - &
%Tﬁ%%&?ﬁﬁ'mﬁ#"*ﬁ’] Sz — - RIARRH—
AR RN TIERE - AEER N EL—1E
SR [IRIRAR] W TAEIRE - BDEBRREE - B -
BRERMERK -

BEIR
AEBEEHERIEELYHEERRNERRE
EMEEBIE - RS AREEEFEAHEMA
MRRENESELEBNIRITETHSHEER 12
BEE T4 MR I ERAMANE - ERAMITE]
o REBRBAMEEITERAERRERS
BERRN - STERRENETREREMNE
PERRKRN - BHEABRARNGREAME LA
BER ERAZTRUETRESTIHARAE
RIEE - ZHREEDS5ELANSBRHEN -
FERE - SERRARANER - EELEE
T REREERELINES -
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In order to keep pace with the market trends, the Group regularly
upgrades its existing facilities such as replacing outdated computers,
phones and other electrical appliances to meet the needs of our
customers and enhance operational efficiency. The Group adheres
to environmental protection and waste reduction principles for its
upgrading processes, and reuses existing facilities and materials
wherever possible, so as to reduce waste. Meanwhile, it also actively
uses eco-friendly equipment for any replacement. During the
reporting period, purchased electricity was our major energy
consumption source for daily office operation. The steady drop in
electricity consumption in 2018 reflected our success in
implementation of energy saving measures. On the other hand, the
significant increase in petrol and diesel consumption in 2018 was
mainly attributable to the increase in wealth and asset management
business and overseas financial services business. Moreover, the
revenue generated from franchisor and retail of mother-infant-child
products also contributed to the increase in petrol and diesel
consumption. The detail of energy consumption of the Group is
summarised as follows:

RTREMSBE  AEETHARRERNE
FlanE B BN - FRMAMERS - UM
BEFMFRTARBELUEX - EFFRBRF A
SERFRBEEMRDEDRR - B EHE
EERRENREHME - URDIRE - HIE[F
B - EREEE SRR ERRREE - RREHRHE
SNEENRBEMAERAZEENTEERER
R —E— \FREEBF TRRREMKINE
MEENREEE e Z— A - —T— \F TR R
HREERBIEMDERANMEREEETEER
AR BN BRI ETEIRRPTE o HN - HFFHE
BRTEREEEMESNWAE ISR
RECHBREER N - NEEERBREF BB
T~

Franchisor
Financial Wealth of mother-
services and asset infant-child
Energy consumption business  management products
BEREE BEEER
BEFE SRR B R WNRTEER
Purchased electricity MWh 320.78 - 2,736.80 3,057.58 3,383.96
SNEB JEEL B
Petrol MWh 61.87 - 1,680.15 1,742.02 525.91
YR KBS
Diesel MWh - 86.67 186.81 273.48 37.48
Lo I ELBF
Towngas MWh - 3.12 - 3.12 -
RRAMAR KBS
Total MWwh 382.65 89.79 4,603.76 5,076.20 3,947.35
st KBS
Energy intensity Mwh/m? 0.05 0.01 1.15 Financial:
0.20
Franchisor:
0.83
EEEES IR -
SRR 0.20
RITEEH
0.83
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Water

Water is another important natural resources. Regarding water
consumption for financial services business, the water supply is
solely controlled and centrally managed by the property
management company of our Hong Kong office premises. In this
case, it is not feasible for the Group to provide water consumption

v/

KES—RBEENBARAER - REmRBEBD
FREME  HKBERMOEERRZNMEE
BRABEREHREFRERE - REERT - BR
EAPAREEMW /D RCOEAKE - B ARE
EREEKEHBUTIE - AEBEBREER

data as there is no sub-meter for individual office unit to record %=  AF R E R MEBEMEBRBEIRINE
water usage. The Group raises the employees’ awareness of water
saving through posting notices in pantries, washrooms and other
communication channels. In this year, the water usage slightly
decreased compared with that in 2017. During the reporting period,
the water consumption of our Group is as follows:

TEKER - AFE > AKEBR T —LFBHK
WA RIEHRE - AEENFKENT

Wealth Franchisor
Financial and asset of mother-
services management infant-child
business services products
BEREE BEEER
Rl R 275 EE R BTEER
Total water m3 - 550.00 48,568.75 49,118.75 51,8451
consumption
HMIEKE SR
Water intensity ms3/m? N/A* 0.04 12.14 Financial:
N/A*
Franchisor:
12.47
TKEE SNAKS TER TR
TR TEA
RArEE
12.47
The Environment and Natural Resources RIERBRER

The Group’s financial services, wealth and asset management
business, and franchising of mother-infant-child products has no
significant impact on the environment. The Group reviews its
environmental policy from time to time and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
Group’s business operation in order to enhance environmental
sustainability.

AEENESRRE  VEREEEEEB AL
HREHREERURBETEEAYE - AEH
TR ERERE - AEEBRNAEENE
B ETE— P ERIRRERRECE - AINSRER
SRR o
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group pays special attention to its employees’ rights and strictly
complies with the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage
Ordinance, and other relevant regulations. Employment contract
terms are in accordance with the Employment Ordinance or any
other applicable regulations. During the reporting period, there was
no non-compliance related to applicable employment laws and
regulations. Any changes of employment terms will be notified to
staff and agreed in writing to protect the lawful rights and interests
of all employees.

The Group recognises that the most valuable asset is its employees,
hence, it treats its employees fairly based on a series of standardised
internal policies and procedures in a proactive manner. The Group
updates and improves these policies and procedures regularly by
taking into consideration the health and well-being of its employees.
All employees are kept abreast of any updated policies and practices
through emails, and details are also available from the Human
Resources Department.

In respect of the Group’s hiring process, objective basis for
judgement during interviews is detailed in the interview assessment
form, which contains key qualifications and requirements to allow
the hiring manager to comprehensively assess the suitability of the
candidates and to avoid risks of discrimination or bias.

Apart from the usual job advertisements, job openings will also be
offered to all qualified employees with good performance so as to
promote career advancement among employees. The Group
promotes fair competition among employees and all employees have
equal opportunities for promotion. Consistent criteria will be applied
for assessing both internal and external candidates regardless of
age, sex, race, national origins or physical disabilities to ensure fair
judgment and avoid any risk of favouritism or discrimination.
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The Group has established a sound performance appraisal and
promotion mechanism, under which outstanding employees will be
recognised through various means such as remuneration, bonus,
incentives and other benefits, as well as promotion, so as to
recognise their contribution and encourage them to keep up their
good performance. Under such recognition system, annual
performance appraisals are used for evaluating employees’ capability
and potential to take up more responsibilities in a higher position.
The evaluation of individual's work performance will be agreed
among managers and their subordinates. Employees are encouraged
to discuss their progress towards their career goals. Besides,
objectives are set for the forthcoming period so as to optimise their
potential and development. All employees are able to get a fair
promotion and receive career improvement recommendations from
their managers. The appraisal is also a channel for considering the
needs of training and compensation review.

The Group has set up a well-developed job grading system to
differentiate the levels of employees, and has established a fair
compensation program for each level of job position. The Group
endeavours to offer its employees competitive remuneration which
is in line with the market trends. In order to understand the market,
pay structure and salary benchmarking evaluation is conducted each
year by the human resources department. A number of reliable
salary surveys are selected from professional bodies and recruitment
agencies to provide up-to-date salary data for the annual review of
salary and reward system.

The Group’s management attaches great importance to the needs
and opinions of its employees. There are different means for the
employees to communicate with the management, this can maintain
a good relationship between the management and employees. The
Group has established an open-door policy which promotes open
dialogues with managers and the senior management. Employees
are encouraged to consult with their managers for any work-related
matters. Under our well-developed escalation procedures, in cases
of disputes or disagreements between employees and their
managers, the head of human resources department will be involved
and the matters will be escalated to the Executive Committee for
decision when necessary.

AEERY T — AT S MERERNE T -
BUHBBEEIAEEFEITURAY R
B - 2% - REIMEMBRIAREF - ALtRR
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With the belief that a harmonious workplace and the sense of
belonging among employees are essential for the development of
the Group, it actively promotes team building development by
encouraging employees to participate in various charity and social
activities. During the Year, the Group held various employee
activities, such as Christmas party, annual dinner and staff birthday
celebrations to enhance team spirit and strengthen the bonding
between employees and the Company. The Group attempts to meet
its employees’ needs in all aspects so as to cultivate loyalty and
dedication.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s employees are
located in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas. Below is the employee
breakdown by gender, age group, employment category and
geographical region.

B vake
GENDER Bt
4 5Bl
Female
g

38%

69%

59, 1% 5%

Il Senior management
SREEE
Middle management
EMPLOYMENT FREERE
CATEGORY General
EEER A3z

[ Contract/short term
Crygst

89%
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Health and Safety

The Group takes into consideration every precaution to establish a
healthy and safe working environment for its employees. The Group
strictly complies with the rules and guidelines stipulated in the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance by the Labour Department
in Hong Kong and any other applicable laws and regulations such as
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases. Besides, we maintain a healthy
and safe workplace for our employees. Reviews will be conducted
with immediate follow-up actions and improvements whenever
necessary. In 2018, no concluded cases regarding health and safety
were brought against the issuer or its employees.

The Group ensures that its employees are able to carry out their daily
work in a comfortable environment by installing or replacing office
equipment if needed, and providing them with all the necessary
equipment for protection against work-related injuries. Employees
are required to participate in the annual fire evacuation drill and
safety talks organised by the property management of the office
premises. Through providing these trainings to employees, they
become adequately knowledgeable of the office’s evacuation
procedures. Moreover, the employees are required to participate in
the health talks in order to enhance their awareness on the
importance of occupational health. Fire installation system and
equipment are checked annually by the property management
company. The Group obtains a Certificate of Fire Service Installations
and Equipment (FS 251) from Fire Services Department (FSD).

During the office renovation, the Company ensured appropriate
safety measures were in place for its employees, e.g. use of
renovation materials and products that fulfil the safety standard
without harmful effects on humans. Access to the office is strictly
controlled by access card and staff card to protect the personal
belongings of our employees. All outsiders should be accompanied
by our staff to access the office area. Access control policy is
reviewed regularly to enhance the employees’ safety.

RENZZ
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Development and Training

The Group recognises that the continuous development of its
employees is the key to its success. Each new employee will receive
a formal induction to prepare him/her for his/her role and job
responsibilities. Besides, employees are encouraged to participate in
appropriate in-house and external trainings for their skills
improvement or enhancement. Eligible employees will also be
offered financial assistance for qualified training programs to support
their personal growth and career advancement.

The human resources department and compliance department
provide assistance in coordinating internal trainings organised by the
Group.

The Group adopts systematic performance-based appraisal system
and the employees’ performance is assessed based on the pre-set
objectives and key performance indicators. Managers are
responsible for closely monitoring and coaching their subordinates,
while the human resources department assists in identifying the
proper job-related trainings that can provide career enhancement or
improvement to staff. This can ensure that the performance of its
employees can meet the job requirements. Furthermore, appropriate
and up-to-date trainings will be offered to the employees to enhance
their knowledge and skills for performance upgrade.

The trainings provided by the Group cover a wide scope, from
general financial knowledge to leadership, management and
communication skills. For example, in-house training for continuous
professional training fulfilment or rules updates are conducted by the
compliance department regularly and are available to all employees.
Latest market knowledge and updates will also be addressed to all
employees by means of seminars or internal circulation of
informational documents. In realising that the Group’s business
development strategy in the Asian and the Greater China region, the
Mandarin language is therefore inevitably important. The human
resources department has organised Mandarin training sessions for
the Group's senior executives.
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For our mother-infant-child and healthcare business, wide range of
trainings are arranged to enhance employees’ knowledge on
maternal and child care, and health products. This can improve the
professionalism of our employees to offer better customer services.

In 2018, the detailed breakdown of the average training hours
completed by each employee is as follows:

Training

523

By gender

R

— Male

— 5

— Female

—

By employment category
RERER

— Senior management
— R ERRE

— Middle management
— PREEE

— General

— &

Labour Standards

The Group not only strictly complies with labour legislations, but also
implements specific measures to ensure equal opportunities in
employment. We respect the rights and interest of every employee,
and strictly prohibit the employment of minors under the age of 18.
Organisations that are found to be engaging child labour or forced
labour will be reported to the management to terminate the
corresponding business dealings. There is a comprehensive internal
monitoring system to prevent the Group from forcing employees to
work by way of violence or illegal restriction of personal freedom.

RRMNESRERBEEXTEME  KHEEZANE
AR B THMBKTE - ILRARSRMET
B ERKF AR R IR IR -

RoT—\F - G518 8 R T 15/ BE 21
ESHMPRIT -

Average training hours
(hours/employee)
ST NS

(I 1EE)

299

156

62
67

326
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

As part of its commitment to environmental and corporate
responsibility, the Group attaches great importance to supplier
management and monitors by formulating internal procedures and
guidelines for managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain. It undertakes regular reviews on its supply chain to ensure
that its partners do not have significant impact on the environment
and society.

For the mother-infant-child products sector, the Group relies on a
wide range of brands to supply its products. The Group emphasises
on the quality and safety of the products supplied, brand image and
the corporate social responsibilities of the suppliers. When selecting
suppliers, all potential suppliers must be reviewed on environmental
and corporate management. Only those who fulfil the Group’s
criteria and comply with all the relevant national standards are
qualified to be our suppliers.

Green purchasing is adopted in the office. For example, the Group
only purchases electrical equipment with energy-saving labels.
During office renovation, the Group used materials and products that
fulfil the safety standard without harmful effects on the environment
and staff by requesting the suppliers to provide materials details.
This not only can reduce the harmful environmental impact, but can
also safeguard the health and safety of the employees.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing quality and customer-centred
medical and healthcare services, mother-infant-child products as
well as financial services. We continue to cultivate a corporate
culture which emphasises the provision of fair and just services for
its customers.

Quality Control

For the medical and healthcare sector, Reproductive Healthcare
Group Limited, our associate company, is the leading private assisted
reproductive service provider in Hong Kong. They have sound
management and quality monitoring in different stages of processes
with full statutory compliance, so as to ensure that all products and
services are strictly safe, without any hazards or risks to human.
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For the financial platform, the Group strives to expand its product
mix to meet the needs of customers with high-quality services. The
Group has set up internal control procedures to protect the Group,
its customers and employees from financial loss arising from theft,
fraud, and other dishonest acts, professional misconduct or
omissions. All of its services are in strict accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, as well as customer
requirements.

For the mother-infant-child products sector, the Group attaches
great importance on the quality and safety of the products supplied
by the suppliers. The Group carries out on-site checkings of products
supplied by certain suppliers to ensure reasonable quality standards
are met. For other suppliers, only those products with safety
certifications are accepted by us. There is a thorough recall
procedure for the unqualified products to prevent the sale of these
products in the market. During the Year, no complaints regarding
product quality were received by the Group.

Complaint Handling

The Group's complaint handling policy is strictly in accordance with
regulatory standards to ensure that customers’ opinions are heard
and responded in a timely manner. Complaint officers are assigned
act as a channel for customers to reach the Group with any issues
they may have encountered. All customers’ complaints will be
considered, with corresponding follow-up procedures being
conducted in accordance with internal procedures and guidelines.
Relevant investigation and improvement procedures will be
conducted and settlement may be made if appropriate. The Group
believes that receiving complaints provides valuable opportunity to
obtain feedback from the community and customers, so as to
identify the need for service and policy improvements.

In financial sector, the Group should comply with the Financial
Dispute Resolution Scheme (“FDRS”) for managing and resolving
disputes administered by the Financial Dispute Resolution Centre in
full and be bound by the dispute resolution processes provided for
under the FDRS.

Customer Data Protection

The Group implemented two-factor authentication “2FA” to comply
with SFC regulations and protect user data accessed by unauthorized
person.
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For the franchisor of mother-infant-child products, the Group has
online stores for customers to purchase conveniently at home. We
respect the users’ personal privacy in online and we have policy to
protect their information. The Group strictly complies with the
applicable rules and regulations such as the Laws of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests.

For financial services and other businesses in Hong Kong, the Group
strictly complies with the applicable rules and regulations such as
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486). During the Year, no
severe violation identified which posed significant impact on the
Group.

Anti-Corruption

The Group holds itself to the highest level of integrity and ethical
standards upon its businesses. The Group strictly complies with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Criminal Law of
the People’s Republic of China in the PRC and any other applicable
laws and regulations. Therefore, it formulates a set of policy
guidelines and codes of conduct for the employees, under which any
kinds of bribery and corruption practices are strictly forbidden. There
is also a comprehensive system for declaration of interests, as well
as a sound reporting mechanism for any suspicious activity.

The current policy adopted by the Group regarding anti-corruption is
incorporated into the internal code of conduct for staff, including
general framework of anti-bribery laws, rules and regulations in Hong
Kong. The Group and each of its member companies strictly prohibit
staff to solicit and accept advantages without prior approval by the
Group, and actively encourage staff to avoid situations which may
constitute bribery, so as to prevent any kinds of corruption at the
very beginning.

The Group also constantly reminds all of its employees of the
importance of complying with the Code of Conduct. Each employee
is required to sign an annual declaration form of his/her compliance
with the Code of Conduct. In addition to the declaration, written
records of all personal benefits received by employees and relevant
management approval are kept for compliance with the internal
policies. During the Year, no concluded cases regarding corrupt
practices were brought against the Group or its employees.
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Ccommunity

Community Investment

The Group's success comes from the society, and its philosophy is to
contribute back to the society through available resources and
efforts. Employees are encouraged to volunteer at different charity
organisations to express their concerns for social issues and to show
support for these organisations. For instance, the Group actively
participates in the Dress Casual Day 2018 organised by the Hong
Kong Community Chest. Our staff took part in the casual wear event
to support the charity event and deliver the positive corporate social
responsibility message.

The Group, focuses on the outcomes of each of its corporate social
responsibility programs. It has set up some metrics so that the
effectiveness of these programs can be measured as a reference for
future engagement or improvement, e.g. the number of employees
attended and the amount of donation funds are the measuring
metrics used for the Casual Wear Day organised by the Hong Kong
community Chest.

Every year, the Group delegates relevant employees to attend
various corporate social responsibility conferences in Hong Kong, so
as to promote knowledge and best practices of its employees.
Furthermore, the Company maintains an open channel of
communication with its stakeholders and communities to understand
their motivations, goals, and needs through continuous conversation
and social media polling, so that the Group’s contributions in
corporate social responsibility activities will truly meet the needs.
The Group also hires disabled persons to show our efforts in
supporting an inclusive and caring community.
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During the Year, we participated in many charitable events and
obtained outstanding social awards which recognised our
contribution to the community. The details of charitable events and
outstanding social awards are listed as below:

Initiated HK$5 for each cup of coffee consumed by our staff to
be donated to World Vision.

Donated to Kwun Tong Methodist Social Service for the elderly
visit under the name of the Company.

Donated to HK Community Chest under the name of the
Company.

“Caring Company (5 years +)" was awarded to Mason
Securities Limited a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

“Caring Company” was awarded to the Company.

“Partner Employer Award” was awarded to the Company.
"ENRFZFFIZR" was awarded to the Company.

"B SRR M 2018 42" was awarded to the Company.
"HHEAEE D ELSE T2 was awarded to the Company.
“2017-18 F £ & 47 = | was awarded to the Company.

"2017/18F ERE R = & £ 8 E & £]” was awarded to the
company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

TEEE - BH - —REERBRENIEE (KPIS)

A. Environmental
RiE

A1: Emissions

A1 HERY

General Disclosure

— MR

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective
emissions data
PR iR AR AR R R R BUR

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and,
where appropriate, intensity
AERBAERER (WEE)RE

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity
FIEENBEEMRER (EE)RE

KPI' A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity
FIEENEEEYRER (EE)RE

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved
UK B E AT b R PTEVIS AR

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved
HEEEEREEEYO AN  RIEEA
SR RTEHR

B -t ERERARERS

Section

B

“Environmental Aspects”

[R5 EHE ]

“Emissions — Air Pollutants Emission”
[ e — Res 4 mEER

“Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission”

[BEm — REREHEN

“Emissions — Hazardous and Non-
hazardous Wastes”

(R — BEREEEY]
“Emissions — Hazardous and Non-
hazardous Wastes”

[ — BEREEEY]
“Emissions — Air Pollutants Emission”
[BE) — Re5 &M

"Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission”

[ — R EREEBEM
“Emissions — Hazardous and Non-

hazardous Wastes”
(B — B EREZEY ]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEEE EE - —REERBEREIIEZ(KPIS) =30
A2: Use of Resources

&IRF A

General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 99

—MRHE [ &RFA ]

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy “Use of Resources — Energy” 99
consumption by type in total and intensity [ &R A — gER |
REEISHNERER SHEEREREES
L

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water” 101
BFEKERAE [ERFMA — K]

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency “Use of Resources — Energy” 99
initiatives and results achieved [ERMA — 8L
Ha il gE IR e s I R PTISACR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue  “Use of Resources — Water” 101

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, [BIRFA — K]
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved
Fa 3t SKEGE KR ERI B EERE - A KRR
TR a8 RS KR
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished  Not applicable to the Group’s business -
products and, if applicable, with reference i R AN &£ B ¥ 7%
to per unit produced
BN mTRBEMEER(NER)2Z

BHEESBMIGEE
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BERBRER
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural Resources” 101
—MREE RRLBAREIR]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of “The Environment and Natural Resources”

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to

manage them
MR ERERENERNEATERR [RERBAER]
REE R
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section
TEEGE - EH- - —REEREBEREERISE(KPIS) =6

B. Social

B. #E

Employment and Labour Practices

EREEREZEIER

B1. Employment

EE

General Disclosure “Employment” 102

— MR EE [ ]

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment - -
type, age group and geographical region
RMR - EERE - FREMNREESH
EEREH

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age - -
group and geographical region
IR - FEAE R = B 5 B E BIRENIL

B2: Health and safety

EREZ S

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 105

— MR [ERERZZ ]

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities - -
ATEBERMILTHAZ R E

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury = =
EIEERIXTIERE

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and “Health and Safety” 105
safety measures adopted, how they are [f2FRELE ]
implemented and monitored
Ho P ER AN BV B SR (R PR B 2 2 ¥ BB A S AB
BITRERAE

B3: Development and Training

ZRRIE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section
TEEGE - EH - —REEREEERISE(KPIS) =8
General Disclosure “Development and Training” 106
—MRBEE [ 2 B3I
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained and - -

employee category
HEJEEN B D L RIEEER
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per - -
employee by gender and employee
category
=R R E B RIE D e B EE & TR T
TR L
B4: Labour Standards

& TR

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 107

—MRHEE [45 T 1% |

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review - -
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour
AR AT B A AR A0 R bt DA R T R R
BT

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate - -
such practices when discovered
IR IR B AR BN ERE T ke H 4T
& 5L P EREX B 25 5%

Operating Practices

REEH|

B5: Supply Chain Management

HreEeEIR

General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 108

—MRHEE [ e E I |

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical - -
region
LihE B e R B

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to - =
engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored
fa it A AR A EEmaE S - mEBRITE#
BRI HEREE ARBEAEBHNNTR
BERE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

THEE EE - —RIEERBEENISEE(KPIS)
Bé6. Product Responsibility

EmAE

General Disclosure

—RR
KPI B6.1

KPI'B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons
EEXDEBRERARTALE REREH
MmAGERNED L

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with

BERANEm R RIEHIRFE R AR EE 7
=

Description and practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

Bl R % R AR R 5B M AT B it K2 1B 1D
Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures

S SRERERGEIEF

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

HH B 2 B RHMRE KB AR LA R A8
TRERTE

Section

B

“Product Responsibility”
[EmEE]

“Product Responsibility — Complaint
Handling”
[EmAf —&RFEE]

“Product Responsibility — Quality
Control”

[EmEF— B4

“Product Responsibility — Customer Data
Protection”

[EREME — HEEERMRE]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

TEEGE - EH-
B7. Anti-corruption

—RIRE N B R A RIS R (KPIS)

RIER

General Disclosure

— PR ER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of
the case
RSB ITASEEEREWEELS
HESFARMGRIZE RFALR

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored
B R b R B RIE T - A RMEERNTR
BERA

Community

&

B8: Community Investment

MHERE

General Disclosure

— MR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)
ETEREE(UH%E REHRE - BTH
ko R e REE)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area
EETEHBMEBAER (AR E)
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Section

B

“Anti-corruption”
[ =8

No legal cases were observed during the
reporting period

RS HRLARERFARE

“Community Investment”
[HERE ]

“Community Investment”
[HERE ]
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ASSUMPTIONS AND REFERENCES
Assumption of calculating KPIs

i

We have assumed that the accuracy of information provided to
us by the Group and relied to a considerable extent on such
information in arriving at our result of calculation and
consumption data is adjusted so as to be consistent with the
reporting period of the report.

For calculation of SO, emission from vehicles, the sulfur
content of petrol and diesel are assumed to be 50ppm and 350
ppm respectively based on {8 #B) B KR )5 LW BERUE &
el e R (R17)).

For calculation of air pollution from mobile source based on
kilometres travelled by vehicles, we assume that the vehicles
are under the following conditions: running at average speed
of 30 km/hour, 50% relative humidity, temperature of 15
Degree Celsius, the sulfur content of petrol and diesel are
50ppm and 350 ppm and loading percentage is 50%.

According to Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange, as non-hazardous weight
data is not available from the Group, the weight data is
estimated by the Group using other available information. We
have assumed that the estimated data are not materially
different from the actual one.

BEESZE
E‘f%’%ﬁi@.*?ﬁ‘é SRR

1.

FEBRAKEAEHERNE N BERE
SIEE/\\\L@( EENFEERRAERARE L
EHEZEER  YTHRRBBELHE
it 2 B B $R s B — B

M EEWE S RABERm S - BE
(BB E KRS LR BERUE B4 Bl 5T
B (BH17)  RBTERERNTEEED
Al & 50ppm K 350ppm ©

HBEEWMITEEERIEAERDENER
VERME - BEEMEBEWMPOA TEMEITS

FIGRE 0N E K HEERE 50%
/J_Eh'IST%EEJg /I/Hﬂ& EE’J \LI:.EXE
50ppm K 350ppm  HEH oL A 50% °

IRIER X P T BB ER 2 © RIS AERE
RERES AR AREBREIRGERE
BRUE ZK‘*I@E?HEWET BRhETE
BHE BEFCERGABBEEREE
Iﬁ%ﬁ%% °
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Key references of calculating KPIs

il ;

Appendix 27 to the rules governing the Listing Rules —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”

2. Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPI

3. Sustainability Report 2016, HK Electric Investment

4. Sustainability Report 2016, CLP Group

5. Heat Values of Various Fuels, World Nuclear Association

6. (EBEBBEARSEMFREERSGXMER(FT)) +
£ ARAMBIRITRES

7. (ERASEBEREE BEIR B

8. (EMUHEBEREZEE BEXRERD

9. (EMRES—WHIN: CEIBENREREHNE T
) RERITTTAT

10. CREERBZERALRERSIENEEREHNTETAE
M (2.1h0R)) - ERERATA

1. (ErepefEst EmAl) (GB/T 2589-2008) ' EIRIFHEIMEEE
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e 2VE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B BT RS

|IBDO

TO THE MEMBERS OF MASON GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mason
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 131 to 342, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BRREBZERARIARRE
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=R
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FTESHBEME -

BEERR FEAUBBRDERELGINAE
(T %-5/%5quEﬂi"/\J)?’“‘ﬁ‘ﬁﬂ’]ﬁ%ﬁﬂk#ﬁiﬁﬁ”
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Significant business combinations

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in
Raiffeisen Privatbank Liechtenstein AG (“RPL") and Harris Fraser
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“HFG") at total consideration of
CHF63.27 million (equivalent to HK$556.83 million) and HK$128.02
million respectively. The acquisition constituted business
combinations for accounting purpose.

The accounting for business combination is an area of focus due to
the significance of the transactions and the judgements involved,
including the identification and valuation of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Any error made in the identification and/or
valuation of these assets and liabilities may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Management appointed valuation specialists to estimate the
acquisition-date value of RPL's intangible assets and other assets
and liabilities acquired amounting to HK$66.02 million and HK$332.39
million respectively and recognised goodwill amounting to HK$158.42
million at the date of acquisitions.

Management appointed valuation specialists to estimate the
acquisition-date value of HFG's intangible assets and other assets
and liabilities acquired amounting to HK$48.95 million and HK$5.76
million respectively and recognised goodwill amounting to HK$73.31
million at the date of acquisitions.
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Refer to Notes 4(b) and 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the significant business
combinations included:

— Obtaining and reviewing the terms of the share sale agreement
and other document in relation to the acquisition,

— Evaluating the valuation specialist’'s competence, capabilities
and objectivity,

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the bases in the identification
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
used by the valuation specialist and management to estimate
the acquisition date value of identifiable assets (including
intangible assets) and liabilities,

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on
our knowledge and understanding of the businesses and
markets; and

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgets.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets

The Group has recognised goodwill of HK$776.30 million and
intangible assets of HK$842.05 million arising from the acquisition of
RPL and HFG in this year and several acquisitions in previous years.

Management has performed impairment tests with reference to the
reports issued by the valuation specialists and concluded that there
is no impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets during the
year. This conclusion was based on the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash generating units (“CGUs") using the value-in-use
("VIU calculation”) model that required significant judgements with
respect to the inputs to the valuation models.
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Refer to Notes 4(c), 4(g), 4(0), 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
included:

— Evaluating the valuation specialists’ competence, capabilities
and objectivity;,

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies,
including the VIU calculations, used by the valuation specialists
and management to estimate the recoverable amount of the
CGUs;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on
our knowledge and understanding of the businesses and
markets,

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgets;

—  Evaluating the sensitivity of the impairment tests to changes in
key assumptions; and

—  Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us evaluating
and assessing the appropriateness of the key assumption used
in the valuation.

Recoverability assessment of loan receivables
and trade and accounts receivables

The carrying amount of the Group's loan receivables and trade and
accounts receivables amounted to HK$1,484.47 million and
HK$914.94 million as at 31 December 2018 respectively.

Given that the recoverability assessment of these receivables
required significant judgements based on a number of factors
including the debtors’ current creditworthiness, past collection
history, subsequent settlement and ageing analysis and the value of
any collateral assets/guarantees obtained, it is an area of focus.
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Refer to Notes 4(h), 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment
included:

— Evaluating the Group’s credit risk policies and testing the
associated processes used by management to assess credit
exposures, assign internal credit ratings and report to the
appropriate level of governance to ensure they worked as
designed;

— Evaluating management’s recoverability assessment; and

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions made by
management in the recoverability assessment.

—  Performing a review on the latest financial information of the
investee companies;

— Evaluating management’s recoverability assessment; and

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions made by
management in the recoverability assessment.

Valuation of financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss and through other
comprehensive income classified as level 2 and 3
Financial assets

As at 31 December 2018, financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted to
approximately HK$881.64 million, which represented 12.96% of the
Group's net assets. Furthermore, as at 31 December 2018, financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss and through other
comprehensive income classified as Level 2 and 3 fair value
amounting to approximately HK$850.98 million and HK$30.66 million
respectively.
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Financial Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$240.11 million, which
represented 3.53% of the Group’s net assets. Furthermore, as at 31
December 2018, financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss classified as Level 2 and 3 fair value amounting to approximately
HK$44.75 million and HK$194.89 million respectively.

For valuation, management engaged valuation specialists to apply
valuation techniques to determine the fair values of the financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss and through other
comprehensive income that are not quoted in active markets. These
valuation techniques, in particular those that included significant
unobservable inputs, involved subjective judgements and
assumptions. The sensitivity of the assumptions used may have
material impact on the valuation of these financial instruments.

Refer to Notes 4(h), 24, 25 and 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of financial
instruments included:

—  Obtaining and examining the terms of the financial instruments
and relevant agreements in relation to the financial
instruments;

— Evaluating the valuation specialist's competence, capabilities
and objectivity;,

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the valuation specialist and
management to estimate the fair value of financial instruments;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key parameters used based
on our knowledge and understanding of the financial assets;
and

—  Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us evaluating
and assessing the appropriateness of the key assumption used
in the valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B BT RS

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number P01220

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

2018
—B-NF
Notes HK$'000
BtaF FE&xT
Turnover =E 37 6 4,074,269 3,721,726
Operating income RKELA 7 3,506,994 2,900,438
Other income EH A 8 29,509 23,588
Consumables used and merchandise  FEM M #5E B& o4
sold (2,697,611) (2,275,275)
Employee benefits expenses EEEHZ 10& 11 (356,300) (248,034)
Amortisation of intangible assets E A 17 (54,035) (29,184)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BERREZITE
equipment 16 (29,429) (16,791)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME  BMEMKREZ
plant and equipment (B8B), Wz 16 (617) 1
Impairment loss on financial assets for B EERFBEREEHIE Y
expected credit loss RIEEE (22,690) -
Provision for allowance for REREB TR
doubtful debts, net 28(c) - (4,297)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELEWB QR 2 WS
interests in subsidiaries 41 131,352 -
Gain on disposal of interests in a HEKB AR 2 W
subsidiary 43 22,288 -
Net fair value gain on financial ST AZ A FERKEFEE
instruments 8,490 75,900
Net fair value gain on derivative TEERIAZ A FERZ
financial instruments FE 532 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale  B] £ H & Bt 7% & E (A &5 18
financial assets 22(e) - (5,538)
Impairment loss on goodwiill R EEE 18 (10,000) -
Other operating expenses e S (334,499) (177,824)
Finance costs BhE AR 10 (23,548) (31,703)
Share of results of associates JEIRES & DRI A 20 24,708 6,019
Profit from operation B RR 195,144 217,300
Gain/(loss) on measurement of ER S ARENFT =
contingent consideration payable ez, (E518) 33 11,866 (129,899)
Profit before taxation BRI A5 R 207,010 87,401
Income tax expenses Frig®if X 13 (30,998) (60,931)
Profit for the year FRinF 176,012 26,470
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meZHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

Other comprehensive income: Hth2HEBA :

Items that will be reclassified HEHEH 72 18m.2
subsequently to profit or l0ss EHH
Changes in fair value of defined FEBAFENRATE

2018
—E-N\F

Notes HK$'000
M et TFHET

2017
—EF—+F
HK$'000
FH&7T

benefit scheme at fair value FFAEMEEWA L
through other comprehensive NEE
income (4,618) -
Exchange differences on translation — $Z4Mfi B A Rl E Y
of foreign subsidiaries EHER (117,611) 3,850
Items that will not be reclassified to ~ HE#E TS B 7 HEE
profit or loss i Enged =)=
Changes in fair value of equity BT ARAEE
instruments at fair value through SFTAEMEmBAZ
other comprehensive income NEEE (82,567) -
Other comprehensive income for FREMEEEA
the year (204,796) 3,850
Total comprehensive income for SR2HEW AL
the year (28,784) 30,320
Profit/(loss) attributable to: BAER, (B8) :
Equity holders of the Company RAFERFEBA 90,184 (53,160)
Non-controlling interests P 19 85,828 79,630
Profit for the year FREF 176,012 26,470
Total comprehensive income EEEERALLE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company KAFIERFEA (109,101) (51,197)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR R ZR 19 80,317 81,517
Total comprehensive income for SRZ2EKAEEE
the year (28,784) 30,320
Earnings/(loss) per share SRERN,(HE)
Basic and diluted EAR R EE HKO0.20 cent HK(0.13) cent
15 0.20 34l (0.13) AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR &R
As at 31 December 2018
i B NGRS H = =

Notes
et

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000
FTERT

Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR E 16 335,449 60,414
Intangible assets EREE 17 842,050 977,591
Goodwill EES 18 776,295 816,798
Interests in associates R E R B 20 833,489 220,235
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHENKEE 22 - 614,189
Loan receivables ERE R 27 558,547 642,362
Other non-current deposits HEt B 3ERsize &
paid and prepayments FEfTFRIE 7,870 11,031
Deferred tax assets RERIEE = 35 7,979 1,409
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss G EE 24 364,909 199,342
Financial assets at fair value through & A EzF A HE B2 EEA
other comprehensive income 2B EE 25 633,244 -
Financial assets at amortised cost B AT ENYBEE 26 173,785 -
Fixed bank deposits RITE TR 29 44,816 -
4,578,433 3,543,371
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 23 326,290 292,546
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss B & E 24 226,166 164,930
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTAE 34 75,396 -
Available-for-sale financial assets A HEMBEE 22 - 74,926
Loan receivables FEWE 27 925,927 848,606
Reverse repurchase agreements ek 38 1,130,371 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 Nk EmEWRFIE 28 1,344,277 1,051,512
Tax recoverable Al B F A 988 31
Fixed bank deposits RITE BT 29 1,071,483 -
Pledged bank deposits ERAIRITTR 29 94,137 58,364
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 29 1,603,086 1,759,412
6,798,121 4,250,377
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EAER RIE 30 3,279,854 555,962
Contract liabilities EHAaE 31 9,545 -
Interest-bearing borrowings TERER 32 423,555 300,016
Repurchase agreements [EiE 38 350,185 -
Amount due to an associate FES B A T E 21 25,000 20,000
Derivative financial instruments PTHEESRTEAE 34 73,605 -
Finance lease liabilities mEHEAE 36 332 399
Tax payables FEIRRIE 32,601 42,330
Contingent consideration payable JEfT S ARIE 33 8,761 112,272
4,203,438 1,030,979
Net current assets BREEE 2,594,683 3,219,398
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
v BRI 3R

As at 31 December 2018
RET=/INET=H=F=-H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF F#ET FHIT
Total assets less current liabilities BAEERAEA G 7,173,116 6,762,769
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 32 20,000 20,000
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 35 193,012 231,226
Contingent consideration payable eI ARE 33 - 17,627
Finance lease liabilities BmEREAR 36 304 795
Redeemable and exchangeable A B (0] &% AT 83 48 S A%
preferred share 37 157,744 -
Long-term liabilities RHEIBE 424 278
371,484 269,926
NET ASSETS FEE 6,801,632 6,492,843
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital & A 39 6,142,962 6,142,962
Reserves EE 40 18,457 (72,199)
Equity attributable to equity KA TR B AREILIER
holders of the Company 6,161,419 6,070,763
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR 19 640,213 422,080
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 6,801,632 6,492,843

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 HEZFER_T—NF= A+ BibEREE

March 2019 and signed on its behalf by FEE - Wl NIIREKRES
Ko Po Ming Lui Choi Yiu, Angela
=EH EEK
Director Director
EF 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FORRAREARE

Reserves
Gl
Foreign
currency Non-
Share  translation ~ Accumulated Total controlling
capital reserve losses EServes Sub-total interest
ZiEE & It
HKS'000 HK$'000
BT Th BT ThL
At 1 January 2017 RZF-+5-F-H 3277443 - (21,002 (21002 3256441 26,631 3,953,078
Profit for the year ERgH - - (53,160) (53,160) (53,160) 79630 26,470

Other comprehensive income Ef2EKA

ttems that will be reclassified  E%FEHHEE
subsequently toprofitorloss B 7388

Exchange differences arisingon SS9 B A AR EH

franslation of foreign EAEE

subsidiaries - 1963 - 1963 1963 1887 3850
Total comprehensive ER2ERAGE

income for the year - 1963 (53,160) (51197) (51,197) 81,517 30,320

Transactions with equity ~ EERBEAZRS

holders
Issue of shares under rights B RE T RARET
issue and bonus issue, BOMKD - MREY
net of expenses 39 2865519 - - - 2,365,519 - 2865519
Dividend tonon-controlling ~ RIkE FaEamiEs
interests - - - - - (2400) (2.400)
Non-controlling interests arising  SAREHBAAEEZ
from acquisition of subsicliaries  FEfRMER b - - - - - 146,32 16,326
Total transactions with HEFEEAL
equity holders RHBE
2,865,519 - - - 2,865,519 43926 2,900,445
At 31 December 2017 RZE—F
+-p=1-8 6,142962 1,963 (74.162) (72199 6,070,763 422,080 6,492,843
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEER2ER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

At 1January 2018 as originally

R=%-NE-B-BRRES

Share
capital

S
Notes HK$'000
Tn

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ANRREREAEL

Reserves
fife

Foreign (Accumulated
currency losses)/

translation Fvocl Other retained
reserve  feseve  reserves profits
BAYE
A% AR (BitEE)
EXff 2EUARE  RbBE  REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tn T

Total
reserves

HREE
HKS'000
T

Sub-total

Nt
HKS'000
TR

Non-
controlling
interests

FERE
HK$'000
TERL

presented 6,142,962 1963 - - (74,162) (72,199 6,070,763 422,080 6,492,843
Iital applicaton of HKFRS 9 ERBRERYBRS RIS 2 - - 1362 = (71255 12895 128,956 (186) 128770
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 R=E-NF-B-RESIEH 6,142,962 1,963 136,211 = (81,417) 56,757 6,199,719 421894 6,621,613
Profitfor the year R - - - - 90,184 90,184 90,184 85,828 176,012
Other comprehensive income for EREHRENA

the year
Items that will b reclassified AfifEfoEz

subsequently to proft or loss BalEE

Changes in fair value of defined bengfit AFERHMEATEA

scheme at fair value through other M%EU&/\U?&M{EW

comprehensive income ("FVOCI') Et2ERA) 2 ATEES - - (4,618) - - (4,618) (4,618) - (4,618)
Exchange differences on translation of FHHELTREY

foreign subsidiaries ExzE - (112,100 = = - (112,100)  (112,100) (5511)  (117,611)
[tems that will not be reclessified AERTEENBZE

subsequently to proft or loss Bz 7EE

Changesin fair valug of equity BATERATESA

instruments at FVOCI Efp2ERACATEE - - (82,567) - - (82,567)  (82,567) - (82,567)
Total other comprehensive income Eti2ERALE - (112,100 (87,185) - - (199,285)  (199,285) (5511 (204,79)
Total comprehensive income for FREANALE

the year = (112,100) (87,185) = 90,184 (109,101) (109,101) 80,317 (28,784)
Transactions with equity holders HEEREARS
Share subscription by a non-controling FERERTE

interest in @ subsidiary -FHEL TE’JM‘ = - - 1,265 - 1,265 1,265 48,735 50,000
Settlement of contingent consideration BREER-RHEATN

payable by transferring BOEEEAE “XWH“

shares in a subsidiary - - - 66,702 - 66,702 66,702 45,570 12,272
Partial disposal of interests in HENBRAD B

subsidiaries without loss of control (REx%1E) - - - 2,834 - 2,834 2,834 208,111 210,945
Deermed disposal of nterests in RIELERBARER

subsiciaries with oss of corirol (sxim402) a - = ° ° o 2 - (147,609 - (147,609)
Dividend to non-controlling interests RIEERERRAR - - - - - - - (16,805) (16,805)
Total transactions with equty holders EEGHEARDEE - - - 70801 - 70801 70801 138002 208,803
At 31 December 2018 RZE2-/\E+-A=1-H 6,142,962 (110,137) 49,026 70,801 8,767 18457 6,161,419 640,213 6,801,632
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BETT-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReER
Profit before taxation BREE AR T 207,010 87,401
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ES 17 54,035 29,184
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB MERETE
equipment 16 29,429 16,791
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BE K
plant and equipment B P51 VAC &) 16 617 )
Loss on write off of property, MEmE - BMERREZEE
plant and equipment 16 1,544 -
Provision for allowance for REEBHEFE
doubtful debts, net 28(c) - 4,297
Impairment loss on financial assets M EEREHEEBE
for expected credit l0ss KR EE B 22,690 -
Gain on disposal of interests in a HEK B R AR 2
subsidiary 43 (22,288) -
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEEHENB A AR 2 WS
interests in subsidiaries 41 (131,352) -
Net fair value gain on derivative MEeBMIAZATE
financial instruments eyt (532) -
Net fair value gain on financial TRMIAEZ A FEWSFE
instruments (8,490) (75,900)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale Bt E B & & E
financial assets REEE 22(e) = 5,538
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREESE 18 10,000 -
Interest income, other than from FEBWA (B E
loan receivables FEWER) (19,928) (15,881)
Finance costs BhE R AR 10 23,548 31,703
Share of results of associates i N 20 (24,708) (6,019)
(Gain)/loss on measurement of RS AREBN =
contingent consideration payable e 4 7 49 (11,866) 129,899
Changes in working capital: EEESHEE
Inventories FE (33,744) (47,831)
Financial assets at fair value BAYEGFAEBRZZ
through profit or loss MBEE (227,304) 210,721
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMZERA
other comprehensive income TS & B 70,308 -
Financial assets at amortised cost WHEN AT ECVBEE (21,219) -
Derivative financial instruments THESBIT A (1,259) -
Loan receivables EWER 38,608 (580,458)
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A FE W SRIR 1,453,874 (227,237)
Trade and other payables B S REMPERFRIE 272,230 (507,913)
Reverse repurchase and [z 1A) (2] 8 K [0 BE 197 =
repurchase agreements (616,380) -
Fixed bank deposits R1TE BT (1,116,299) -
contract liabilities AHAaE 31 9,545 -
Cash used in operations REFMRE (41,931) (945,706)
Tax paid BARIE (40,727) (28,996)
Interest received, other than BUFE (T EIEERER)
loan receivables 19,928 15,881
Net cash used in REEBFMARSFHE
operating activities (62,730) (958,821)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HREBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and

REXEK
BEYVE - BERRE

2018
—2-\F

HK$'000
THET

HK$'000
THET

equipment 16 (42,134) (24,063)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEME  BER

plant and equipment B FTE E 416 805
Purchase of intangible assets BEBLEE 17 (21,516) (4,701)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHNEVEEE

financial assets - (29,192)
Acquisition of an associate Y B Bk i 8 A = (214,216)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B RRITIF IR D (35,173) (36,005)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMBARIRERAFE

subsidiaries 43 33,719 -
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEMBARIRE R FE

subsidiaries 42 (232,919) (478,861)
Net cash outflow from deemed BEHEHBRREL

disposal of subsidiaries BFRS R 41 (257,839) -
Proceeds from partial disposal of a HEMB AR D ER

subsidiary Fr{S 308 210,945
Additional consideration paid BEREIMUE 42 (649) -
Net cash used in investing REEBRFMARSFE

activities (345,150) (786,233)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BETT-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

2017
—tF
HK$'000
FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE 45(b)
Proceeds from rights issue AR FT1S UIE 39 - 2,865,519
New bank loans and other loans raised ~ #7#R{TE % &Pﬁ £
HAh B XK 158,798 487,530
Repayment of bank loans and BERRITERREMER
other loans (34,909) (187,514)
Loan from an associate RE—FEEARE 5,000 20,000
Repayment of unsecured fixed BEEEEATE TTIE
coupon notes - (300,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling DIRME T IR AE
interests (16,805) (2,400)
Interest paid BASFIE 10 (23,548) (31,703)
Repayment of obligations under BEMEAHEERMT
finance leases (558) (147)
Share subscription by a non-controlling  3E#% Hﬂg;ﬁ;{iﬁg EA =N
interest in a subsidiary Colam) 50,000 -
Proceeds from issue of redeemable BATAIHEE K Al R E S iR
and exchangeable preferred share KIFT{S /IR 37 156,000 -
Net cash generated from REITBMERSFE
financing activities 46b 293,978 2,851,285
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ%{“ Mz
and cash equivalents ) R (113,902) 1,106,231
Cash and cash equivalents at the ZHBA2EHLR
beginning of the ReZEY
reporting period 46(a) 1,759,412 651,419
Effect of exchange rate changes EREgH s HE (42,424) 1,762
Cash and cash equivalents at the Z2HHLEA>
end of the reporting period, ReRRESEEY
represented by bank balances ERTESBLEES
and cash 46(a) 1,603,086 1,759,412
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

1. GENERAL B

Mason Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of the annual report for year 2018. The
principal activities of the Group and its subsidiaries are
described in Notes 9 and 19 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2,

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSS —
effective 1 January 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
First-time adoption of
Hong Kong Financial

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Reporting Standards

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28,

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSS —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 1, First time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, removing transition
provision exemptions relating to accounting periods that
had already passed and were therefore no longer
applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the periods to which the
transition provision exemptions related have passed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvement
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture Capital
organisation’s permissible election to measure its
associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group is not a venture
capital organisation.

RMBEEMBREED (FREME

HER 1) @)
RANETR]RRIERT BB YR
HEA —ZF-N\F-A—
BEXM#E)

BRMEREEN _FT-—NFE
TE-ANFRBCEFELGE —
ERVBREERNE 1R BT
o BRRARBRMBRELER

RIBFE DL BIZBM 2 UL FERTA
$ I B M 2 % TR R H AR 1
BYAZYNZER - ERBEEEH
BREERNE 1R ZIERTA - BREK
MEBMBWERED > ZEFTAME
TEEEREAMTBERSTHHEA
BAR BRI H R

HEBREXHREHEOARECDAE
R MRAZFEAEZEW B
RIBEEE -

ERMBBREEA-_ZT-—NFE
“E-AFRAMCFERE —
BB ERISE 285 2874
REBERAREELEIRE
RIBF UG RIERM 2 UL FET AR
$IR I B M 2 2 TR R AR
BYAZINZER - ERBEHEL
BRTERIE28  REERERE
BREREZER]  EPEBRARE
AEE AR B AP EFTEERE
REHALELER  BEHEHEBE
RAHAEDEBIEL -

R AEE L IERBRICEME - IR
MZE B ANZEMEHRRLES
@,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-F-\F+-A=t-BLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

142

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification
and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled
share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding
tax obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have
any cash-settled share-based payment transaction and
has no share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and
measurement; (2) impairment and (3) hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018 has resulted in changes in
accounting policies of the Group and the
amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\F+A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) mE
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSS —

2. EMERMBERE

2R ) )

BR(TEEBHH

(@) ERMAHE]RIETERBIMBR

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HERA — —FE-NF—H—
EEZEE )
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A EEMBEHREEANFEIR
(Continued) —SMIA#E)
()  Classification and measurement of financial () =BTANSEEEE
instruments (Continued) (#&)
The following tables summarised the impact, TERERBFET RS

net of tax, of transaction by HKFRS 9 on the
opening balance of reserves, retained
earnings and NCI as of 1 January 2018 as

follows (increase/(decrease)):

BAEIHFER —F—N
F-A—BWHBYFHE
REER S RE N R IFE

BRESENTRZEE

(FIBRFEIE)
2NE

(4,7 Ot

HK$'000
TAT

Accumulated losses ZiTER
As at 31 December 2017 R-Z2—t&F+-_A=+—H (74,162)
Increase in expected credit losses (‘ECLS")  EWE X EHEERBE
in loan receivables (Note 2(a)A(ii) below) ([FEHREEREE] LM
(FX BT 2(2)A(0) (6,697)
Increase in ECLS in bank balances and RITEH RIS AR BRI
cash and pledged bank deposits RITEREREE BB
(Note 2(a)A(ii) below) (FXHIEE 2()A()) (145)
Increase in ECLs in trade and other ZHREMEUGBEREEEE
receivables (Note 2(a)A(ii) below) BN (XA 2(a)A()) 413)
Restated accumulated losses as at R-ZZ—-N\F—A—H
1 January 2018 REY R (81,417)
Non-controlling interests PR R
Non-controlling interests as at RZE—+F+=A=+—H
31 December 2017 TR 422,080
Increase in ECLs in loan receivables EWE R IR EEEEE N
(Note 2(a)A(ii) below) (R XK 2()A)) 2
Increase in ECLS in bank balances and RITEBRNIRE U R EEFIRITHER
cash and pledged bank deposits TEE = B 1R I
(Note 2(a)A(ii) below) (T XXHtaE 2)A(00)) (12)
Increase in ECLs in trade and other ZH5REMEINFIBEREEEEE
receivables (Note 2(a)A(ii) below) IR R aE2(8)Ad)) (172)
Restated non-controlling interests as at RZE—N\F—H—H
1 January 2018 KBS FEE RS 421,894
FVOCI reserve B RFEFA H/ﬂé@&/lz #E
Reserves balance at 31 December 2017 %é§_§¢+_ﬂ_+
Reclassify investments from BREEERAEIEEEETHE
available-for-sale at cost to FVOCI EERAFEFAEMEZEBRA
(Note 2(a)A(i) below) (T HizzE 2@)Ad)) 136,211
Restated reserves balance as at RZE—-N\F—H—H
1 January 2018 rEEY B H 136,211
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-2-\F+-A=+—BIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

144

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous
HKAS 39 categories for financial assets of
held to maturity financial assets, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no
material impact on the Group's accounting
policies related to financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments. The impact
of HKFRS 9 on the Group's classification and
measurement of financial assets is set out
below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at
initial recognition, measure a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. A
financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised costs”);
(i) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVOCI"); or (iii)
FVTPL (as defined in above). The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is generally
based on two criteria: (i) the business model
under which the financial asset is managed
and (ii) its contractual cash flow
characteristics (the “solely payments of
principal and interest” criterion, also known
as “SPPI” criterion). Under HKFRS 9,
embedded derivatives is no longer required
to be separated from a host financial asset.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is
assessed as a whole for the classification.

2. RHERMBREERN(EFRHE

WEEQ @)

(@) ERMHETRIETEBIBR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2,

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)
()  Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if meets both of the following conditions
and it has not been designated as at FVTPL.

] It is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

. It is held within a business model
whose objective is to achieve by both
collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

o The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment'’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.
All other financial assets not classified at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are classified as FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise

arise.

2. RHERMBREERN(EFRHE
|EERA ) 4

(@) BRANFTRET

RIETERBMBR

EEY — ZF-NF-A—

BAEX#E)

A BEEUBREENFIN
—EMIA®E

(i)

EHTANDBEREE
(%)

18 75 18 & R B 15 & 2A
TEMH - B IEIRE IR
RFEFAERS RBIZ
BEBHRERDFEFA
Hip2EHA

o  ZEBKREA—E
EHERBKEALN
RenENMHEM
BEEMNFEHRA
FrFsE « &

s RUBEENEH
R E B 8T
ReEHAZRE M
ZHRERETAE
XA S RFEE

# o

RYRERILIEFRAER
BEREHNBRERER
AEBTAREOEEE
REMmEERES 27
BRENHENRERZE -
ZEETREBEREM
FEEL - FTAEEM E
I I 3 AR R TR B X
A EHREAFEFTA
Hib2mWANBE
Er-OoBRRATE
FPABm - WBEMA
TTEMBEE - RIR
FERE > NEE A AR
HEEENBEE (R
H Al 75 A & 1R R
A EBHREAFEFTA
Hip 2 EWARRE) &
BAFEF ARG Al
REABEBETEAER N
RiERD R -

147

EREEZRERATF / 2018 FEHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BEC

wASESR == IR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

EMBEUBREEN(EEUE
HEA D@

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSS — (@) BT RIETEBMKER
effective 1 January 2018 (continued) HER — ZB-NF-—A—
BAERE)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A. BEBUNBHMEERFEIR —
(Continued) SMIAE)

()  Classification and measurement of financial () ZEITASEREE

instruments (Continued) (&)
The following accounting policies would be AT gt B E AR
applied to the Group’s financial assets as REBMMBEEENT -

148

follows:
FVTPL
BAFER AR

Amortised costs

B SRR

FVOCI (debt investments)

B EAEM
EEBA(BHERE)

FVOCI (equity investments)

B EAEM
E2EBA (BAREE)
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FVTPL is subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or 10ss.
?E’Aﬂ?ﬁﬁr}\%@ﬁﬁ/\{éﬁ AFEETE -2
HEBHNIBRER

T RERFBKA

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

REEK AT ENMBEERERAERNEES - FIRIK
)K P Uk 25 K 1R DA SR BN B 2 TR o 2% I TERR A (T UL

EATE EEHL °

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

BATEFARMZERANERIREEERATETS - 5RA
EBREMEEAENF SN - B H e KR EE M&/}MEBATEA
EE.;L Hibam REBRFENEME2EREER - NEME2E
WA R a MEEER FRRREFHREER -

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

BERAFEGFAEME2ERANRIEEZAFETE - REKA
REZNER - RIEREWARBERTKEE HREKR
EmmkEEFEREtaEmIAERATSENERE

s o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)

() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

@)

As of 1 January 2018, private fund
investments were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets at
cost to financial assets at FVTPL. The
Group intends to hold these private
fund investments for trading as there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking. The Group has
designated such private fund
investments at the date of initial
application (the "DIA") as measured at
FVTPL. As at 1 January 2018, there is no
difference between the previous
carrying amount and fair value.

As of 1 January 2018, debt investments
were reclassified from available-for-sale
financial assets at cost to financial
assets at FVOCI, as the Group's
business model is to hold these
financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flow and through the
sale of the financial assets. These debt
investments also meet the SPPI
criterion. As such, the Group has
designated these debt instruments at
the DIA of HKFRS 9 as financial assets
at FVOCI.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

150

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)

() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

©

As of 1 January 2018, certain unquoted
equity securities investments were
reclassified from available-for-sale
financial assets at cost to FVOCI. These
unquoted equity instrument has no
quoted price in an active market. The
Group intends to hold these unguoted
equity investment for long term
strategic purposes. In addition, the
Group has designated such unquoted
equity instrument at the DIA as
measured at FVOCI. As at 1 January
2018, the difference between the
previous carrying amount and the fair
value of HK$136,211,000 has been
included in the opening FVOCI reserve.

The following table summarizes the
original measurement categories under
HKAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under HKRS 9 for each class
of the Group's financial assets as at 1
January 2018:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

SRS 8 B R B ([ BB

A ]) ()

(a) HMFET BT EBUBH
SEA =S NF— -
cES:

W (&)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A ERUBHREERFEIR —
(Continued) ERMITA %)
() Classification and measurement of financial () =BITAMSHERITE
instruments (Continued) (%)
(c) (continued) (© (#&)
Carrying Carrying
amountasat  amount as at
New 1 January 1 January
Original classification  classification 2018 under 2018 under
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
REFAET REFERE
ERIE39% HEEHFEIR
RZE-\§& RIE-N\f
REZBEER REBEHBRE —A—HH —A—HH
ERIE AL EH B9 MBS EmE EHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TET
Listed equity investments FVTPL FVTPL 364,272 364,272
LTRARE BATEAER BATEG AR
Private fund investments Available-for-sale (at cost) ~ FVTPL 34,589 34,589
(Note 2(@)A()(@)
REESRE AEHE (RRE) BATEAER
(Hi2@A0@)
Debt investments Available-for-sale (at cost)  FVOCI 74,926 74.926
(Note 2(@)A()(b)
ERRE EHE (RN E) BATEA
(BizE 2@A00L) ELUEET N
Unlisted equity security Available-for-sale (at cost) ~ FVOCI 579,600 715,811
investments (Note 2(@A((c)
FITRAEHRE W E (BRA) BATEA
(2 2@A00) QTN
Loan receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 1,490,968 1,484,269
(Note 2(@)Ai)(b))
FlER el 3
(Hrzt 2@A060)
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 1,051,512 1,050,927
(Note 2(a)A(i)a) and (a)
25 REMENFIR ER R EYEE BHMA
(@A E) (@)
Fixed and pledged bank deposits,  Loans and receivables Amortised cost 1817776 1,817,619
hank balances and cash (Note 2(@)Afic)
EHRBERROER ERREWNE 3N
BTEBRRE (Hrzt 2@Al0c)
No change in the classification and REBV B EED
measurement of the Group'’s financial DEKFTEWEE
liabilities. The financial liabilities oA BESE
continue to be measured at amortised BN AT E -
cost.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

152

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the
HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the “ECLS
model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group to
recognise ECLs for trade receivables, financial
assets at amortised costs, contract assets
and debt investments at FVOCI earlier than
HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are
subject to ECLs model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are
measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLS that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018

2. ERMBEMBREER(EEME

HwEZERA ) #)

(@) BT RIETEBMKER
HEA — ZZE-NFE—H—
HEM @)

A BEBBRBREENFEINR —
SRMITERE)
(i)  HBEEERE
TR BB B 3RS % B

SEOIRE L T AREE AR,
EBERA - $REEE
HEREPRICELE
BRA | Es [ BHGE
EEBEA] - FEME
WMELRNFITREALE
BARBEGHENE
395k &M SE B E B WK
B MEBEKAGED
MBEE  BHKAR
BAFEFAEMGEZE
WAt ENEBIRE
RIEMEEBER - RE
MR EEMAXEH
EEBBRELXMR - H
AHREBELTERX -

R AR H B B 7 3R 2 A
FEIR - BIBEBERUT
Heh—BEHEHE:
M2EATEBREERSE :
HAR®RSE B % 12(@
ARBEMNBEENS
HERNEREEERE
FQFRABHEEE
Bl em I ATE
ATEHANATE AT REME
NEHELENBEHREE
&8 -

AHFEEENTE

BHEEBRIERR
BAaNEMNNAHNRS
i B K 5 8] 7R HA B
MERERE ZHN
EW ZERERRE
ERBERMN KA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for ECLS on trade receivables
are based on management’s estimate of the
lifetime ECLs to be incurred. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. However, such
historical internal default data is not available
for trade receivables from franchisor and
accounts receivable from custodian clients.
The Group has used a proxy approach to
measure ECLS.

For other debt financial assets such as loan
receivables, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. The 12-months ECLs is the
portion of the lifetime ECLS that results from
default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-
looking information. The Group's other debt
investments at amortised cost are considered
to have low credit risk since the issuers’ credit
rating are high.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

154

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets
measured at amortised cost are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of the assets.
For debt investment at FVOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"), instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)
(i Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECLs model

(@) Impairment of trade receivables
As mentioned above, the measurement
of ECLs adopts a life time ECLs and also
a proxy approach for trade receivables.
The loss allowance as at 1 January 2018
was determined as follows for trade
receivables:

RAWEBUNKREERN((EBMBE

HwEZERA ) &)

(@) ERMHFTRIETEBHKER
HEA ——F-NF—-H—
HAEM#)

A. BEBUNBHRMEEREIR —
E@MITAE)
() BB EERE (&)
EHEEFBEEXNE
@

(a) EZEBRRERE
W _E AT BT E
TEAEE BRI
MERNTEHEE
BB THESE
WRERAER
e RZE—N\F
—A—HnESE
W RIS 1B B 1

BEEWT

Proxy

Stage2  Stage3 approach
P2 PR3 BERE

1 January 2018 Stage 1
R-Z-NF-F—-H PEEX1
ECLs rate (%) AR EEERE %) 0.01%
Gross carrying amount 48R E (TH87T)

(HK$'000) 635,366
Loss allowance EERE(THET)

(HK$'000) 93

The increase in loss allowance for trade
receivables upon the transition to
HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 was
HK$585,000. The loss allowances
further increased for HK$21,643,000 for
trade receivables during the year ended
31 December 2018. No change during
the year ended 31 December 2018
under HKAS 39.

0.15% 45% 0.21%
67,133 0 179751 882,270
100 9 383 585
RZZT—-N\F—A
—BBEERBY

BIREEREIR
% B ZEKRRIE
B 18 B &g
585,000/ T o &
E2-F-NF+=
AZ+—BLEE
2 SR GRIEE 1B
BT — B
21,643,000/ JT °
BE_Z—N\#F
+—A=+—81t
FERBEESSE
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=
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

156

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of debt investments
and loan receivables

All of the Group's debt investments at
FVOCI and loan receivables at amortised
cost are considered to have low credit
risk, and the allowance recognised
during the year was therefore limited to
12 months ECLs. The increase in 10ss
allowance for debt investments and
loan receivables upon the transition to
HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 was
HK$6,699,000. The loss allowances
increased for HK$18,424,000 for loan
receivables (including ECLs from pre-
acquisition amounting to HK$16,771,000)
during the year ended 31 December
2018. No change during the year ended
31 December 2018 under HKAS 39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)

(i Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECLs model (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of fixed and pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and
cash

Fixed and pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are considered to
have low credit risk. The increase in
loss allowance for bank balances and
cash and pledged bank deposits upon
the transition to HKFRS 9 as of 1 January
2018 was HK$157,000. The loss
allowance recognised was limited to 12
months ECLs and increased for
HK$884,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018. ECLs for both bank
balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits are considered immaterial to
the Group.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

158

A.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of other receivables
Other receivables is considered to have
no credit risk. ECLs for other receivables
is considered immaterial the Group.

As a result of the above changes, the
impact of the new HKFRS 9 impairment
model results in additional impairment
allowances as follow:

2. ERMBEMBREER(EEME

WEER ) )

() WM EETEBUER
B — —F—NE—H—

HEMRE)

A. BEBUNBHMEERFEIR —
E@MTAE)
() BB EERE (&)
EHEEFBEEXNS
&®(E)

(d)

H fth W FOR (B
Hfth & W FRIR R
R EEERR -
Hofth & Y R IR B B
HEEEBERERAS
HAKEHNRZET
K o

A Bt &g - 5
BBV ISHRE £
FosREEN A
FEBWEINRE
BELT

HK$°000
THER

Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018
under HKAS 39

R-F—N\F—A—-BRE
FB G ERIZE 395

BIERE 104,814
Additional impairment recognised for: & 5t T3 & IEERRIZEINRAE
— Trade and other receivables — B S REMEKFIE 585
— Debt investments and loan — BB ERERER
receivables 6,699
— Bank balances and cash and —RITHEHREBEUREE
pledged bank deposits PRI TR 157
Loss allowance as at 1January 2018 RZ-—ZT—N\F— A —HiRE
under HKFRS 9 ERBMBwELRNE IR
EiERE 112,255
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(iii)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitiona
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was
generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new
ECLs rules are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, but are recognised
in the statement of financial position on 1
January 2018. This mean that differences in
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in accumulated
(losses)/profits and reserves as at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, the information presented
for 2017 does not reflect the requirements of
HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-2-\F+-A=+—BIEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)
(i) Transition
The following assessments have been made
on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at the DIA of HKFRS 9:

. The determination of the business
model within which a financial asset is
held;

J The designation and revocation of
previous designations of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities
as measured at FVTPL; and

o The designation of certain investments
in equity investments not held for
trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low
credit risk at the DIA, then the Group has
assumed that the credit risk on the asset had
not increased significantly since its initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“HKFRS 15")

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-
step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical
expedients. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying with HKFRS 15
as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at the DIA (that is, 1 January
2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2017 has not been restated.

The following tables summarised the impact of
adopting HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 and its consolidated statement of profit and
loss and OCI for the year ended 31 December 2018.
There was no material impact on the Groups’
consolidated statement of cash flow for the year
ended 31 December 2018:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“"HKFRS 15") (Continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position as of 31 December 2018:

RNERMBREEN(EBUE
WEER ) )
(@) ER#FE]RETEBEBE

HER — —FE-N\F—H—

BAEX#)

B. BERMBHREEAEISH
EFEH W (4)
R-Z—-NE+-_A=+—8
BIBHRRRTE -

Increase/
(decrease)

Previous
HKFRS 15 HKFRS

BRUE

W& ER
58 155%
HK$'000

TAT

LLEE#
BEER i (RD)
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET

Liabilities afE
Deposits received and BEiiEs Rk

receipts in advance TEWRIE (9,552) (9,552) -
Contract liabilities BHEE (i) 9,545 - 9,545
Total liabilities BarE ) (9,552) 9,545

() Presentation of contract assets and contract
liabilities
The Group has also voluntarily changed the
presentation of certain amounts in the
statement of financial position to reflect the
terminology of HKFRS15.

The contract liabilities of HK$9,545,000 as at
31 December 2018 are in relation to the
Group's obligation to provide services to
franchisees for which the Group has received
consideration. The amount was previously
presented as receipt in advance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“HKFRS 15") (Continued)

(ii)

Mother-infant-child products supplied to the
franchisee

The Group is engaged in the supplies of the
mother-infant-child products to the
franchisees. Revenue is recognised when the
control of the products has been transferred
and when the products are delivered to the
franchisees, the franchisor has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the franchisees’ acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been delivered to the franchise
store, the risk of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the franchisee, and either
the franchisee has accepted the products in
accordance with sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
group has objective evidence that all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied. The
revenue is recognised at that point of time. At
this point of time, the recognition point of
revenue is satisfied. The adoption of HKFRS
15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group's accounting policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-2-\F+-A=+—BIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

164

B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“HKFRS 15") (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Manufacturing and sale of infant formula and
nutritional products

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing of
infant formula and nutritional products. The
revenue is recognised when the control of
the product has been transferred to the
customer at a point in time. The Group has
full discretion over the channel and price to
sell the products. At this point of time, the
recognition point of revenue is satisfied. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in
significant impact on the Group’s accounting
policies.

Medical consultation and laboratory services
income

The Group operates the medical consultation
and laboratory service. The service included
to provide assisted reproductive service and
other associated services depending on the
needs and conditions of an individual
customer. The revenue is recognised when
the service was provided to the customer. At
this point of time, the recognition point of
revenue is satisfied. The adoption of HKFRS
15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Bz \F+-A=+—BIrEE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“HKFRS 15") (Continued)

v)

Other segments

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in
significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies regarding the recognition of the other
segment revenue or significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

The standard requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all the
relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts
with their customers. Based on the
assessment of the Group, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018 has results in
changes in accounting policies of the Group,
however, it does not have significant impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognition of the Group, and no adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018 have been made. However, additional
disclosures have been presented for the
current accounting period in Note 9 of the
consolidated financial statements as a result
of adoption of HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-F-\F+-A=t-BLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

166

effective 1 January 2018 (continued)

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;
and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group had not
previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in its first, year.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment
Property — Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use and
provides guidance on making this determination. The
clarification states that a change of use will occur when a
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is supporting evidence
that a change has occurred. The amendments also re-
characterise the list of evidence in the standard as a non-
exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other forms of
evidence to support a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment is
consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously assessed transfers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWERMBREEN(EBYHK

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) HwEZERA ) &)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (@) EMHFETLIETEBMKER
effective 1 January 2018 (continued) HER — B -NF-—A—
B4 #)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining the
date of the transaction for determining an exchange rate
to use for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency and
the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability. The Interpretations specifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part thereof) is the date on which
the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group has not paid or
received advance consideration in a foreign currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
o s = NeeEmm— 2 = Se e || e
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSS, potentially relevant to
the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

EMERMBREEN(EEBRE

WmEER ) #)

(b) BHEMERERERZHT K
B ERMBEREER
AT RA AR ES B HRR AR
BERMEMRERZ ] EERTE
AU RERER - HEAREEN EIEA
RMABRER - REBERENZF
EHLYEALERLZFTEE -

Leases'

HE'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'’

HKFRS 16
BEMBHWSEUE 165
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

HB (AR BREREEESR) —REFES28%

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BT ImEERE IR AEFT AR

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB SEERIE 285 2 BRI A

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20152017 Cycle
EEPKREEN —_T—RAFE T —+FAH
2 EEBE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BANBREEN - E—hEFE-T—F AN
ZEFE R

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20152017 Cycle
EEPKREEN —_E—RAFE T —+FAH
2 EEBE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BEAMBREEN - E—hFE-T—FAH
ZFE R

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

FEMGREERF 105 L E B ALERIZE 2857
ZAERTR

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

FTiSTiEIE o T EE

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’
HAamE  RalgsE T

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
REE AR REERE KRR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations’
BAMBHRERENEIREITR - EBa s

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements!
BV RELERE1SRIEFTA » EELHT

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes'
BB SFHERIZ 25T A - TSR

Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs’
BERGFTERFE 23FEFIA - BN

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

HEEHEBE RN EECECHANEELE
EE 2

! WZE—NF—A—-HAzk &R

January 2019 ZFEHRAER
2 The amendments were originally intended to be effective z ZEEIARER_T—+F—FH

— Rz &%z FEER - B
EMEHRBME M - “ER
FHRATE BB BIERT A ZIERT

for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the amendments
continue to be permitted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HEZ2-\E+-A=+-ALEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWEBUBREEDN(HEBHB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued) wEZER ) &)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEERERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases

As disclosed in Note 4(q), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After
initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HEZE-—N\E+ZA=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

170

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for office equipment and premises
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in profit
or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in Note
51, at 31 December 2018 the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to HK$188,619,000 for premises, the majority of
which is payable between 1 and 5 years after the
reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore
need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The Group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on
adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for
any leases entered into or terminated between now and
the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen, the
Group will apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16
only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
DIA. If the practical expedient is not chosen, the Group
will need to reassess all of its decisions about which
existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the new
definition. Depending on whether the Group elects to
adopt the standard retrospectively or follow a modified
retrospective method of recognising a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the DIA,
the Group may or may not need to restate comparative
information for any changes in accounting resulting from
the reassessment.
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HEP-—\E+=A=ft—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWEBUBREEDN(HEBHB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued) wEZER ) &)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) SHEMEMKRERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

The Group has not yet decided whether it will choose to
take advantage of this practical expedient, and which
transition approach to be taken.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that
it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value" approach, whichever better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-
term interests (“LIT") in associates or joint ventures which
form part of the net investment in the associates or joint
ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to these
LTI before the impairment losses guidance within HKAS
28.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

172

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to LTI in
associates or joint ventures which form part of the net
investment in the associates or joint ventures and
stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the
impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint
operator of a business obtains control over a joint
operation, this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest should
therefore be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Agreements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify that when a party
that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a
joint operation which is a business and subsequently
obtains joint control of the joint operation, the previously
held equity interest should not be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
rpt s s o = 2 See— [ahilaels
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFAS 12 which clarify that all income
tax consequences of dividends are recognised
consistently with the transactions that generated the
distributable profits, either in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFAS 23 which clarifies that a
borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying asset
which remains outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale would become
part of the funds an entity borrows generally and
therefore included in the general pool.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and financial
statements.
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35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS") and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

174

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of its subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests (the “NCI”) are presented,
separately from equity holders of the Company, in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The NCIs in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or
at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement basis
is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the NCIs. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the equity holders
of the Company and the non-controlling interest even if
this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit
balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

176

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interest (Continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest determined at the date when control is lost and
(i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amount
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amount owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint
venture or others as appropriate from the date when
control is lost.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

] Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

178

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

4.

(c)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

180

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

In the Company's statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The carrying amount of the investments is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group's investment in associates are accounted for
under the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the investee's net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses when the Group's share of losses of the investee
equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in
the investee, which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the investee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates (continued)

4.

(f)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or
joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such
goodwill is included in interest in associates. On the other
hand, any excess of the Group's share of its net fair value
of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
an income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

182

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives as set out
below from the date on which they are available for use
and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method. Where parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Over the lease
terms or 7 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 4-10 years
Computer and office equipments 2-13 years
Medical equipments 3-7 years
Motor vehicles 2-6 years
Freehold land Indefinite
Building 50 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised. Freehold land is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is
provided for freehold land.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at costs less any
accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives as follows:

Brand names
Licenses and trading lights

10 years-indefinite
7 years—indefinite

Trademarks 10 years

Customer and franchisee 5-10 years
relationships

Computer software and systems 3-10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the
date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set
out above. Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are
tested for impairment at least annually.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting

policies applied from 1 January 2018)

184

(M

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sale of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-—\F+-_A=+—HILFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(M

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through OCI. Debt
investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting

policies applied from 1 January 2018)

(Continued)

186

(M

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at FVOCI are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLS on
trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLS: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLS is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BEC

A== 2

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

Loss allowance for ECLs on trade receivables are
based on management's estimated of the lifetime
ECLs to be incurred. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

BEC

188

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held), or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or l0ss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—\F+-A=+—RBItFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EESFBE#E)

(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting (h) AeRTR(B=ZF—N\F—
policies applied from 1 January 2018) BA—BRERSBEXR)#)
(Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) MKAaE#E)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVTPL, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (i) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, except for the gains and losses arising
from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting

190

policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or 10ss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period
respectively. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability respectively, or where

appropriate, a shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-—\F+-_A=+—HILFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer of the contract to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder of the
contract for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
measured at FVTPL, are carried at the higher of (i)
the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECLs
provision, measured in accordance with principles
of the accounting policy set out 4(h)A(ii); and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-—2—\F+-A=+—HBItFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EESFBE#E)
(h) A. Financial instruments (accounting (h) AeRTR(B=ZF—N\F—
policies applied from 1 January 2018) A—BRERSFBXR)#)
(Continued)

(vii) Derecognition (Continued) (vii) #KRIEFER (&)

192

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.

(viii) Reverse repurchase and repurchase

agreements

When debt securities are sold subject to a
commitment to repurchase them at a
predetermined price (“repos”), they remain on the
balance sheet and a liability is recorded in respect
of the consideration received. Securities purchased
under commitments to resell (“reverse repos”) are
not recognised on the balance sheet and an asset
is recorded in respect of the initial consideration
paid. Non-trading repos and reverse repos are
measured at amortised cost. The difference
between sale and repurchase price or between the
purchase and resale price is treated as interest and
recognised in net interest income over the life of
the agreements.

Contracts that are economically equivalent to
reverse repo or repo agreements (such as sales or
purchases of debt securities entered into together
with total return swaps with the same counterparty)
are accounted for similarly to, and presented
together with, reverse repo or repo agreements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) B. Financial instruments (accounting

policies applied until 31 December 2017)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group's previous accounting policy.

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, or (b) the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) B. Financial instruments (accounting

policies applied until 31 December 2017)

(Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially

recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial

assets or financial liabilities not carried at FVTPL,

transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial

liabilities.

194

(M

Financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets or financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL, and financial assets or
financial liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are
carried at fair value, with any resulting gain and
loss recognised in profit or 10ss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-—\F+-_A=+—HILFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) B. Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(M

Financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are (i) acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the near future; (i) part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii)
derivatives that are not financial guarantee
contracts or not designated and effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are
designated at initial recognition as at FVTPL only if (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or
(i) they are part of a group of financial assets and/
or financial liabilities that are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives
that would need to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at FVTPL, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) B. Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)

(Continued)
(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other
receivables, loans receivables and bank balances
and cash are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any
fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting
would be insignificant. In such case, the receivables
are stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition over the period
to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or

lOss.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated at this category or not classified in any
of the other categories of financial assets. They are
measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as a separate component of equity until
the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed
of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are

stated at cost less impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
pEprte s =o) = o 2 e S e
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) B. Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
assesses whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets
carried at amortised cost is measured as the
difference between the assets’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flow
discounted at the financial assets’ original effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an
increase in the assets’ recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, interest-bearing borrowings and
amount due to an associate. All financial liabilities,
except for financial liabilities at FVTPL, are
recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period
respectively. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability respectively, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z—N\G+-A=+—BLFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EEETHE#®)

(h) B. Financial instruments (accounting (h) BERMIA(R=-Z2—+t#&F
policies applied until 31 December 2017) +ZA=t+—HARANE
(Continued) BUR) (&)

(vii) Equity instruments (vii) BATH

198

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(viii) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at
FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS
18 Revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\F+-A=+—BLFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EEETEE(#)

(h) B. Financial instruments (accounting (h) BEMIA(R=-Z2—+t#&F
policies applied until 31 December 2017) +ZA=t+—HARANE
(Continued) BUR) (&)

(ix) Derecognition (ix) #KILLHER

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

()

200

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value at the date derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently measured at their fair value at the
end of reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices in active market or are determined using valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow model and
options pricing model as appropriate.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivative when their characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) A. Revenue recognition (accounting

policies applied from 1 January 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z—

NE+ZA=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) A. Revenue recognition (accounting

202

policies applied from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception./Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For contracts where the
period between the payment and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue of the group is measured on the following basis:

o Net income from trading of securities and options
and commodities contracts are recognised on the
transaction date when the relevant sale and
purchase contract is entered into.

o Underwriting commission is recognised upon
allotment and when the obligation under the
underwriting or sub- underwriting agreement has
expired. Placing commission is recognised on the
contractual completion of trades.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\G+-A=+—BiIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EEETEE(#)
(k) A. Revenue recognition (accounting (k) AWARBRIZ(B=Z—NF—
policies applied from 1 January 2018) B—BESTEX)#®)

(Continued)

Income from franchisor and retail of mother-infant-
child product for sale of goods and manufacture
and sales of infant formula and nutritional products
are recognised when the control of the products
has transferred, i.e. the risk of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred, and the group has
objective evidence that all criteria for customer
acceptance of the products have been satisfied.
This is usually taken as the point of time when the
goods are delivered and the customers have
accepted the goods.

Advisory fee income is recognised when the
relevant services are provided to the customers.

Margin facility fee income is recognised as when
services are rendered.

Medical consultation and laboratory services
income is recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Net income from the sale of investments at FVTPL
is recognised on the transaction date when the
relevant sale and purchase contract is entered into.

Ccommission income is recognised when the goods
on which the commission is calculated are
delivered.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on
a time basis on the principal outstanding at the
applicable effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive the dividend
payment have been established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z—

NE+ZA=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) B. Revenue recognition (accounting

204

policies applied until 31 December 2017)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably and on the following bases:

Net income from trading of securities and options and
commodities contracts are recognised on the transaction
date when the relevant sale and purchase contract is
entered into.

Underwriting commission is recognised upon allotment
and when the obligation under the underwriting or sub-
underwriting agreement has expired. Placing commission
is recognised on the contractual completion of trades.

Income from franchisor and retail of mother-infant- child
product for sale of goods and manufacture and sales of
infant formula and nutritional products are recognised
upon transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the customers. This is usually taken as the
time when the goods are delivered and the customers
have accepted the goods.

Advisory fee income is recognised when the relevant
services are provided to the customers.

Margin facility fee income is recognised when services
are rendered.

Medical consultation and laboratory services income is
recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Net income from the sale of investments at FVTPL is
recognised on the transaction date when the relevant
sale and purchase contract is entered into.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

0

(m)

B. Revenue recognition (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable.

Contract Liabilities (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Foreign currencies translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the Company’s
functional currency, and rounded to the nearest
thousands unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except
for those arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or losses are
also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Foreign currencies translation (continued)

206

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented and, where applicable, goodwill
and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of
a foreign operation which are to be treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation, are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate.

All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s net investment in a foreign operation are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest is
no longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to the
foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
separate component of equity is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Foreign currencies translation (continued)

4.

(n)

o On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in that
foreign operation and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.

o On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0) Impairment of other assets

208

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, and investments in
subsidiaries and associate may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In addition, the Group tests its intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives and intangible assets that
are not yet available for use for impairment by estimating
their recoverable amount on an annual basis and
whenever there is an indication that those assets may be
impaired. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group
of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

(p)

(@)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings,
that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or 10ss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits

210

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are rendered by
employees.

Defined contribution scheme

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the employees of
the Group's entities established in the PRC are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by local governments. Contributions to those
plans are expensed as incurred and other than these
monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement benefits to its
employees.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method and discounted to its present value
and after deducting the fair value of any related assets,
including those retirement scheme benefit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FE=FHBEE)
(s) Taxation (s) BiE

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from initial
recognition of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-N\F+_A=1T—HILFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Related parties
(@  Aperson or a close member of that person'’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the holding
company of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third-party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

212
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\F+A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESFBE#®)

(t) Related parties (continued) (t) BAEAL )
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b))  HFE TIERESE - BIZE

following conditions applies: (Continued) BEALEEHE: (B)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by vi) EBZQ@QANMBNALT
a person identified in (a). P sk E ]

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi) @OAFTENALTHE
influence over the entity or is a member of BEEAXENLRZ
the key management personnel of the entity ER(RZEBZERRD

(or of a holding company of the entity). A EEERENE

puj

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ERNZEEBMBSE
which it is a part, provides key management M TEMK B R & |
personnel services to the Group or to the SESAEEER AT
holding company of the Group. REFEEEABRE

Close members of the family of a person are those family —BAANTZARERRAEEZALT
members who may be expected to influence, or be HERBETEEINBEERYZAL
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity TENFHAREKE - B
and include:
(@) that person’s child and spouse or domestic partner; (@ BmBATHFZEEEBHERE
=
(b)  child of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; (b)) ZBAATHRBEXEEHER
and TR
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse (0 ZBAALTHZBATHEREK
or domestic partner. FEEHEHIZEA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

214

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided to
the Group's chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic
benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and
are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group's property, plant and equipment based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of the
relevant assets of similar nature and functions. The
estimated useful lives could be different as a result of
technical innovations which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or loss.

(b) Intangible assets and amortisation

The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group's intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite, based on the expected
usage and technical obsolescence from the changes in
the market demands or services output from the assets.
Intangible assets are not amortised when their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment. The Group may need to amortise
intangible assets in future periods or recognise
impairment losses on intangible assets if events and
circumstances indicate that the useful life is not
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised over the expected useful economic lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(0

(d)

216

Impairment of non-current assets, excluding
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and goodwill

Non-current assets excluding intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation/amortisation, where
appropriate, and impairment losses. These carrying
amounts are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment 10ss is
recognised for the amount by which the non-current
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
estimating the recoverable amounts of the non-current
assets, various assumptions, including future cash flows
to be associated with the non-current assets and
discount rates, are made. If future events do not
correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable
amounts will need to be revised, and this may have an
impact on the Group's results of operations or financial
position.

Impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

Determining whether intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives of the Group are impaired requires an
estimation of recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units to which intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives have been allocated, which is the higher of the
related fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
The calculations require the management to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the recoverable amounts.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. FEgTHEFTTRAE @)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

CRENEESES:VER T )

(Continued)

(e) Impairment of goodwill (e) BERE
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at AEBZVEFEEHESERE -
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of ETHEREOREREESREEZ
the value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is ReELEN ZFERAEBED M -
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group et AEEERAEE G ERE
to make an estimate of the expected cash flows from the SEREEASEUZAERERER
CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order BEES TR EUGFEZSERENM
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Details KIRME - FrE AT RS REFTER 2
of the estimates used to calculate the recoverable ETEIEE N R A M IS IRRMIFE18 ©
amount are given in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(f) Allowance for inventories ) =FERE
The Group's management reviews the condition of FEEZERERNES Z2HRPEERR
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and HTEEBR  ERARR  FHK
makes allowance for inventories that are identified as TRIgERINE M EE AR EENTFE
obsolete, slow-moving or no longer recoverable or TELBE - AEERREERE —®
suitable for use in production. The Group carries out the HEE - WREMSERRRITTIR
inventory review on a product-by-product basis and VEHI B4 -
makes allowances by reference to the latest market
prices and current market conditions.

(g) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (8) RZEREBHE

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation by management of the
collectability of loan receivables, trade and other
receivables. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including assessing the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. If the financial conditions of these debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowance will be required.

AEBEZ RIERBEBRDEREE
B RN E Rz AT B2 E R - 7F
HREFREFAZRRBHREN (B
EHESERAENEERRALBE
B B AR KB HIE - W
ZEERAZH BB - SHE
FRBESIRES - RIZERHERRRIMEE o
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(h)

218

Impairment of investments and receivables
The Group assesses annually if investments in
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture have suffered
any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and follows
the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining whether
amounts due from these entities and available-for-sale
financial assets measured at cost less impairment are
impaired. Details of the approach are stated in the
respective accounting policies.

The assessment requires an estimation of future cash
flows, including expected dividends from the assets and
the selection of appropriate discount rates. Future
changes in financial performance and position of these
entities would affect the estimation of impairment loss
and cause the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Contingent consideration in acquisition of
subsidiary

Certain business acquisition of the Group has involved
post-acquisition performance-based contingent
considerations. HKFRS 3 (Revised) is effective
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
The Group follows the requirement of HKFRS 3 (Revised)
to recognise the fair value of those contingent
considerations for acquisition, as of the respective
acquisition date as part of the consideration transferred
in exchange for the acquired subsidiary. These fair value
measurements require, among other things, significant
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the
acquired subsidiary and significant judgment on time
value of money. Contingent considerations shall be
remeasured at their fair value resulting from events or
factors emerging after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income in accordance with
HKFRS 3 (Revised).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

5.

@

()

Contingent consideration in acquisition of
subsidiary (Continued)

The contingent consideration reflects a specified multiple
of the post-acquisition financial profitability of the
acquired subsidiary. Consequently, the actual additional
consideration payable may vary according to the future
performance of the acquired subsidiary, and the liabilities
provided reflect estimates of such future performances.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair values
are determined using valuation technigues including the
use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions and
other valuation techniques commonly used by other
market participants. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. The judgements
include considerations of inputs such as implied equity
value, volatility and risk-free rate. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

TURNOVER

Turnover from operation represents the aggregative of gross
sales proceeds from disposal of trading of securities
investments, provision of financing services, provision of
wealth and asset management, financial brokerage and related
services, provision of medical and laboratory services,
franchisor and retail of mother-infant-child products, and
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products.
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7. OPERATING INCOME 7. REWA

Operating income recognised from the principal activities of ENAEEFTEEH (AESEBERE -
the Group during the year including trading of securities B s o I
investments, provision of financing services, provision of iﬂ%“ﬁéﬁ&% ‘ hﬁi\’ﬁ‘jmﬁégfﬂ;ﬁ
wealth and asset management, financial brokerage and related Al A KBRS - RUERERRRER
services, provision of medical and laboratory services, B RAEEATESEEER  HEY
franchisor and retail of mother-infant-child products, MET T R L EE DA RR B BT
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products, and TR @A AT

investment holding is as follows:

2017
—ET—+F
HK$'000
F&T
Brokerage commission income from: K melAKRE
— securities dealing —EHEE 26,756 21,281
— insurance — fRBR 93,157 -
— underwriting and placing — BHEEREEMAEKA
commission income 885 3,784
Commission income and supporting iR E B EEMM
service income from concessionaire & WA K32 IR U A
sales of mother-infant-child products 105,929 90,978
Ccommission income from providing RMHA - S RAEEED
advisory, account and BEWA
custody management 40,115 -
Financial advisory fee income B SRR B WA 26,436 4,187
Margin facility and loan facility FRRERERRE
handling fee income FEEWA 8,507 1,884
Medical consultation and laboratory BEEZARERERBUA
services income 65,348 143,227
Franchisor and retail sales of mother- BraeghTEMEEER
infant-child products 2,908,919 2,419,885
Rental income from sub-lease of premises ¥ 5SS U A 1,159 914
(Loss)/gain from the sale of financial HERANFEFAERZZ
assets at FVTPL, net* M EE (B1B) WS FEE* (64,209) 14,424
Dividend income from financial assets BAFEFABSEZHMBERE
at FVTPL ZREHA 5,735 17
Interest income from: FBIAZRE -
— margin financing — IFEME 52,926 49,181
— loan receivables from third parties —BWE=FER 131,195 107,111
— loan receivables from a non- — R KB AA
controlling shareholder of a FEVERR AR R 2 B3R
subsidiary (Note 27(c)) (Htat27(c) 12,616 10,611
Manufacture and sale of infant formula &% & 85 8240 B T 0 &
and nutritional products EEEM 91,520 32,954
3,506,994 2,900,438
* Represented the proceeds from the sale of financial assets at * EHERAFEF ABEZMBREMRS
FVTPL of HK$503,066,000 (2017: HK$835,712,000) less relevant X I8503,066,0007 TL( = F — £ F ¢
costs and carrying value of the financial assets sold of 835,712,000/ L) B &M H A & 2 1
HK$567,275,000 (2017: HK$821,288,000). 8 Ak 7K % B T {8567,275,00058 T ( = &
—+4F : 821,288,000/87T) °
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8.

OTHER INCOME

HAp U A

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Interest income from financial institutions & B 4 B H F B U4 A 19,928 15,881
Management and handling fee income BB RFEEU A - 6,734
Government subsidies T i 3,669 -
Rental income M WA 2,709 -
Others HAmh 3,203 973
29,509 23,588

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management has been identified as the chief operating
decision makers to evaluate the performance of operating
segments and to allocate resources to those segments based
on the Group’s internal reporting in respect of these segments.
The management considers trading of securities investments,
provision of financing services, provision of wealth and asset
management, financial brokerage and related services,
provision of medical and laboratory services, franchisor and
retail of mother-infant-child products, manufacture of infant
formula and nutritional products and investment holding are
the Group’s major operating segments. Segment results
represent the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment.

2 ERE
EEERAATIBLERKE ERAR
BEEBOMONGERLH BEEK
DERBRDEEH D MNER - BEE
RREEEFRE  RUBRERY - RBH#
MEREEETRE SRELIBERSE -
RUBEREREZRE HHAEERTE
BREER HEBRRESIDHRERE
R REERTIAEBENEEER DAL -
7> BB SRAR 3R B A% 0 BB BRER A0 4 A oA R
HEIR °
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9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Trading of securities investments

BEEEHFRE

Provision of financing services

RIEFE R

Provision of wealth and asset
management, financial
brokerage and related services

REHUELEETE - 2RL4e
K AR AR 7

Provision of medical and
laboratory services

REHBELEBRERS

Franchisor and retail of mother-
infant-child products

BFraghTE08EER

Manufacture of infant formula and
nutritional products

SLEBN TN R EEEMD

Investment holding

REER

222
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9. HEER (&)
AEEZ EBHBBIETHEE -

Investment of shares, stocks, options and funds

wERD  RE - HEERES

Provision of loan financing services

RHEFEE RS

Provision of wealth and asset management dealing in securities,
provision of securities, commodities and bullion brokerage
services and financial advisory services

REVENREEER BHFRXH RHIBSF ELk
B B4 RS & I 75 Ra S AR 75

Provision of medical consultation and laboratory services relating
to assisted reproductive technology

IRMEEAEERN A AN BESARERERE

Managing franchise and operating retail stores of
mother-infant-child products

EEFTEERCENEEERNTERH

Development, manufacture and sale of infant milk formula
products, and supplement and organic nutrition products

FIEE - BUE R IHE B T DI E B R Al
AR BHEEEm

Holding investments for dividend and investment income and
capital appreciation

RWIRE - REWAREBARREMFERE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHER B
(@) Segment turnover (@) DEEXERE

REBIZEE DB D 2 LERBEOTAWT ¢

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover by

operating segments:
Provision of
wealth
and asset
management, Franchisor  Manufacture
financial ~ Provision of  and retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of  brokerage  medical and mother-  formula and
securities financing  andrelated  laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment
investments services services services products products holding  Unallocated
RUHNER
BEEE. KiEE  RERHR
ERELR  RUBER R%E EAiih
BERSRE RURERE HBRE ERERE 8EEER REEER REER AR Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEn TEn Thn Thn Tén Tén TEn TEn Thn
Year ended B2o%-NE
31 December 2018 t2A=t-BLEE
Segment turmover PPEEE
From contracts with customers — REEBEKRL2E
within the scope of HKFRS 15 EIFEENERAN - - = 65,348 3,016,007 91,520 - - 3172875
From other source AR 114,726 130,683 655,985 - - - - - 901,394
114,726 130,683 655,985 65,348 3,016,007 91,520 - - 4,074,269
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEERE)
(@) Segment turnover (Continued) (@) DEHEXTEE)

Provision of
Wealth
and asset

management, Franchisor ~ Manufacture

financial ~ Provisionof  and retail of of infant

Tradingof ~ Provision of brokerage  medical and mother-  formula and

Securities financing ~ and related [aboratory ~ infant-child nutritional ~ Investment

investments services services services products products holding

Unallocated

d AR
HKS' 000 (§ (§ HKS'000 HKS'000

T

TR L ThT T

224

Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ=F-+#
t-AZ+-ALEE
Segment turnover AheEE
From contracts with customers REARUBREER
within the scope of HKFRS 15 F1REERERAY - - - - - - - -
From other source ERKE 835729 119076 78963 143221 2511771 - - 3721726
Note: Biat

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative

effect method. Under this method, the comparative information
is not restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18.
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEERE)
(b) Segment income and results (b) DEBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s income and REEREEDFE D 2 WA KREE
results by operating segments: DITEHIIT -

Provision
of wealth
and asset
management, Franchisor ~ Manufacture
financial ~ Provision of  and retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of  brokerage  medical and mother-  formula and
securities  financing  andrelated  laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding  Unallocated
RUHER
BEEE. o RERGR
Rt SHER  RUBRR HERTE EAih
BERSRE BER% REBRY ERZRE 82EER REEER REER AR Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TEn TEr TR TER TET TR

Year ended H2-E-\F

31 December 2018 tZB=t-ALEE
Segment income ABRA (49,590) 130,683 253,026 65348 3,016,007 91,520 - - 350699
Profit/oss) for the year RITRERZER

hefore following items: i/ (58) (71,799 7,507 (6,108) (11,359) 192,916 (28,628) (29,026) (2,542) 50,961
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BERGEEL

plant and equipment B - - (@7 - (472) (98) - - (617)
Impairment loss on goodwil HEHERE - - (10,000) - - - - = (10,000)
Finance costs BERK 2,016 (1,442) (8,776) - (14,310 (36) (1,000) - (23,548)
Share of resLlts of associates EIERENREE - - - 24,708 - - - - 24,708
Profit/loss) from operation FEER/ (5518 (69,783) 6,065 (24,931) 13,349 178,134 (28,762) (30,026) (2,542) 41,504
Gain on disposal of HENBLADERO NG

nterests in a subsiclary - - 22,288 - - - - - 22,288
(Gain on deemed disposal of HRALENELR

Interests in subsidiaries L 2staliey - - - 131,352 - - - - 131,352
Profit/oss) from operation BEER|/ (B8 (69,783) 6,065 (2,643) 144,701 178,134 (28,762) (30,026) (2,542) 195,144
(Gain on measLrement of ERSAREOHENSE

contingent consideration

payables - - - - 11,866 - - - 11,866
Profitloss) before taxation BEaER/(8E) (69,783) 6,065 (2643) 144701 190,000 (28,762) (30,026) (2542) 207,010
Income tax credit/(expense) fEREs/(B%) 11,000 - 6,937 (3,854) (53,401) 8,320 - - (30,998)
Segment results APEE (58,783) 6,065 4,294 140,847 136,599 (20,442) (30,026) (2,542) 176,012
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEERE)
(b) Segment income and results (continued) (b) DU ARELEE)

Trading of
Securities

Investments

HK$000

Provision of
financing

Services

Provision

of wealth
and asset
management,
financial
hrokerage
and related

Provision of
medical and
[aboratory

Franchisor
and retail of
mother-
infant-child

products

Manufacture
of infant
formula and
nutritional

products

Investment

holding

Unallocated

HK§000 HKS'000
T TFEL BT

Year ended HE-S-tF

31 December 2017 TZR=t+-ALEE
Segment income AHUA 14,48 119,076 78963 w7 25 32,954 - - 290438
Profit/oss) for the year before RUTRENZER

following items: afl/(Bi8): 15,051 0473 (16791) 4755 185,792 3N 762 3206 2850
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, — HENE - BERE

plant and equipment W&/ (B8 - - 64 2 (365) - - - 1
Impairment oss on avallable-for- TRLENKEE RESE

sale financial assets - - - - - - (5,539) - (5,5%)
Finance costs BERK - (4,438) (2359 - (15,579) 2 9.299) - (31703
Share of resuls of an associate EE-EBLATEE - - - 6,019 - - - - 6019
Profit/oss) from operation mEaT/(58) 15,051 603 (19,086) 19076 169,848 3 7213 3216 27300
Loss onmeasurement of contingent ~ ER S AR BRI ERE

consideration payable - - - - (1298%) - - - (129.899)
Profit/oss) before taxation RHanan/ (E8) 15,051 6,035 (19,086) 19,076 999 k1K) 7213 326 87401
Incorme tax expense FRHAY (11,000 (500) 2694 (6712 (45303) (110) - - (60931)
Segment results PHEE 4,051 5535 (1639 0364 (5,354) 33 7213 326 %470
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BHET
9.

A== 2

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment income and results (continuead)

Segment income reported above represents income
generated from external customers. There was no inter-
segment income in both years.

Income and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to income generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation/
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
Note 4(u) to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment results represent the results achieved by each
segment. This is the measurement method reported to
the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

9.

’J’J‘ﬁﬂﬁﬂ@l(f“‘")

(b)

7 EBRARRE ()
LRMEFS HRARRAINDES
B A o £ 1L 2 i A 55 BB R U
A e

WARFAXERNZEREDHEEZ
WA KX %S D AR 2 BEN
E/BHMEENRXRIREME
VR DA

EB BN EHABOREREENEGS
BTG SRR BT s 4(U) il A & 5 R —
B DEPEBIEREB D IS E
Bl AN RERETEEBD Y
REMMEBLEREEZRATAR
EhHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHERH)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (c) »PBEERAE
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AEBEMEEMBBRIRIEED DO
operating segments is set out below. R e

Provision of
wealth
and asset

management, Franchisor  Manufacture

financial  Provision of and retail of infant
Tradingof  Provisionof  brokerage  medicaland  of mother-  formula and
securities financing  andrelated  laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment
investments services services services products products holding
BUNER
BEEE. B RERYR
BE EREL  RHBRR  BER%E EAiih
FERE RUMERE REBRE  ERERE 2 SREER  REEER REER Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEn Thn Tén TEn TEn Thn Tén

Year ended HEZE-N%
31December 2018 TZB=t-ALEE

Assets before following items: FAUTREZEE: 519,230 1,124,522 4,697,921 173,041 1,445,701 232,220 1,249,792 9,442,421

Inferests i an associates R-FBELT R = - - 833,489 - - - 833,489

Goodwil S - - 206,844 - 271,252 298,199 - 776,295

Segment assets ABEE 519,230 1,124,522 4,904,765 1,006,530 1,716,953 530,419 1,249,792 11,052,211

Unallocated assets ROREE 324,343
11,376,554

Total assets nEE

Liabilities 8f

Segment liabilties ABaRE (425) (42,295)  (3272589)  (157,744)  (949,864) (90,020) (28,694)  (4541,631)

Unallocated ligbiiies AOMER (33,291)

Totalliabilties af (4,574922)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHER B
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (c) NHEEREE®)
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AEBEMEEMBBIRIEED O
operating segments is set out below. R e

Provision of
Wealth

and asset
management,
financial
brokerage
and related
Services

Manufacture
of infant
formula and
nutritional
products

Franchisor
and retall
of mother-
infant-child
products

Provision of
medical and
laboratory
Services

Provision of
financing
Services

Trading of
securities
investments

Investment
holding

ERER G, @t
HK$'000 HKS'000
AL

BEEER

HKS'000

HK$'000 HKS 00
T A

HK$ 000

TER AT A

HK$'000
ThL

Year ended BEo3-t%
31 December 2017 tZB=t+-BLEE

Assets before following items: U T&EZEE

791547 1,383,369 807418 268 548 1257673 24,628 1,132,002 5,365,185
Interest n an associate R-FBENAZES - - - 220235 - - - 2003
Goodwill e - - 26,587 18329 267,276 339,639 - 816,798
Segment assets PHEE 791547 1,383,369 834,005 672,079 1,524.949 564,267 1,132,002 6,902,218
Unallocated assets FAREE 891,530
Total assets BoE 7793748
Liabilities gk
Segment liabilities HBEE (1,119 (50,638) (118,250) (46,576) (906,956) (105,785) (30127)  (1,269.451)
Unallocated liabilties FOREE (31454)
Total liabilities hak (1300905)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (continuea)

230

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

Segment assets include mainly all property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, interest
in associates, available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL,
financial assets at FVOCI, financial assets at
amortised cost, inventories, loan receivables,
derivative financial instruments, other non-current
deposits paid and prepayments, trade and other
receivables, fixed bank deposits, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, and reverse
repurchase agreements. All assets are allocated to
operating segments other than unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, contract liabilities, interest-bearing
borrowings, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities,
derivative financial instruments, financial liabilities
at FVTPL, redeemable and exchangeable preferred
share, and repurchase agreements. All liabilities
are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

el s IESE = S Y A

DEBE R ()

(d) MAZDE
RTE - WAREEwRTE  £2
o R RS AR DA R IR A TSR R

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
(d) Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by
primary geographical market, major products and service
lines and timing of revenue recognition. The table also

includes a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue
with the Group's reportable segment.

B RRTEERSBRARKEH

CIES

Wy Bk -

Franchisor Manufacture
Provision of and retail of infant
medical and of mother- formula and
laboratory infant-child nutritional
services products products Total
45T BUERH R
RIEEEK HEREE il 75 34
ERZERY BEBEER REEER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART THET FTHET THET
As at 31 December RZZE-N\F
2018 +=-BA=+—8
Primary geographical FE#EwWH
markets
Hong Kong &5 65,348 - - 65,348
PRC M - 3,016,007 - 3,016,007
Australia SN - - 91,520 91,520
Total 4t 65,348 3,016,007 91,520 3,172,875
Major products/ TEER/RER
service lines
Medical and laboratory — E5& & B 5 = IR TS
services 65,348 - - 65,348
Mother-infant-child HREER
products - 3,016,007 - 3,016,007
Infant formula and LRI R
nutritional products EEEM - - 91,520 91,520
65,348 3,016,007 91,520 3,172,875
Timing of revenue WA TR RE
recognition
At apointin time B R 2h 65,348 3,010,421 91,520 3,167,289
Transferred over time BERs ISR - 5,586 - 5,586
65,348 3,016,007 91,520 3,172,875
231
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

232

9.

DEER ()
(d) WMAZzoE#)

Franchisor Manufacture
Provision of and retail of infant
medical and of mother- formula and
laboratory infant-child nutritional
services products products
RraT SLERN T
RHEBER BEERTE fid 75 g
% 2= AR 7% HEEEM REEEM BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
As at 31 December RZB—t&
2017 +=BA=+—H8
Primary geographical FEMEMIE
markets
Hong Kong BB 143,227 - - 143,227
PRC =) - 2,511,777 - 2,511,777
Australia BN - - 32,954 32,954
Total Bt 143,227 2,511,777 32,954 2,687,958
Major products/ TEER/BER
service lines
Medical and laboratory — E& M BB ERE
services 143,227 - - 143,227
Mother-infant-child HEREER
products - 2,511,777 - 2,511,777
Infant formula and LT TP RE
nutritional products BEM - - 32,954 32,954
143,227 2,511,777 32,954 2,687,958
Timing of revenue WA TR R
recognition
At a pointin time i e 2h 143,227 2,511,777 32,954 2,687,958
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

9.

Year ended
31 December 2018

Additions of specified non-crrent assets*
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Interest income incluced in
operating income and other income
Impairment loss on financial assets
for ECLS
Net fair value gain on financial
intruments
Net fair value gain/(loss) on derivative
financial intruments

H2-%-N%
tZR=T-RLEE

RUABHRBEE
EVRERS
0% BERREAE

SAEERARAMRAR
HEAA
IBAEREREEBRREDR

SHTAZATRAERE

fEEBIEZATE
b5/ (BR)5E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(e) Other segment information

Trading of

securities

investments

AR
HKS'000
TR

32

8,490

Provision
of wealth
and asset
Management,
financial
Provisionof ~ brokerage
financing  and related
services
RUSTER
BEEE.
it SRER
RERE  REBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn Tn

services

= 641,257
- (21,455)

- (12,301)

= 12,961

1,352 (21,670)

9. AHER )
(e) HtbaBMEHR

Provision of
medical and
[aboratory
services

REBRR
ERERE
HKS'000
TiEn

1,246

(427)

(1,744)

Franchisor
and retail
of mother-
infant-child
products

EEE
BER2E
BREER

HKS'000
TiErn

18,156
(6,089)

(9,235)

383

(2,456)

2,276

Manufacture
of infant
formula and
nutritional
products

HERYSR
Enfih
REEER
HKS'000
T

3,389
(26,491)

(2,673)

156

Investment
holding

REER
HKS'000.
TERL

2,126

Unallocated

AR
HKS'000
ThR

24,060

(4,793)

4,329

45

it
HKS'000
TER

688,108
(54,035)

(29.429)

19,928

(22,690)

8,490

532
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_ZT - \F+=-A=1+—RHLEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHERH)
(e) Other segment information (continued) (e) HitpEER (2)

Manufacture
n of and retail of infant
brokerage  medical and ( er-  formulaand

and related [a infant-child nutritional Investment

products rooucts holding

AR
HK$'000 ! K K$'000 000 (§'000 HK$'000

THL

Year ended HEZR-tF
31 December 2017 TIAET-BLEE
Addtions of specified non-current assets*  SEMAREREAE* - - 17903 8 10217 582,903 - 3165 61427
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEEEY - - (16,88¢) - (5.436) (6,862 - - (29188)
Depreciation of property, 0% BERRENE
plant and equipment - - (4,662 (807) (9,241) (759) - (1,326) (16,791)
Interestincome included in operating st ASBRAREHRABFIERA
income and other income 3 - 1,105 1 - 3 425 9,994 15362
Provision for alowance for RERBHRTE
doubtful debts, net - - 4,169 (128) - - - - (4297
Net fair value gain on financil SRIAZATEUETE
instruments 75900 - - - - - - - 75900
* Including additions of property, plant and equipment, * BREAENEBVENRBARTRE
intangible assets and goodwill directly or through ME - BEERE BREENRSE
acquisition of subsidiaries. &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
(f) Geographical information
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
operating income from external customers by locations
of operations and non-current assets (excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) by locations of

DEER ()

(h HEEHR
TRBFIAEEEEBUELS RS
SRS ZEERAREABENER
DZIRBEE(TEELAMIAR
EEHREAE) (HEEFRBEE])

assets (“Specified non-current assets”): 2
Operating income from Specified non-current
external customers assets
REIIMBEF ZKEUWA EEHFEREEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-NE —=—tF ZZB-NF ZFT—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT TET FATT
Hong Kong BB 347,953 355,707 1,901,261 1,219,163
PRC Fh 3,016,007 2,511,777 327,568 326,463
Australia SEIM 91,520 32,954 485,131 540,443
Europe BN 51,514 - 684,557 -
3,506,994 2,900,438 3,398,517 2,086,069

(g) Information about major customers
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
operating income from a single customer of the Group
accounted for over 10% of total revenue of the Group.

(g) TEEFEFZESR
HEZZ-\FERZT—+tF+=A
=St—HILEFE BEAEESE &
PG AN S B B AR & U A B 10%
AL ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBEAEF
This is stated after charging: KM THIIER -

2017
—F—tF

HK$'000
THETT

Finance costs ES=§2%N
Interest on bank and other borrowings — $847 RE M {E 582 T & 23,548 31,703
Other items HihEH
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BTIRAN(TREEZEM)
emoluments)
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMREDNR
in kind 322,040 198,443
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FUR NG BI (5K
retirement schemes 3,522 2,254
325,562 200,697
Auditor's remuneration (including other  #Z il & (BIEEMEAER -
audit fee, primarily in respect of audits = EEA[ B A R MK RE
of financial statements of subsidiaries) =:+ERH) 7,948 4,300
Operating lease payments on equipment £ 2 & &4 R4 & B = 147
Operating lease payments on premises 17 K& E B 72,546 63,427
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME

The emoluments received or receivable by the Company’s

directors are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018

ARrRERCWERE ST

BE-FE-NF+ZA=1+—-HL

FE
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances  contribution
and benefits retirement
Directors’ Fee in kind schemes Total
¥4 2E ERMM
0k REWAE  BAGEMER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT TERT THET
Executive directors HITEE
Ko Po Ming 5EH - 18,720 18 18,738
Chang Tat Joel &iEd - 5,000 18 5,018
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela BRIk 240 2,459 18 2,717
Fu Yau Ching, Shirley X% 240 2,394 18 2,652
Cao Lu (appointed on ER(RZE-N\F
1 December 2018) +ZA—BEZMI) - 570 2 572
Non-executive directors ~ JEH{TEE
Hui Mei Mei, Carol T 240 - - 240
Tong Tang Joseph (resigned  EE(RZZE—N\F
on 2 January 2018) —AZHEHT) 1 - - 1
Independent BUFHITES
non-executive directors
Tian Ren Can BB 240 - - 240
Kan Lai Kuen, Alice ERER 240 - - 240
Chen Wai Chung, Edmund REmR 300 - - 300
Wang Cong (appointed on FR(R-_E-—N\E
1 December 2018) +T-A—BEZE) 20 - - 20
1,521 29,143 74 30,738
237
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 1. EEME®)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—t&+=-A=+—HL
FE
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and benefits retirement
Directors' fee in kind schemes Total
e EE ERRHZK
EEkn REMFZE  BIRETEIHER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHT FHT
Executive directors HITES
Ko Po Ming SEH - 34,320 18 34,338
Chang Tat Joel peic) - 7,286 18 7,304
Lui Choi Yiu, Angela Bk 240 2,320 18 2,578
Man Wai Chuen (resigned on X377 (R=Z—+4
24 May 2017) AAZ+HAEE) 15 - - 115
Fu Yau Ching, Shirley BXEBE(RZZE—F
(appointed on 24 May 2017) TR A -+ AEERE) 145 1,544 12 1,701

Non-executive directors FH{TE=

Hui Mei Mei, Carol R 260 - - 260
Tong Tang Joseph BEE 260 - - 260
Independent BIUFHTES

non-executive directors
Lam Yiu Kin Kenneth MR (R —+F

(resigned on 24 May 2017)  E A=+ HBHE) 15 - - 115
Tian Ren Can A Z 260 - - 260
Yuen Kwok On (resigned on  REIZ (R=T—+4F

3 July 2017) +A=RHEE) 142 - - 142
Kan Lai Kuen, Alice R (RNZE—+F

(appointed on 24 May 2017) HA - +MBEESE) 145 - - 145
Chen Wai Chung, Edmund ~ FRIEIR (R —_Z—+1F

(appointed on 3July 2017)  +A=REZEF) 119 - - 119

1,801 45,470 66 47,337
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there was HE-_Z-N\FER-_F—+tF+=A
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to =t+—HLEFE BEEERENREW
waive any remuneration. In addition, no emoluments were paid BEMBMSOREE - o BEZZF—N
by the Group to any directors as an inducement to join, or ER-_E—+E+-_A=+—HItEE"
upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office REEBERAEMES NS ARSI
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. EMAREBERIERMAREE ) B
BEEBAH(E
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Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. EEEREHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year FA - AEBRESESFALTRIERSG (=
included two (2017: two) directors, details of whose T+ F WMB)EE  BEZHIFER
remunerations are in Note 11 to the consolidated financial RERE M BMEWEN - FR - 82 =F
statements. Details of the remunerations of the remaining (Z2—+F : ZR)BReEHFALTGERART
three (2017: three) highest paid individuals, who are not a FH)2HMOT

director of the Company, for the year are as follows:

2018 2017
—B-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 28F R EWH|ZR 13,522 10,970
Contributions to defined contribution TR FURIRGT B
retirement schemes 54 53
13,576 11,023
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZEHMN T AT EE :
2018 2017
—B-NF
No. of No. of
Individuals Individuals
A AE
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 7T £ 3,500,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T 2 4,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,007 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T = 4,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7% 7T £ 5,000,000 7% 7T - -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 T £ 5,500,000 7T 1 -
239
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35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

13. TAXATION 13. B

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong, except for the first HK$2,000,000 of qualified entity’s
assessable profit is calculated at 8.25%, which is in accordance
with the new two-tiered profits tax rates regime with effect
from the year of assessment 2018/19.

Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Company's
subsidiaries operating in the PRC during the year was 25%
(2017: 25%) on its taxable profits.

Australian Income Tax rate of the Company’s subsidiary
operating in Australia during the year was 30% (2017: 30%) on
its taxable profits.

Liechtenstein Corporate Income Tax rate of the Company’s
subsidiary operating in Liechtenstein during the year was
12.5% on its taxable profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TS HR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

13. TAXATION (Continued)
The major components of the income tax expense for the year
are as follows:

. BIE )

RAFEEMSHAXNEZRSMT

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&xT FAT
Current tax BN HASL1E
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH
Current year provision ISR 4,489 7,404
Under provision in prior year FFEREBIR 86 -
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax ~ F B A (> 2 FR ST
Current year provision REEHHE 53,998 45,851
Australian Income Tax TR M BT HE
Current year provision R E - 1,939
Over provision in prior year T FE RS (18) -
Liechtenstein Corporate Income Tax X BEBEDEMBER
current year provision REEEE 735 -
59,290 55,194
Deferred taxation IEAER IE
Current year provision (Note 35) NEFE B (FaE35) (28,292) 5,737
Tax expense for the year FRHIEMAS 30,998 60,931
241
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

13. TAXATION (continued) 13. HIE®)
Reconciliation of income tax expense RSB R H iR

2017
—F—tF

HK$'000
THETT

Profit before taxation M 55 BT v A 207,010 87,401

Income tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% 1% 16.5% ( —ZZ—+4F : 16.5%)

(2017:16.5%) ZBERMETE ST 34,157 14,422
Difference of domestic tax rate AR R ER 13,696 17,767
Non-deductible expenses AR HBRAX 13,150 21,434
Tax exempt revenue TRIER R (34,704) (5,962)
Unrecognised tax losses RERIBREE 19,718 14,305
Effect of share of results of associates ~ FE(HBE AR RE L (4,077) (993)
Income tax at concessionary rate B R AT (19) -
Under provision of previous year BAFERETR 68 -
Over provision of temporary difference  B{EFEE S =R HREEEE

in prior year (11,000) -
Others Efh 9 (42)
Tax expense for the year FRBIBEMRS 30,998 60,931

14. DIVIDEND 14. BE
The directors of the Company recommended the payment of a ARREBEZFEZRNEBEEZE_ZTE—\F+=
final dividend of HK$0.067 cent per share for the year ended 31 A=+ —HLEFERRARKREFRK0.067 7
December 2018 (2017: Nil), subject to the approval of W(ZT—tF: |\ HAFRRR-Z
shareholders at forthcoming annual general meeting to be held —NWERAZTMNARTHEERRES
on 24 May 2019. R LHERFAIEER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TS HR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number ordinary shares in issue
during the year as follows:

15.

BRKE(EE)
BREAKR(BIB) DRFRAR BE
wEA AR F (R B BITY
ez DRI B E AT

2018 2017
—B-NF :
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT F&TT
Earnings/(loss) W= (&5E)
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of basic MEREAWZ(BE)M=S
earnings/(loss) per share 2w A/ (E18) 90,184 (53,160)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
No. of shares No. of shares

RDEE Petn & B
'000 ‘000

Number of shares BHEE

FK TR

Weighted average number of ordinary & 3@ % 2 INHEF 8 (gL &R E AR

shares for the purpose of basic W/ (BER)mE)
earnings/(loss) per share

44,618,346 42,385,091

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares for both
periods. Accordingly, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share was
the same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share for both
periods.

ARERMEREY B EEE LR -
FEt - Fk#EERE (BE) ERX M ED
RgEREAKE (BR)ER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - BERRE

Leasehold
improvements

BENREE
HK$'000
ThTL

Furniture
and fixtures

BRRXE
HKS 000
TAR

Computer
and office
equipments
EER
HKS'000

?

Medical
equipments

BRLR
HK$'000
Thn

Motor
vehicles

#E
HKS'000
T

Land and
building

LibRREN
HKS 000

Total

4t
HK$'000
Tar

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018

Cost A
At1January 2017 R=E—+£-f-A 50,919 24,324 30,838 11,566 2456 - 120,103
Additions AE 9,562 2476 10428 63 1,534 - 24,063
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42) BB A (i 42) - 1070 12671 - 2627 - 16,368
Disposals e (1,479 (3%9) (256) (57) 97 - (2,783)
Exchange realignment B BE 2572 1361 77 - 169 - 4025
At 31 December 2017 WZZ—+F+-F=1-H 61,578 28,836 53,604 11,058 6,695 - 161,771
Additions RE 16,563 7,688 15,609 1,199 1,042 33 42,134
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Vote 42) ~ WEEMB AR (H:E42) - 310 20,750 - 1,262 315,062 337,384
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIELERBAR

(Note 41) (Ha41) (96) (8,526) (103) (12,257) - - (20,982)
Disposals HE (6,770) (2,445) (24,772) - (523) - (34,510)
Written off fish (2,832) (1,414) = = (52) = (4,298)
Exchange realignment B EZ (2,169) (900) 1,337 - 236 (8,347) (9,843)
At 31 December 2018 HZZ-N\E+-F=1+-H 66,274 23,549 66,425 - 8,660 306,748 471,656
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
At1January 2017 n=E-t5-A-H 32,352 13947 28,126 9332 105 - 83,862
Charge for the year REA 7125 3868 4310 5% 390 - 16,791
Eliminated on disposals HERTH (1,257) (232 29 (8 31 - (1,984)
Exchange realignment EHHE 189 m () - 2% - 2,688
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+Zf=1-H 40,118 18,354 32,208 9,689 988 - 101,357
Charge for the year REHA 10,437 4,281 8,140 400 1,630 4,541 29,429
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42)  WEMBAR (M 42) - 215 18,219 - 223 41,616 60,273
Deemed disposal of RIELENELA

subsidiaries (Note 41) (Hz41) (85) (8,456) (85) (10,089) - - (18,715)
Eliminated on disposals HERTH (6,754) (1,888) (24,696) - (139) - (33,477)
Written back o) (1,682)) (1,023) = = (49) = (2,754)
Exchange realignment 3k (1,666) (437) 2,307 - 473 (583) 94
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\F+ZA=+-H 40,368 11,046 36,093 = 3,126 45,574 136,207
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-NE+ZF=1+-H 25,906 12,503 30,332 - 5,534 261,174 335,449
At 31 December 2017 R=Z—+&+-A=1-R 21,460 10,482 21,3% 1,369 5707 - 60,414
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B E&EE

Customer
Licenses and Computer
and trading franchisee software
rights ~ Trademarks relationships  and systems Total

L EhEH
mEEE  RRREEE [ LEmBERk LESH b
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL ‘ TEL T TEL

Cost RE

At1 January 2017 WZE—+F-A—-H 640,311 21,774 145 92,591 32,593 787914
Additions RE - - - - 4,701 4,701
Acquisition of subsidliaries (Note 42 WEEMIB A (HF42) 92,076 117,088 - 18,575 - 227,739
Exchange realignment EHAE (458) (583) 10 92) 2325 1,202
At 31 December 2017 and W=E—+t5+-F=1+-H

1 January 2018 k=E-\§-A—-H 732,429 138,279 155 111,074 39,619 1,021,556
Additions e - - 998 - 20,518 21,516
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42) ~ WEEMIB AR (A5 42) 23,600 29,032 - 60,869 1,464 114,965
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEELERBLRE (Hita1)

(Note 41) (201,900) - - - - (201,900)
Exchange realignment B 5 A (885) (11,966) (7) (3,038) (2,503) (18,399)
At 31 December 2018 W=E-\#+-A=1+-H 553,244 155,345 1,146 168,905 59,098 937,738
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 January 2017 R=F—+t&—A-H - - - 13,604 1,004 14,608
Charge for the year REFA 2213 4,130 15 18977 3,789 29,184
Exchange realignment BHAE 17 31 1 3 ” 173
At 31 December 2017 and R=E—+F+-A=1-H

1 January 2018 k=Z2-\$-A-H 2,290 4,161 16 32,584 4,914 43,965
Charge for the year REFA 8,781 15,944 33 24,150 5127 54,035
Exchange realignment AR (757) (1,349) (2 239 (443) (2.312)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\ETZA=1—H 10,314 18,756 47 56,973 9,598 95,688
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2018 WZE-\F+ZA=1+-H 542,930 136,589 1,099 111,932 49,500 842,050
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&E+-A=1—H 730,139 134,118 139 78490 34,705 977,591
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

18. GOODWILL 18. BHE
The amounts of goodwill capitalised by the Group and AAEEE AR WRERE B 15 Ak 0 & g
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position ROEE(BWENBARES) 2&EN

-

arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

2017
—FT—tF

HK$'000
TAT

Cost R
At 1 January n—HA—H 884,284 542,884
Acquired through business combinations :#:@3154A HtUREE (Kt 42)

(Note 42) 231,733 341,400
Additional consideration paid B REIMAAE (BfaE420)

(Note 42(b)) 649 -
Derecognised on deemed disposal of BIEHEHB A RRIEER

subsidiaries (Note 41) (Kiat41) (183,296) -
Exchange realignment M H SR (79,589) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—~” 853,781 884,284
Accumulated impairment losses RiHREEE
At 1 January mn—HA—AH (67,486) (67,486)
Impairment losses recognised in the year FAGE NFERHRE E 1R (10,000) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—~” (77,486) (67,486)
Net carrying amount REFEE
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 776,295 816,798
Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the BEEL DHREBERBEXNZRE
acquisitions effectively included amounts in relation to the BREABKEERMNE  KAMGERRK
benefit of revenue growth, future market development and the MEBBNMHE - AEMNELREEHE
assembled workforce. These benefits are not recognised EE®R  BRRFLARNAE A BAER
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the BEZHERRE - CHEREWERL Tl
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None of RS TEATR ©

the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

rpt s s o = 2 See— [ahilaels

18. GOODWILL (Continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets was
allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to the
nature of business as follows for impairment test:

Wealth and asset management, BfE M EEEIE - & &b

18. BE#)
HELEBZEEZRAEREEZKELD
EERKECHMNRSEEEMIAETT
RERIR

Goodwill

mE
HK$'000
FTExT

2018

—E-N\F
Intangible
assets with
indefinite
useful life
PR A5 P HR
WEFEE
HK$'000
F#ExT

Intangible
assets with
finite

useful life
BIREASEH
WELEE
HK$°000
TET

financial brokerage and we s KA AR
related services
— Securities brokerage — EBHLRL 16,587 10,550 37,022
— Commodities brokerage — EmEa = 11,224 =
— Wealth and asset —EREEER
management 190,257 52,147 64,785
Franchisor and retail of mother- ##HELERTERES
infant-child products Em 271,252 447,045 46,144
Manufacture of infant formula 435 88 41 52 Bc 77 4045
and nutritional products N EBER 298,199 - 173,133
776,295 520,966 321,084
247
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BHE#H)

2017
—EFE—tF
Intangible Intangible
assets with assets with
indefinite finite

useful life useful life
EREATH AREAFH
WELEE HE & E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FATT

Wealth and asset management, BfE MEEEIE - © &

financial brokerage and &40 M AR RS

related services

— Securities brokerage — BHLL 26,587 18,257 52,062

— Commodities brokerage — B AEAD - 3,517 -
Medical and laboratory services 22/& & B 8 = IR 7% 183,296 201,900 -
Franchisor and retail of mother- #HFHERTEREE

infant-child products Eoh 267,276 438,911 43,252
Manufacture of infant formula S35 28 4h 52 B2 05 404

and nutritional products MEEEMR 339,639 - 219,692

816,798 662,585 315,006

Goodwill associated with the above businesses arose when the Bt A B ERER A G TR
business combinations were completed, details of which are EE - EHBEIINGREMITRRM T2
set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
The recoverable amount of the CGUs of wealth and asset MERBEERE S @ALNARR -
management, financial brokerage and related services, BAEERTEFREERARRERY
franchisor and retail of mother-infant-child products, and RETIHEERERZRASELEMZ
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products has AR eEEEREREENEEE - B
been determined by the value-in-use calculation. Cash flow SREBRATDENEREHME L AFHE
projections are based on financial budgets approved by the KRB -BEAFZ2HERECHER
management covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 2%-3% (= F —+%F : 2%-3%) I RHIE R
5-year period have been extrapolated using a 2%-3% (2017: ZIEA o I RETDENEAITETEA -
2%-3%) long-term growth rate. This growth rate is based on B REBBEBTRNFORABRE -

the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BHE(#H)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGUs, and determined that the
goodwill associated with the CGUs of securities brokerage
impaired by HK$10,000,000 in light of keen competition in the
market of the provision of the securities brokerage and related
services in Hong Kong and the continuous reduction in the
customer portfolio maintained by the CGUs. The Group
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGUs of securities,
commodities and bullion brokerage and related services,
exceeded their carrying amount as at 31 December 2017, the
related goodwill and intangible assets were not impaired for
the year.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs of wealth and asset
management, financial brokerage and related service, the
franchisor and retail of mother-infant-child products, and
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products based
on value-in-use calculations exceeded their carrying amount.
Accordingly, the related goodwill and intangible assets were
not impaired for the year (2017: Nil).

BE-_Z—)\E+-ZA=+—HILFE"
NEBEFHRESELEMOATIRE S
VTETERSKLBSELSENRE
10,000,000 7T - JThEHREBRHEFL4L
MEHFEUURBSELBEUBERR
BAEBEER - R —+F+= A
=+—8  AEEFEESF ARUARE
CBEL RBARBHERESEEEM AT
Ol e fEEREEEE At HEARER
B EERFNILERE -

RECEREEHENMEREEEE £
BELLABRT  FAEERTERE
BEEMARREBRNZETDMRERE
B EE BN Z AR E IR RREE
FREE - At HERERBREENF
NI REE(ZT—F - ) -
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BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

18. GOODWILL (continued)

18. BE#)

Wealth and
asset

management, Franchisor Manufacture
financial and retail of infant
brokerage Medical and of mother- formula and
and related laboratory infant-child nutritional
services services products products
HEREE BERY S
BE  $RRL BER RTEER [Ty
R RS ERZHRE ZEREEER REEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEx

For the year ended BE-E-N\F

31 December 2018 TZRA=t—-HLEE

Gross profit margin EFR= 17.5%-20.50% N/ATE R 15.77% 42.00%
Average growth rate TR 9.60%-14.60% N/AFRER 11.30% 42.70%
Long-term growth rate REERE 2%-3% N/ATRER 3% 2.50%
Discount rate BLI8 & 14%-17.5% N/ATER 15% 15.50%

For the year ended BE-Z—+tF%

31 December 2017 TZA=t-HLFE

Gross profit margin ESip N/AT R 40%-92% 15.94% 54.30%
Average growth rate T EE 23.60% 10.20% 15.50% 44.90%
Long-term growth rate REERER 2.60% 3% 3% 2.50%
Discount rate BEIR =& 18.24% 13.50% 15.60% 15.20%

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin
based on past performance and its expectation of market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant CGUS.

EEERBBERALEBYMSGERE
EREENE - FEMRZBREXBHATR
AERWRRBRRSEEFEL 2 ERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

By R IUES e I= e — H 4 2
18. GOODWILL (continued)

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

follows:

Valuation

technique
B

18. BE#)

Range/
Assumption Amount
R BE $8

EREEEMAZI2/RRAT

Sensitivity of
fair value to input
BABE 2 AT ESBM

Wealth and asset management,
financial brokerage and
related services
— Securities

— Wealth and asset management

MEREEEE  RERE
K ARRARRTS
— &

—HEREEEE

Franchisor and retail of
mother-infant-child products

Manufacturing of infant formula
and nutritional products

BUERHRET DML EREM

Income
approach

AR

Income
approach

W AR

Income
approach

WASE

Average growth 9.60%—14.6%
rate

FERERE 9.60%—14.6%

Discount rate 15%

TE=E 15%

Average growth 42.7%
rate

IR 42.7%

5% increase/decrease in
average growth rate would
result in decrease/increase in
recoverable amount by
HK$5,061,000 and
HK$22,579,000

TR EIE,H D 5%
BEHARE SR,
15,061,000 7T &
22,579,000 7T

1% increase/decrease in
discount rate would result in
decrease/increase in
recoverable amount by
HK$10,491,000
FREEM, B 1% EEH
RS R,
10,491,000 7T

0.5% increase/decrease in
average growth rate would
result in decrease/increase in
recoverable amount by
HK$17,686,000
FIPRREIZI, R 0.5%
BEHTRELERD,
17,686,000 7T
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BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES 19. MEAR
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the ERARZEEMB LR
Company
In the opinion of the management, a complete list of the ERERE ARTEREIMEWEBAF
particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and ZHABERERNTERE W TREZIINE
therefore the table below lists the principal subsidiaries at the RSB ASEXEESEENAES
end of the reporting period which materially affect the results BEAREZFEMBLAT -

or assets or liabilities of the Group.

Place of incorporation Particulars of issued
and operation/type and paid up ordinary
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
AR RS BRTRME
WEARERE #%/ EEERE BEREREZHE FiEgEs TEER
Held by Group’s

the Heldby  effective
Company a subsidiary interest*
HARE  H-HNE  AEEER
58 i) ik

/
% % %

Alyingdao Wuhan Supply Chain PRC/Limited liability Paid-up capital of - 100 4691 Franchisor and retail of
Management Limited* company RMB1,000,000 mother-infant-child products
REFRSHERERARAR  RE/BRAA BERBA BHEERZEREEER
AR 1,000,000 7T
AYD Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ 10,000 shares of US$1 each - 4691 4691 Investment holding
(formerly known as Shining Time Limited liability company (Note (b))
Holdings Limited) ("AYD")
FRESEEARARIEA RERTHE/ERDA 10000 RER1ETHRH 4691 REZR
[REZERERAFDIEEE]) (Frzm)
Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd. Australia/Limited liability 145,100 ordinary shares of - 75 75 Development, manufacture
("Blend & Pack”) company Australian dollar ("AUS") and sale of infant formula
345,661 fully paid and and nutritional products
Wwith no par value
Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd. M/ ARAR 145,100 345,66 T2 T - HERRERYRES
(TBlend & Pack ) (TAT)SRmE MRRERER
HELER
Glorious Supreme Investments British Virgin Islands/Limited 1 share of United States dollar - 100 70 Provision of financing services
Management Limited liability company ("US$") 1 each with
N0 par value
Glorious Supreme Investments EBRLBS/BRAR  1RERIEL(ETL) RERE RS
Management Limited MEEERS
Harris Fraser Group Limited British Virgin Islands/Limited - 2,000 shares of US$1 each - 100 100 Provision of wealth
liability company management services
EREEBRAR RBRZES/BRAF  2000REHR 1 ETHRA UM EERRE
Hong Kong Mortgage Solutions Hong Kong/Limited liability 500 shares of HK$75,000,100 - 47 3290  Investment holding
Limited ("HKMS") company With no par value (Note(a))
EREBeRRBEERAR BB/ ARAE 500 75,000,100 7T 47 REER
(I&#%E]) BEEENHRR (Wit@)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

19.

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

MEARAR

Mason Administrative Services
Limited
ERRBERAA

Mason Bullion Limited
(“Mason Bullion”)

EREFARDA(KRER))

Mason Capital Investments Limited
("MCIL")

REEARAERAA(REER)

Mason Financial Services
Group Limited
EReREEERAR

Mason Futures Limited (“Mason
Futures”)

EREEERAA(RREE])

Mason Investment Management
Limited

KRBREERERAA

Mason Reproductive Technology
Limited (formerly known as Mason
Worldwide Capital Limited) ("MRT")

KREBMEARAR (RIHER
BIRERERAR)((RRER])

Mason Resources Finance Limited

KRERMHARAA

Place of incorporation
and operation/type
of legal entity
BRLEAES

W/ EEERER

Hong Kong/Limited liability
company
B/ BRAA

Hong Kong/Limited liability
company

B/ BRAA

British Virgin Islands/Limited
liability company

RBREES/ERAT

Cayman Islands/Limited
liability company
Hels,/ BRAR

Hong Kong/Limited liability
company

B/ BRAA

Hong Kong/Limited liability
company

BB/ ARAH

British Virgin Islands/
Limited liability company

RERLEHE/EBRAR

Hong Kong/Limited liability

company
B/ BRAA

Particulars of issued
and paid up ordinary
share capital
ERTRMRZ
ERERAZHE

1 share of HK$1 with
no par value
1R AT ERESRR

1,000,000 shares of
HK$1,000,000 with
no par value

1,000,000/ 1,000,000 % 7
EEENRR

1 share of US$1 and
37,999,999 shares
of HK$37,999,999 with
no par value

11 ETEREHRH R
37,999,999 4 37,999,999
ETEEENRA

130,000 shares of US$1 each
130,000 % & 1 £ AR 1D

100,000 shares of
HK$10,000,000 with
no par value

100,000 10,000,000 7
BEEENHRR

1,000,000 shares of
HK$1,000,000 with
no par value

1,000,000 1,000,000 % 7
EEENRR

1,000,000 shares of US$1,000
With no par value

1,000,000/ 1,000% 7
ERENRY

10,000 shares of HK$10,000
with no par value

10,000 10,000 % 7T
EEENRR

19. EAE (&)
KRR ZEENBLRFE#)

Ownership interests

Held by
the
Company
HARAR
oL

%

100

ip 4 3
Group's

Held by effective

a subsidiary
A — M
DEARE

% %

FEEER

100 100

100 100

70 70

100 100

100 100

64.85 64.85
(Note (c))
64.85
(W)

100 100

interest?

ikl

Principal activities

FERH

Provision of administrative
services
RETHRS

Provision of bullion trading
services

REESBERRS

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REER

Provision of commodities
brokerage services

REARELRS

Provision of securities aavisory
and asset management
services

REESBRREAEEERK

Investment holding
REZR

Provision of financing services
RERE RS
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BEZ-\FEt+t-—A=t+—-RALFE
19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

19. HE2AE (@)
RRAZEENBLRFE#)

Name of subsidiaries

MEAREE

Place of incorporation
and operation/type
of legal entity
ML RS
hE/EEERER

Particulars of issued
and paid up ordinary
share capital
ERTREAR
HERAZFE

Ownership interests

FrE kg

Held by
the
Company

Held by
a subsidiary
HARE  H-ENE
2] i)

% %

Group's
effective
interest*

FEEER

ik

%

Principal activities

Mason Securities Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability 5,120,000 shares of - 100 100 Dealing in securities, provision
("Mason Securities”) company HK$512,000,000 with of securities margin
no par value financing and provision of
investment corporate
finance advisory services
EKREFBRARN(ERES)  BE/ARRA 5,120,000 % 512,000,000 %7 BEEES RUBSARAE
REEENRR URIRHREZECE R R
TR
Mason Strategic Investments British Virgin Islands/ 1 share of US$1 with - 100 100 Trading of securities
(Asia) Limited Limited liability company ~ no par value investments
KRRBRE (TN ERAR RERTHE/ERDA  1RIETERENRR BEESRE
Pioneer Leap Investments Limited ~ Samoa/Limited liability 1 share of US$1 - 100 100 Investment holding
("Pioneer Leap") company
BRERABRLR([#E]) BEL/ BRAR 1R ETHRG REZR
Raiffeisen PrivatBank Liechtenstein/Limited 200,000 shares of Swiss Franc - 100 100  Provision of private banking
Liechtenstein AG (‘RPL") liability company ("CHF") 100 each and external asset
management services
Raiffeisen PrivatBank JIRHLE/BRAT 200000 &M 100 E RERARTRINDEE
Liechtenstein AG ([RPL)) (BRTES ) Bk ERRS
Thomas Global Financial Services Hong Kong/Limited liability 27,500,000 shares of - 100 100 Provision of brokerage services
Limited company HK$27,500,000 with
no par value
AERKERERLA BB/ ARAE 27,500,000 fi% 27,500,000 7 7T RS R
BEEENHRR
Zhuhai Alyingdao Business Chain PRC/Limited liability Paid-up capital of Renminbi - 100 4691 Franchisor and retail of

Limited* company ("RMB") 6,650,000 mother-infant-child products
HETEREHEERERAR T/ ARAE BHRRRAARYE HAEERTEREEER
(TAR¥])6,650,0007C

* English translation for identification purpose only

# Excluding the interests that are attributable to non-controlling

interests

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Note:

(@)

Although MCIL's equity interests in HKMS is 47%, in the opinion
of the management, the Group has 51% voting power of HKMS
at the meetings of shareholders and therefore has obtained
control over HKMS.

As disclosed in Note 33(a), contingent consideration payable in
relation to AYD Group Limited and its subsidiaries’ (“AYD Group”)
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$112,272,000. In order to settle the contingent consideration
payable of HK$112,272,000. The Group's indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Pioneer Leap has transfer 809 shares in AYD to
Cosmicfield Investments Limited, a non-controlling interest in
AYD. Upon the completion of the transfer on 5 July 2018, Pioneer
Leap’s equity interest in AYD is 46.91%, in the opinion of the
management, the Group has the right to control the board of
directors of AYD and therefore obtained control over AYD
Group.

On 17 May 2018, the Company’s indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Mason Healthcare Group Limited ("Mason
Healthcare”), entered into the transfer agreement with each of
the strategic shareholders, including We Doctor Holdings
Limited, Hong Kong Zhongya Environmental Group Company
Limited and Aldworth Equity | SP and Aldworth Opportunities
Fund SP (collectively “Strategic Shareholders”) in which Mason
Healthcare transfer 35.2% equity interest in its wholly owned
subsidiary, MRT to the Strategic Shareholders at a cash
consideration of HK$210,945,000. The transfer was completed
on 3 July 2018, MRT owned 55.02% interest in Reproductive
Healthcare Group Limited (formerly known as Jubilant Link
Group, “RHG") as at 31 December 2017 and had loss of control
in RHG on 8 June 2018 with equity interest decreased from
55.02% 10 46.71%.

19. MEBATR (&)
ARBZEFEMBATFEE)

et -

(@)

HARRBEERNEBRIE ZBERAT% -
EEERA  ARERBRRAELEEE
BRIBNSI%ERRE - MME BB RIS
BIEGIRE

MK B FEE  mEEREEEAR
RRAREMBAR([EREEE])EHES
T—+tF+ A=+ —HLEFERFEF
JEAF Y 8 AR B 112,272,000 T8 © B
4B A AR E 112,272,000 0T ¢ A
EEA B 2 AW B Q7 Pioneer Leap A
Cosmicfield Investment Limited (B2 &/
IR ER) BREE RS M09
EER_T-N\FLtARBEEKE "
Pioneer Leap R E B & 2 AR 1 /£ 46.91% -
ERERR AEEBREZREEZSE
HE - M B R SR E A L IE

RZZE-NFRA+LEE  KAARHEESR
EMBARIKEBEREEARAR ([XR
BEDHESHBERR(BEMBIZERER
NE BEPRRREBERAFTUR
Aldworth Equity | SP & Aldworth
Opportunities Fund SP (#4578 [ Bk RS AR 1))
RIVEERE  EPXEERESENREE
I8 A Bl KR AT A 35.2% IR i 85 5k T 8,
AR 3R - IR @ B /210,945,000 7T ©
EEENR T /\FLAZHZTK  KE
R T —tFE+_A=+—H#EE
ERBERARAR (AIBREER - [&
BEK]) H55.02% Em - R —\F
NANBREEEBEOEGIE - ATiER
T 55.02% F% = 46.71% ©
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Financial information of subsidiaries with
individually material NCI
The following table shows the information relating to the non-
wholly owned subsidiaries, MCIL and its subsidiaries (“MCIL
Group”), MRT and its subsidiaries (“MRT Group”), AYD Group
and Blend & Pack, that have material non-controlling interests
(“NCI") during the year. Set out below is the summarised
financial information of each of the subsidiaries with material
NCI. The results for the respective subsidiaries are for the
period from the later of the beginning of the reporting period
and the date of acquisition to the earlier of the date of disposal
and the end of the reporting period. The amounts are before
inter-company eliminations and excluding the related goodwill.

Blend

& Pack
Blend

& Pack
HK$'000
THET

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+=A=+-H

Proportion of NCI's ownership  JE#Z A 25 B #E

19.

MBS AR (#)
EREEERFERERZHBEL
= % &k
TRINRFEANEE BRI R ([ I
BEm ) 22 ENBRARIREEARE
MBAR(F5EIREARNERE]  KEE
BREMBAR(GBIXEEHEER]) -
EREEBELANBlend & Pack 2 ERE KL -
ERAERFERER LINBARIMEE
FHEZEAN T X - BEMBARIMNEET
BE2EHRPHARERBARTREERLE D
EZHHEERPLAEAPIREEIL - ©F
TyRARINEMEER - TRIZHERE -

AYD Group

(formerly

known as

MCIL Shining
Group MRT Group  Time Group)
BEERH

REFEAEE EREESEH ABRREEE)

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TR

interests s dlll 25% 30% 35.15% 53.09%
Non-current assets FRBEE 131,502 35,273 548,857 415,586
Current assets TENEE 43,566 104,676 52,891 877,547
Current liabilities TEEE (30,049) (5,531) — (650,534)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (727) (22,453) (80) -
Total equity Rl 144,292 111,965 601,668 642,599
NCI of subsidiaries withinthe  HHEE£EAHEA 7

respective groups |20 E - 40,770 - -
Carrying amount of NC| iR < RHEE 36,073 51,498 211,486 341,156
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. MEBATR (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with BREEERFERESZ KB L
individually material NCI (continued) A EER (&)

RHG Group
(formerly AYD Group
known as (formerly
Jubilant known as
Blend MCIL Link Shining

& Pack Group Group)*  Time Group)

EEBGEE ETEE5HE
Blend (ATTBARE (AT 2 hs
& Pack REEXEKHE £H)* £B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHBT FHEL

At 31 December 2017 R-BE—t&
+=A=+-H

Proportion of NCI's ownership 3428 B& 4 25 P 75 4

interests 2L 25% 30% 44.98% 45%
Non-current assets IEREEE 234,818 184,119 206,089 520,196
Current assets mEEE 54,937 96,919 66,074 747,115
Current liabilities mEAE (38,450) (207,614) (14,962) (665,145)
Non-current liabilities IEMBEE (67,337) - (22,466) (111,808)
Total equity BRE 183,968 73,424 234,735 490,358
NCI of subsidiaries withinthe ~ fH3 & B R B A7)

respective groups 2 IEVERRRE RS - 39,944 5,863 -
Carrying amount of NCI JEPEASRE RS 2 BR A 45,992 49,843 105,584 220,661
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Financial information of subsidiaries with
individually material NCI (continued)

19. HE2AE (@)
BRIEEERFERES B A
R BESR ()

AYD Group
(formerly
known as
Blend MCIL MRT Shining
& Pack Group Group Time Group)
Blend REER BREHE BEELRE
& Pack £8 (ABEREE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT THET
Year ended 31 December HEZE=-Z—-N\F
2018 TZRA=+-HLEFE

Proportion of NCI's ownership

ISR P

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018

interests 25% 30% 35.15% 53.09%
Operating income mEWA 91,520 10,772 65,348 3,016,007
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHAM,/(EE) (19,616) 4,540 33,054 152,518
Profit/(10ss) and total wkl/ (BB kem

comprehensive income Nt (39,678) 4,540 - 152,247
Profit/(l0ss) attributable RS R

to NCI wA/ (EE) (4,904) 1,362 13,770 75,600
Net cash inflow/(outflow) TREBEBREHRA

from (L) 8
Operating activities e EE) (23,323) (72) (1,070) 67,058
Investing activities REEE - 75 - (30,844)
Financing activities e EH 9,442 22 529 (3,788)
Total cash inflows/(outflows) B4 REA/(Ri) @5 (13,881) 25 (541) 32,426
Dividend paid to NCI RS TIEERER 2 R 2 = - 16,805 -
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. MEBATR (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with BREEERFERESZ KB L
individually material NCI (continued) A EER (&)

RHG Group AYD Group

(formerly (formerly

known as known as

Blend MCIL Jubilant Link Shining
& Pack Group Group)* Time Group)

ERBEBEE

(RIRERE BPRLEE
&Pack ~ RIEEA%KE S8 (MHEREEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET

Blend

Year ended 31 December BZ_Z-+tF

2017 +ZA=+-HLEE
Proportion of NCI's IEERER A
ownership interests a4l 25% 30% 44.98% 45%
Operating income mERA 32,954 12,843 143,227 2,511,777
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEF/(BR) 233 (3,976) 36,345 134,989
Profit/(loss) and total wF/ (B8 RE2E
comprehensive income Nt (1,324) (3.976) 36,043 139,824
Profit/(l0ss) attributable EERERENL
toNCI il (ER) (42) (1,246) 20,173 60,745
Net cash inflow/(outflow) THEEREHA
from ()58
Operating activities ) 1,637 898 38,564 (98,530)
Investing activities BEEH - - - (13,041)
Financing activities BEEE) (147) - (2,400) 189,016
Total cash inflows RaemALasE 1,490 898 36,164 77,445
Dividend paid to NCI RN TIEERER RS - - 2,400 -
* Upon completion of the transaction on 8 June 2018, the equity * RZZE—N\FENANBRZTHKE K&
interests in RHG held by the Group changed from 55.02% to FisaEEBBRIERSEE R
46.71% and loss of the board’s control. RHG Group became an 4671%  REBEGEHIRE - BREBE
associate of the Group. Details are set out in Note 41 to the EEXKAREENEENR - BEFEH
consolidated financial statements. RERE IS IRER T 41
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. AEE QAR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EFE—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Cost of investment in associates, unlisted A2 A R)IRERA - IE LT 802,762 214,216

Share of post-acquisition gains and FEIGUEE R W R b 2 E A
other comprehensive income 30,727 6,019
833,489 220,235

As at 31 December 2018, interests in associates comprise of
HK$233,676,000 (2017: HK$220,235,000) representing 42.87%
equity interest in Pangenia Inc (formerly known as Pangenia
Holdings Limited, “Pangenia”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, and HK$599,813,000
(2017: Nil) representing 46.71% equity interest in Reproductive
Healthcare Group Limited (formerly known as Jubilant Link
Limited, "RHG"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability.

In March 2017, 42.87% equity interest of Pangenia and its
subsidiaries (together “Pangenia Group”) were acquired by the
Group. The Pangenia Group is principally engaged in the
trading of laboratory consumables and equipment and
laboratory testing related business.

Included in the cost of investments in associates was goodwill
of HK$71,439,000 (2017: HK$71,439,000) arising from
acquisition of the Pangenia Group.
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WZZ—N\F+-A=+—8 " RE2Q
TIHERS B35 233,676,000/8 T (B — 4 ¢
220,235,000 7 ) IE T R A MBI R B R D
A (RTBE R BR AR - [#] —K
REBELZHESEMAIZERAGE) 2
42.87% i3 # %2 599,813,000 L (= F —+
FrE)ENEERBBERAR AR (AE
REEE [EEEE] —XREABEX
HEEMAR 2 BRAT)ZA46.71%BHE

R-ZE—tF=F HEREHWBLRR (5
IR mM4287%REE R A EE
Wig - TEBETEREEREEREMN
RGBS AL BB EINEEER -

SH AR & D RIR B A AR B 1 R IR BE T e
SEEEANEET,439,0008T(ZF—+
£ 171,439,000/ 7T) °
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. BE L AR (H)

In May 2018, the Company’s indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, RHG entered into a transaction with the vendors in
relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
The HK Women's Clinic Group Limited at a consideration of
HK$435,005,000, which was settled as to HK$210,000,000 in
cash and as to HK$225,005,000 by the allotment and issue of
RHG's shares to the vendors. Meanwhile, the Group subscribed
50,000,000 shares in RHG at a consideration of
HK$160,000,000. Upon completion of the transaction on 8 June
2018, the Group's interest in RHG decreased from 55.02% to
46.71%. The Group has loss of control in RHG and its
subsidiaries (“RHG Group”) and RHG became an associate of
the Group. RHG Group is principally engaged in the provision of
medical services and reproductive technology services.

summarised financial information of
individually material associates
Pangenia Group

RZZT—NFRA  ARRHEEFEZEN
BARIEEEBKEE S MK ETe HK
Women's Clinic Group Limited 2 &8 & 2 77
IEARET 732 5 - R {8 7% 435,005,000 % 7T -
H #1210,000,000 7 7T LA IR € K2 225,005,000
BITARMEBERFEEERETEREERO O
FREE- AR AEBEEZURE
160,000,0007% 7T 52 fi# & 1= % 75 50,000,000
BREG  c RZZE—NFERNANBRERRS
& - REBPTRERE B 55.02% %
FA6T71%  ANEBEREEEER REM
BAR([EEBBE®E])MEhE 8212
BERARNEERE N T EEEBHER
F 2R R AR K& 5 BT
R 7% ©

BRIEABE AR U BERHRE

HEEE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’'000
FE&T
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H
Current assets mEEE 186,348 160,515
Non-current assets FERBEE 106,448 110,358
Current liabilities mEaRE (45,524) (59,601)
Non-current liabilities FRBBE (6,107) (1,459)
Intangible assets B EE 164,400 164,400
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMSHEAE (27,126) (27,126)
Net assets HEE 378,439 347,087
Group’s ownership interest KEB AR 42.87% 42.87%
Group's share of the net assets of REEEEBENRNFEE
the associate 162,237 148,796
Goodwill B 71,439 71,439
233,676 220,235
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. BENTIER (8)
Summarised financial information of BRI EXBE AR M BERBE
individually material associates (continued) (%)
Pangenia Group (Continued) WK E(E)

From 31 March
2017 (date of
acquisition) to
31 December

2017
—E—t5F
=A=+—H
(WERH) =
—E—t5F
—¥-\% t-A=t+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T T 7T

Year/period ended 31 December H5Ez+—-A=+—81+

FEHHE
Revenue g 276,713 200,972
Profit for the year/period FEHEE R 31,352 14,040
Other comprehensive income EmEmBA - -
Total comprehensive income 2ERABEE 31,352 14,040
Dividend received from the associate BB A R 2 RS = -
262
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. BENTIER (B)
Summarised financial information of BRI EXRKE AR 2B KERBME
individually material associates (continued) (&)
RHG Group EEEKEE
2018
—B-N\F
HK$'000
FHT
At 31 December BRt+=—A=+—H
Current assets MBEE 100,086
Non-current assets IERBNEE 698,030
Current liabilities mENAE (32,576)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (4,245)
Intangible assets mpEE 361,500
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFTEMEE (60,343)
Net assets HEE 1,062,452
Fair value adjustment NEEFE 221,669
1,284,121
Group’s ownership interest REBEZHEEE 46.71%
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate TEBEEHERRFEAE 599,813
Goodwill [EES —
599,813
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20.

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of
individually material associates (continued)
RHG Group (Continued)

Period ended 31 December

Revenue &

Profit for the period HAR s T
Other comprehensive income Hih2mmkA
Total comprehensive income ZHEINALBEER

. BERTER @)

BRI EXRBE QT M BERRE
(&)

HEBKEEE)

From 8 June
2018 (date of
deemed
disposal) to
31 December
2018
—EB-N\F

~ANH
(RELERR)
Z-E-)N\F
+=—H=+-—H
HK$'000
F&xT

HE+T-A=1+—HILHHE

169,518
24,121

24,121

Dividend received from the associate

B B A FIELZ BB -

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

In August 2017, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a loan
agreement with Pangenia, pursuant to which the Pangenia
granted an unsecured loan of HK$20,000,000 to the Group, for
a period of 6 months from date of drawdown with interest rate
of 3.5% per annum. The loan was drawdown in September
2017. The loan was subsequently settled in March 2018.

In September 2018, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a
loan agreement with Pangenia, pursuant to which Pangenia
granted an unsecured loan of HK$25,000,000 to the Group, for
a period of 6 months from date of drawdown with interest rate
of 3.5% per annum and repayable in March 2019. The loan was
drawdown in September 2018.

264

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018

1. EN—RBEBERTRE

RZZE—+tFN\A AEEHN—HHNBEQ
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. THHEENBEE

2018
BN\

2017
—EFE—tF
HK$'000
FHT

HK$'000
THExT

Notes
Ht et

Unlisted investments, at cost

FETRE  BARAF

Equity securities f& AR 5 @ - 630,525

Debt instrument BEIA (b) - 74,926

Private funds LEES (©) - 40,127

(@) = 745,578

Impairment losses BB B (G = (56,463)

- 689,115

Less: Balances in current portion S RBNEN D e (b) - (74,926)

Non-current portion ERBNE S - 614,189
Notes: Hiat -

(@)

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted investment of
HK$630,525,000 represented 15% equity interests in B & & 5%
3B BR A A) (Shengang Securities Company Limited*, “Shengang”),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability.
Shengang is principally engaged in securities related business
with full licences approved by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission in the PRC. On 8 March 2018, Shengang issued
815,000,000 shares to existing 9 shareholders. The total issued
share capital of Shengang increased from RMB3,500,000,000 to
RMB4,315,000,000. After issue of new shares, the equity interest
in Shengang held by the Group was diluted from 15% to 12.17%.

Investment in Shengang is an equity instruments. As at 1 January
2018, Mason Group made an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate this investment at
FVOCI as stated in Note 25. This option is only applying to
instruments that are i) not held for trading; ii) contractual cash
flow that not for SPPI and iii) not derivatives.

English name for identification purpose only

R-ZE—+tF+-A=+—8  FLHE&
& 630,525,000 LN BB FHRNDE
RAR(TEE] —ERPREEMAZ
BRAR) Z15%MHE - BERESHEH
BHEEEEZEOHARLENZIIER
BEFEREFHFEEEL - RZT—NF
—ANB BHEREAIRR BT
815,000,000 & iz tn o BB BITARA4REE
i A B #3,500,000,0007C i = A R #
4,315,000,000 7T ° ZE1THR (015 - AL E
REBRIRRAER 15% #EE12.17% °

REBHRERSKRATA -RZT—N\F
—A—BE  KREEZER TAEEE
AR BERE - BRI EENEERR
R AEET A Al 2 YA (a0 FE FE25 P
i) - EBEEARD WIEHIEEED
TE:DBRIEFEXNAERMENHE
HRERETAKINFITETA -

BXEFERHT]
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

266

In October 2016, the Group acquired a subsidiary, HKMS, which
has available-for-sale financial assets with carrying amount of
HK$74,926,000. In April 2016, HKMS entered into a junior facility
agreement with a third-party, pursuant to which HKMS agreed to
grant a loan with the principal amount of HK$75,000,000. The
borrower applies all money borrowed under the facility towards
origination and funding of mortgage loans, purchase of
mortgage insurance and payment of related fees and expenses.
The borrower intends to securitise (subject to the prior written
consent of the Group) or the private sales of the asset-back
collateral pool, in each case repay all loans under the
agreement. The loan facility was drawdown in October 2016,
which is unsecured and repayable 18 months from the first day
of the loan being made. The aggregate interest on the loan
should be an amount equal to any amounts held by the
borrower after paying off the senior loan lenders and any
expenses less US$1,500 (equivalent to HK$12,000). The
drawdown loan were subsequently repaid in January 2018.

Included in the private funds was fund contribution to Agate-JT
Healthcare Fund L.P. (“Agate Fund”). In December 2016, Mason
Capital Strategic, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a subscription agreement with Agate Fund to
subscribe limited partnership interest at a total contribution
commitment of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$156,000,000),
which represented 32% of total capital of Agate Fund. As at 31
December 2017, Mason Capital Strategic has paid US$5,136,452
(equivalent to HK$40,082,000) as the paid-up capital of Agate
Fund, which represented 26% and 32% of total contribution
commitment and contributed capital respectively. The fund is
established for achieving capital appreciation through making
equity investments in and dispositions of, mainly Israeli and
Israeli-related healthcare technologies companies. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$5,538,000 was recognised.

On 27 December 2018, 100% of shareholding of Mason Capital
Strategic, has been disposed by its immediate holding company,
Mason Financial Management Limited to a third-party, for a
consideration of HK$67,535,000 payable by way of cash and
secured promissory note. The cash consideration of
HK$33,767,500 has been fully settled on the completion date, i.e.
28 December 2018. The remaining balance of HK$33,767,500 is
payable on 27 May 2019 by way of the secured promissory note.
The note receivable carried fixed interest rate at 8% and is
secured by the share of Mason Capital Strategic now or in the
future beneficially owned by the third party.
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22. JHEENKEE®)

e -

(b)

(%)

RZZ—XE+A AEBRBEHBEAR
EBIEIE - %A EEA BREE 74,926,000
BTz A HHEMBEE - R-T—RF
WA BERBESE =R MYBREER
FoBE BARBREEDLASSE
75,000,000 TR E 3K o B R ARBE IR
FREIZBEN - BEIZRBRE R TE
BMEARAIELRE  (tmEAERN
2 EPFRIE - ERABIEIE (AR EERA
EERZ)ILALHEEEIHFNEAR
A MEIER T ARE B EEEESE
R BEFRMEN T — R E+ AR &
RS AEREREBRI8EARNEE -
BB EEA—EHENEBERABSES
WERE KA TR (] 38 KA
A 81,500 3 7T (A8 E 7 12,0008 78 ) Z 3K
B DIRBNERBERER T —N\GE—AHE

iR o

L5 H £ B ¥E 45 T Agate-JT Healthcare
Fund L.P. ([Agate Fund ) B9 E SR - B
—E—RE+ZA  AEEZEWNBAA
KRB R B Agate Fund 5T 258 738
LARR B H & 4858 20,000,000 % T (FHE R
156,000,000 7T ) (14 Agate Fund & 7~ 48
BEHRN%) RBEBEREBERZ  R2F
—+tFE+-A=+—8 BEREXERD
2 145,136,452 3 7T (48 & 7 40,082,000 7
TT){EAAgate Fund 2 BEEE A - o BlML
B E BB R R EE A9 26% 2 32% ©
BUZESTASATIERNETIRIAE
51| FE R B AR R AT A RIE TR IR B |
EEEHAREREREE - HE-F
—tFE+ A=+ —HLFE  DHEIZM
B /#5748 5,538,000/ 7T ©
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. AMEEMBEE®)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Hizt - (&)

(d)  The management is of the opinion that as the variability in the d EBEERE G ANRIELMREZGETEIE
range of reasonable fair value estimates for the unlisted ATESEERDHEKN - BEZBENSEML
investments is significant and the probability of the various Er g E A B EmMEEARFEAF
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and B - WZERE ARARE MR EEES
used in estimating fair value, these investments are stated at R o

cost less any impairment loss.

() Movements in the provision for impairment loss are as follows: () REBERGBZIHOT
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
At the beginning of the reporting period RERBY 56,463 50,925

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 (Note 2) BN E BB SRS LRI F 958
2 (HE2) (56,463) -
At the end of the reporting period (restated) R 2#HEEH (K E5) - 50,925
Impairment loss recognised BEERRERE = 5,538
At the end of the reporting period RERBEHEA = 56,463
23. INVENTORIES 23. BE
2018 2017
—B-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&TT
Merchandise for resale EHEN L 316,979 285,507
Raw materials ERE 9,311 6,664
Consumables SEIEm - 375
326,290 292,546
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24. AR BT ABEZ 2B EE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BRAVEFABR I VBEEZ TN

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Investments held for trading BEEEZRE

Equity securities MR ANFE 5

— listed in Hong Kong —REALET (@) 221,677 162,291
Equity securities I& A 38 %

— listed overseas — BN @ 4,489 2,639

Investments not held for trading Y iFEEEZRE

Equity securities RAFESE —REELM
— listed in Hong Kong (@)&(c) 191,906 199,342
Unlisted equity securities FETRAFH (b)&(c) 173,003 -
591,075 364,272
Less: Balances in current portion B RBE D (226,166) (164,930)
Non-current portion ERENEL 5 364,909 199,342
Notes: Biat
(@  The fair values of listed equity securities are based on quoted (a)  FHBEAESEZ ATEERAERTSNGE
market prices in active markets. TEtE
(b)  The fair value of unlisted equity securities are determined using b FELTRABEZ AFEREZHBAEFEA
market approach at the reporting date. THEBE °
(c)  The financial assets at 31 December 2018 were classified as © RZEBE—NE+—A=+—HZHBEE
financial assets at FVTPL as the Group has not elected to S AR AT EFABRMBEE R
recognise the fair value gain or loss through other AARNEETREEER AT AEMEE
comprehensive income. WA 2 A AW EE -
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BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  25. AT EFATFAHMEEIKAZ

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BiEEE
2018 2017
—E2-N\E —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wis Fi T
Unlisted equity securities I ETRAZ 5 22(a) 633,244 -
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST 26. RBHEAARIR2TBEE

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
FET

European bonds BUMN{E 5 173,785

2017
—EF—tF
HK$'000
FH&T
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27. LOAN RECEIVABLES 27.
Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to
repayment schedules.

FEW & K

BRTERAZEFIREREGRKREE

2018 2017
—E—N\E&E —E—+F

Notes HK$'000
k=3 TExT

HK$'000
THAT

Loan receivables from third parties EWE=F2E%

— Term loans — THEX @) 1,306,607 1,119,704
— Instalment loans — D HIEH (b) 22,067 202,956
1,328,674 1,322,660
Loan to a non-controlling MEBATFERBRRER
shareholder of a subsidiary (©) 180,923 168,308
(d) 1,509,597 1,490,968
Expected credit loss B EEEE @) (25,123) -
1,484,474 1,490,968
Less: Balances due within one year B ETARBEEZ
included in current assets —FERNFIERLE (925,927) (848,606)
Non-current portion ERENEL S 558,547 642,362
Notes: HaF -
(@  Asat 31 December 2018, term loan receivables of;: (@) —N\F+ZA=+—0  EkTH

W%

LAl
;

(i) HK$478,699,000 (2017: HK$761,270,000) are secured by
corporate/personal guarantee provided by equity holders

478,699,000 jt( = T — £ F -
761,270,000 7T) Ty B {E KT 2 HE

(ii)

of the borrowers and collateralised by unlisted securities
or listed securities or properties;

HK$80,078,000 (2017: HK$137,973,000), HK$183,532,000
(2017: HK$148,750,000) and HK$8,288,000 (2017:
HK$8,286,000) are collateralised by listed securities,
unlisted securities and the borrower’s asset respectively,

HK$79,072,000 (equivalent to CHF9,935,000) (2017: Nil) are
collateralised by properties located overseas or pledged
deposits;

HK$413,505,000 (equivalent to CHF51,956,000) (2017: Nil)
are collateralised by securities and bonds; and

HK$63,433,000 (2017: HK$63,425,000) are unsecured.

The term loan receivables carry fixed interest rates ranging from
around 1% to 15% per annum (2017: 5% t0 12% per annum) and
all (2017: all) are within the respective maturity dates.
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HEANRHNLE A RRE
MEAIF MRS ETESFY
ES (SRt

(i) 80,078,000 ;w( = T — + F:
137,973,000 7T ) 183,532,000
AL (= ZF — 4+ 1 148,750,000
77T ) 18,288,000 T (=T —+
1 8,286,000 7T) 7 B A IE £
BH KRBT EEFRE

@iy 79,072,000 7T ( #8 & 9,935,000
WA (ZF—+F: &) AA
VSN FE A IR FAE IR

(iv) 413,505,000 7T (AEE 7 51,956,000
WA (ZT—+F  8)UFE
HREFIEER R

(v) 63433000 jL( = & — £ F:
63425000,9570%4&?&#

JE UL TE BB FUE 49 1% 2= 15% #9 [E & & 7

K(ZTB—+F FHEAB5%E12%) 5T

B 2T —tF: 25)HNEaE

HER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

AS at 31 December 2018, instalment loan receivables of
HK$22,067,000 (2017: HK$202,956,000) are collaterised by
properties situated in Hong Kong, which carry interest rate of
3.25% above Hong Kong Dollar prime rate per annum (2017:
ranging from 1.25% to 4.13% above Hong Kong Dollar prime rate
per annum) with respective maturity dates.

Loan to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is a loan
and related interest receivable from one of the vendors,
Cosmicfield Investments Limited (“Cosmicfield”), in acquisition
of AYD group. Pursuant to an investment agreement dated 30
December 2016, the loan of RMB140,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$157,696,000) carries interest at a rate of 8% per annum for a
term of 36 months expiring on 27 February 2020; and is secured
by (i) 1,892 shares of US$1 each, representing 18.92% of the
issued share capital of AYD held by Cosmicfield; (i) 1,269 shares
of US$1 each, representing 12.69% of the issued share capital of
AYD held by Golden Metro Investments Limited.

The management assessed the collectability of loan receivables
at the end of the reporting period individually with reference to
borrowers’ past settlement history and current creditworthiness.
Loan receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to several borrowers for whom there was no history of
default. Loan receivables that were past due but not impaired as
management is of the opinion that there has not been a
significant change in credit quality of the borrower or the party
who provided guarantees and fair value of the collaterals
obtained in respect of these loans.

For loan receivables, the ECLs are based on the 12-months
ECLs. The increase in loss allowance for loan receivables upon
the transition to HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 was
HK$6,699,000. The loss allowance increased for HK$18,424,000
for loan receivables (including ECLs from pre-acquisitions of
subsidiaries during the year amounting to HK$16,771,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

27. EWER#E)
Wt - (48)

(o)

R-Z—-NE+-A=+—8  EKRSH
B 22,067,000 (= T — £ F:
202,956,000 7 7T ) AL 1A & 7 B ) 3 1E K
A TTREBRFAEMI25%:TE(=
Tt F BB THEERFFEM25%
E413%5H8) BB EEIEAA -

46 THE A RSEERR R E R AR
B LS EEMNHEAR—{LEJ7 Cosmicfield
Investments Limited ([ Cosmicfield | ) &) & U
ERRABERANE - BEBEBBHA=T
—ANETZAZTHNRE RS ARE
140,800,000 7T (#8E 7 157,696,000 78 7T ) #)
BERR-_ZT-_TF_A=-+tHIH &
36MEABRETFSBMF KL KON
18N FRIETLH R MHIEETF - A
Cosmicfieldfr 2 2B E B ITRAH
18.92% : (il) LA 1,269 1% 5 3% 1 = T KRR 17 1
K - A Golden Metro Investments Limited
s B 8B R BITIRANEY 12.69% °

EEENERPLEERAZEERAZBE
BRRE N B RER - BRI EERER
Z AR5 o BE AR 380 IR R (B FE LK
B8 R EBRLHZETERA « B
RO BHERRE  AREEERAE
RAREREHRANEARRARILZSE
BERESNERRNATELEHESR
21 -

REKEZMS  BHEEEBERER12E
AREHEEESE - BREFRR=ZZ—N
F—RA—BEBYBERELERFEIFBE
118 B B R BB IS 1N /5 6,699,00078 7T ©
BERERE_E - \F+=-A=+—H
1EFE R B E F IS N 18,424,000 7T (&
FEFERKEWNBARNNEHEEERE
16,771,000/ 7T ) °
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. ESRHMEWRKIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EFE—tF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BtaE FHET T
Trade receivables 2 5 W IE (@) 197,947 160,231
Accounts receivable from third MIRHBEF K RE LIRS
parties arising from provision of EEMEWE=TER
securities and commodities
brokerage services:
— custodian clients —RERF (b) 17,843 19,520
— margin clients — FREP ) 619,141 520,718
— clearing houses and brokers — HEERRELR (b) 102,238 181,801
937,169 882,270
Allowance for doubtful debts RREAES (© = (104,814)
Expected credit loss SEL = i) (© (22,228) -
914,941 777,456
Deposits and prepayments TR RIERR 252,935 148,050
Other receivables H A U BR 3K () 118,029 110,086
Due from related companies/parties el EgEE: A 7, 75 218 (e) 58,372 15,920
429,336 274,056
1,344,277 1,051,512
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BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

Settlement terms of trade receivables

The Group’s sales are on cash basis except for the sales of
merchandise to certain customers and the franchisees. The
credit terms offered to these customers are generally in credit
limit and open credit period, accordingly the trade receivables
that are not individually nor collectively impaired are considered
not overdue.

Settlement terms of accounts receivable

Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in securities and commodities in respect
of cash clients and margin clients are two or three trading days
after the transaction dates.

Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in index, commodity and currency futures
contracts represent the margin deposits maintained with futures
clearing house, options clearing house or brokers to meet the
margin requirements of open contracts. Margin calls from
clearing house and brokers are settled on a daily basis. The
excess amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated
are repayable on demand.

The credit facility limits to margin clients are determined by the
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by
the Group.

The majority of the loans to margin clients which are secured by
the underlying pledged securities are interest-bearing. The
Group maintains a list of approved stocks for margin lending at a
specified loan to collateral ratio.

Any excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call which
the customers have to make up the shortfall.

Loans to margin clients as at the end of the reporting period
were secured by the customers’ securities to the Group as
collateral with discounted market value of approximately
HK$961,295,000 (2017: HK$1,363,452,000).

The Group determines the allowance for impaired debts based
on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts receivable and on management's judgement including
the assessment of change in credit quality, collateral and the
past collection history of each client. The concentration of credit
risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable
in order to minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances are
regularly monitored by management.

28. B REMEWRIE @)
Hidt -

(a)

(b)

B2 EWRREEIRK
AEENHEUNRER S - EMETEP
R EmEENERRI - IZER
FREMNEEGSFBE RERRBERANK
AEEH - But - WARER R ERBED
B B EMTORRAG R Il R -

FEWORR A B R

RASEFPRAREFME @ RS LE
MSRLEBZ ABEBBRTEE ZEK
FHANRZZARMER =[RS A RS

s
(— Y
Ea

HEH  ARREBREANZIRLEDB
ERBXEGBREPELZRUORK - T
ARG EEN - SRS EMSELZ
RES CNAFREANZRESER -
REMRERERRESTIFAIMW -
BBMREREE 2 RANRESRE -

HREFPEERE R RAEE AR
EVIRIRE S TR EEE

REDHETHREPHER (RERDE
WESEERE - NEERE—HE
RAIRR B E - LIRSS B RUE R G b R
RTHRER -

RBEER L RSB HIES BB B
BB AR -
RERBEEARTHERFZER
HEFPHTAEEEEFROINTE
TEH E961,295,0008 7T ( —F—+H 4 :
1,363,452,000 78 7T) KRB HHEIR ©

A5 AR I W R R T [ W 1 I R ik 2
i UREREZHE (BEYEEER
B2 FHE -~ BIRR RS TP 2 Wk Er)
RERE RS 2 B - AEBNERSE
TRBER  AAEFPERREAYLBEE

BEFHUREZSRE - AEEHREERE
WBR SRR HRBR A2 Bx 1R it - LA IE R A
MERE - BEEREREERR
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28. EZRHAMBUWIEE)
Notes: (Continued) Bt - (&)
(c) Ageing analysis and impairment © BRIFRAE
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade NERMEED  BE=O8H 85k

receivables, by invoice date is as follows:

FIAMBRR DT

2018 2017
—B-N\F “EF—tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT AT
Less than 1 month PR —EA 84,095 49,575
1 month to 3 months —Z={EA 65,735 102,488
3 months to 6 months =ENEA 28,657 1,064
6 months to 12 months ~NE+-M@EA 19,460 7,104
197,947 160,231

Movements in the expected credit loss are as follows: TEEEEEEZEMNT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$°000
FH FHT

At the beginning of the reporting period A2 HH - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 (Note 2) FRANE B B R SRS YE B SE Qe S A
(Ftat2) 585 -

At the beginning of the reporting period REHEAY (KL E5)

(restated) 585 -
Expected credit loss TEREE RSB 21,643 -
At the end of the reporting period RERYPLER 22,228 -
Movements in the provision for allowances are as follows: FHRBHEHNT -

2018 2017

—E—N\F —ET—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHExT FHET

At the beginning of the reporting period A2 HHA¥ 104,814 100,517
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 (Note 2) FRANE BB TSRS YRS 9 8R

T (WHE2) (104,814) -

At the beginning of the reporting period ~ R 23R (K EF)

(restated) - 100,517
Increase in allowance B AEE N = 4,897
Reversal of allowance BERD - (600)
At the end of the reporting period RERBEEH = 104,814
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 using the cumulative AEEERBRFEEEZAREREEY
effect method. Under this method, the comparative information TR AEB|E M o RIEZ T WER
is not restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS 39. R ERE 39 B KR
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

28. B REMEWRIE @)
HzE : ()

(c)

Ageing analysis and impairment (Continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December
2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e. by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters
of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade and account receivables are written off if past
due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade and account receivables as at 31
December 2018 using a provision matrix:

(c)

BRER 2 AT ROBE (4%)
EEUBBELENEIRATERE —F
—NFE+ZA=+—HIEFEZHE
RERE B BHRAREBREETRED
- A EEREERR - BEXDER
At RLUEBEEEANZETF 55 E
T (BE - ERER - FPERN R
A EREREMTEANEERR) M
BHNBEEEE - ZEtERBRIER TN
BER BERERRBRERBAGENE
FABEEIE - ERTIRIF AR R ERIFE
AMAIERASEEN - —&RE  BEFR
HipE i ama e —F REAZR
R BIBTTIEED R T LAMISH -

TREERBERMEAEBERARER
TR N\FFT A=+ -HOEKRESR
R ERRRATHER

31 December Proxy
2018 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
—E-N\FE
+=H=+—H FEI1RER F2RER HIRE HEA
ECLs rate (%) FEHAZEEEE R (%) 0.03% 0.12% 5% 1.39%
Gross carrying wEEmEE (F&T)
amount (HK$'000) 297,097 57,952 387,628 194,492 937,169
Loss allowance EERE (TET)
(HK$'000) 81 71 19,381 2,695 22,228
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

276

Ageing analysis and impairment (Continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 December
2017

The ageing analysis of the trade and account receivables as at
31 December 2017 by overdue date that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is as
follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

28.

BE 8 ) I ARl (B

B 5 RHthEWFRE (&)
HzE : ()

(c)

B2 AT RORE ()

HE - FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFFER
BB TR E 39S A RE
R-Z—+HE+-A=+—HANESRK
SRIE K B UBR ZR (BE AR B B N R R AR
AREEBS G ERFE IR EMRE)
A BRE SRR ST ¢

2017
—T—+F

HK$'000
T

775,908

Less than 1 month past due
1 month to 3 months past due
3 months to 6 months past due

BN —EA
BH-E==A
BE=%]EA

1,274
170
104

1,548

777,456

Trade and account receivables as at 31 December 2017 related
to a number of customers and clients that have a good track
record with the Group and were not impaired. Based on past
experience, the management is of the opinion that no provision
for allowance for doubtful debts was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable as at 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for doubtful
debts are specific accounts receivable from several margin
clients with a balance of HK$104,538,000, which was measured
based on incurred credit losses under HKAS 39. The individually
impaired accounts receivable relating to margin clients that
were default in payments.

Included in other receivables were input value-added tax of
HK$41,145,000 (2017: HK$15,075,000), and other receivables
from a number of franchisees related to the setup cost of
respective franchise stores of HK$57,162,000 (2017:
HK$67,555,000) as at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts due from beneficial owners of respective non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries of HK$58,326,000 (2017:
HK$15,920,000) and a director of a subsidiary acquired during
the period of HK$46,000 (2017: Nil) are unsecured, interest- free
and have no fixed repayment term. The carrying value of the
amounts due approximate their fair value.
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(e)

WEZZE—tF+ A=+ —HEHER
SEBARFEMTENBETEREFEEN
B 5 EMGRIA N R UR R EORE - RIE
NEER  EEERABERRZSHEHT
RRAERE REAEEREUEERE
PEZSHEBR T —+F+_A=+—
BEDHAE Al Bk

R-Z—+tE+-A=+—8 REEE
BREERBNFREE ZER ST
% 4582 5104,538,00058 7T ThIB B E
B ENE R EEENEEESE -
BERRERKERBEERZITRES
B -

REWRPLEER - HbRKRERBIEIEE
FRETATIZE41,145,000/8 7T (ZE—+ 4 :
15,075,000 7T ) K B3 45 5 A48 & [ 3% K
AEBRMNERE THILEHRE
57,162,000 7T ( = Z —+4F : 67,555,000
BT °

EUGEIERERMB AR 2 B HE AN
X 1A 58,326,000 (= T — £ F:
15,920,000/ 70 ) & B R UK BB T BB A A1 &
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29. FIXED AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

29. EHREEARTER RITHER
kBEE

2018
ZB-NEF
HK$’'000
FHET
Fixed bank deposits RITE AR (@) 1,116,299 -
Pledged bank deposits BEIPRITIFRK (b) 94,137 58,364
Bank balances and cash RITRHBRRS 1,603,086 1,759,412
(©) 2,813,522 1,817,776
Less: Balance in current portion B mENEE D KRR (2,768,706) (1,817,776)
Non-current portion e ENEL 5 44,816 -
(@) As at 31 December 2018, fixed bank deposits in current @ RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H0 "8
portion are made for varying periods of between one day o $R177E BT XA HA R HUR 7Y BN AR
and twelve months depending on the immediate cash ReFRK - NF—BEFTZMEA - 3
requirements. The fixed bank deposits in non-current it By &6 o /Y $R 17 7E B ¥ 515,631,000
portion of CHF5,631,000 (equivalent to HK$44,816,000) T A BB (B & 744,816,000 7T ) (=
(2017: Nil) were fixed deposits placed with bank with T—+EF MR Z_TF Ak
maturity date after January 2020. BB R1F ASRITHOE BRTE AR ©
(b) As at 31 December 2018, the bank deposits of b RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H BN

HK$42,000,000 and US$2,807,000 (equivalent to
HK$21,980,000) (2017: HK$42,000,000) were pledged to
banks for bank loans, and RMB26,592,000 (equivalent to
HK$30,279,000) (2017: RMB13,679,000, equivalent to
HK$16,364,000) was pledged to banks for bill payables.

The increase in loss allowance for fixed and pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash upon the
transition to HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 was
HK$157,000. The loss allowance increased for
HK$884,000 for fixed and pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash during the year ended 31 December
2018.

RITE SR RESEERRITH R R
42,000,000 7T % 2,807,000 3 7T (18
E 721,980,000 7C) (ZF —+4F :
42,000,000 7€ ) A & A R ¥
26,592,0007T ( 48 & # 30,279,000
) (ZT—+F AR 13,679,000
JC (M & 72 16,364,0008 70 )) 2 R 17
TR e

RZZE—N\F—A—BREEEEH
BHREEREOH % - THR DK
IRITIFR - RITEBR LB NEBRE
1L 1570008 T REE = F
—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE TH
REERRITER - RITEHRERE
B 1B R 1L N 884,000 B 7T ©
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZRHEHMBEMNRKIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFHET FATT
Trade and bill payables to ENE=ZFESERR
third parties e =% b) 352,503 339,360
Accounts payable to clients arising B2t H = & & E B I8 RI%
from provision of wealth and i A R ERT B P BR 3K
asset management services (@) 2,675,216 -
Accounts payable to third parties  FtIR{H 55 &g & 40 RS
arising from provision of EEZENE=ZTEREMR

securities and commodities
brokerage services:

— custodian clients —HERFE (@) 449,843 357,417

— margin clients — FREP @) 1,053,009 101,947

— clearing house and brokers — BEEMRELA (@) 1,293 -

4,531,864 798,724

Less: Cash held on behalf of clients & : REZFHERS () (1,512,317) (443,395)

3,019,547 355,329

Other payables Hfth 5008 (d) 254,277 126,896
Deposits received and receipts Bl e RIEIEIE

in advance 7 73,729

Due to related companies JE - BB A B RUA (e) 6,023 8

260,307 200,633

3,279,854 555,962
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 30. ESRHEMEBARIEE)

(@) Settlement terms of accounts payable (@) ENERREESKRR
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of KUY BREEETERG 2 ATELR
business of wealth and asset management services are BRELAZENEFREPELRY
repayable to clients on demand. i e
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of RREREFPERAEEFPME  HHEH
business of brokerage in securities in respect of cash BHEB 2 BREFBEREEE
clients and margin clients are two or three trading days HEERFERRZ AEMER =[RS
after the transaction dates. B4
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of BMIEH  AmEREEREEN &L
business brokerage in index, commodity and currency EREAREBBREPELEZEMNER
futures contracts represent the margin deposits received R DEREFPHNBERARSER
from clients for their trading in futures contracts. The ZWMHFRES - BRATHTERR
excess over the required margin deposits stipulated are SHE D AR ESCGRBREP -
repayable to clients on demand.
No ageing analysis has been disclosed in respect of MEREEEEECLEBURMER
accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of BECERGEFBEEFRTEEN
brokerage business and wealth and asset management ERERRZERIN - REASERE
service business, as in the opinion of the management, it RE - ERIEKEE  HY T 2E
does not give additional value in view of the business’s HERIMEE -
nature.

(b) Ageing analysis of trade and bill payables (b) BESENRERENSEERR

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bill payables by date of issue of invoice/bill is
as follows:

D

RERPEER - BHEMKIBRE
NERZAARE "ZERBHERRD
war

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TFETT
Less than 1 month D —1E A 121,429 3,657
1 month to 3 months —Z2={dA4 190,900 24,118
3 months to 6 months =&=XEA 26,529 289,565
6 months to 12 months NE+ZM@EA 11,266 22,020
Over 12 months HBidt+ @A 2,379 -
352,503 339,360
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AR5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018
o s = NeeEmm— 2 = Se e || e
30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(c) The Group maintains segregated accounts with banks
and authorised institutions to hold cash on behalf of
clients arising from its normal course of business in
provision for brokerage services.

(d) As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, included in other
payables was current accounts maintained with
franchisees, salaries and bonus payables, defined benefit
obligation and professional advisory fee payables.

(e) The amounts due to companies owned by non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed repayment term. The carrying value of the
amounts due approximate their fair value.
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(c)

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. EHAE
31 December 1January 31 December

2018 2018 2017
—B-N\F F)\F ZFLF

+=A=t-H —A—B t=A=1—R
HK$ HKS HKS

BT BT BT

Contract liabilities arising from: AUTEEELZAFEE
Franchisor of mother- FHrEeEEEER

infant-child products 9,545 11,148 -
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract FEANBELSTE BMANTIERWMT ¢

liabilities are as follows:

Franchisor of mother-infant-child products A E N EREE D

The Group's franchise contracts mainly relate to the advance AEBFBHFELANTBHRKHMESTEL
consideration received from customers. REBEHE -

Movements in contract liabilities: BREESRT

Balance as at 1 January R—A—Bz#&H% 11,148
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AR EFIERTAGHNEEZ

recognising revenue during the year that was FRPABEEHNBERD

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning

of the year (5,586)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing in A L BB FIGEE 2 A B EE N

advance of franchising activities 4,479
Exchange difference HEH =% (496)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—H2&% 9,545
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AR5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

32. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing borrowings

BESSEEA

32.

FFEMERN

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
THExT

2017

—EFE—tF

HK$°000
TAT

— Unsecured bonds — \mIEHEE (@) 20,000 20,000
— Bank loans —RITER (b) 262,652 120,827
— Unsecured loans — EEFER © 160,903 179,189
443,555 320,016
Less: Balance repayable within B AR —FRRIREK

one year or on demand (eS8 (423,555) (300,016)
Non-current portion JEmEE D 20,000 20,000

Notes: HiEr -

(@)

282

At the end of the reporting period, there are two outstanding
unsecured bonds with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000
each issued in 2014 to two third-party investors separately. The
bonds are interest-bearing at 5% per annum payable annually in
arrears and repayable in 2021.

At the end of the reporting period, the bank loans of
US$19,299,000 (equivalent to HK$151,436,000) (2017: Nil) is
borrowed by one of the subsidiaries of the Company in March
2018, which is (i) secured by the pledged deposit at not less than
12% of the outstanding balance; (ii) guaranteed by the Company;
(iii) carry interest rate of three months ICE LIBOR plus margin
depending on the net profit margin of the Company; and (iv)
pledged shares of a subsidiary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's bank loans of
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$56,933,000) (2017:
RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to HK$71,779,000)) are secured by a
pledged deposit of HK$42,000,000 and guaranteed by a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and corporate guarantee by the
Company. The remaining bank loans of RMB47,673,000
(equivalent to HK$54,283,000) (2017: RMB41,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$49,048,000)) are guaranteed by a director of a subsidiary
of the Company and corporate guarantee by the Company. The
bank loans carry interest ranged from 5.22% to 7.00% per
annum payable annually and repayable in 2019.
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RERPEER  ARDHERER-Z
—OFEESRAMBE=ZFREEETH
N & %8 4%10,000,000 8 TT 2 A B & K
% - ZEFERFHNXRSEHE  EEA
FHARZM  WER-_T-—FEE-

RERPLEE D - RITE 19,299,000
TL(FRE 151,436,000 70) (2 — L4 :
E)RAARRET—HAHBARR-Z
—NE=ZREA (VBT PRREESRE
12% 69 G AT SR E IR IR 5 () AR A AR
R (iE =B B ME XS RBEEITR
¥ERBNMRTARRBEFHNERENHTE
FIERFE: RVE—EHBABRRG
A o

REFRPLEER  AEENRITERAR
50,000,000 7t (48 & 72 56,933,0007% 7t )
—ZE—+F: AR¥60,000,0007T(HEE
771,779,000 7t ) ) LA — £8 42,000,000 7%
TLZ B IRTE FVE A K R A A ) — R
BRRIZEERARA Z AR ERIEE
1R o FIRRITERARKE 47,673,000 7T (18
554,283,000 7L) (ZFE—1LF : AR
# 41,000,000 7T 18 & 7 49,048,000 7T ))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

32. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued) 32. SFEEBR @)

Notes: (Continued) Bt - (&)

() Included in other loans as at 31 December 2018 was a loan of © RIBE-N\F+-A=+—8 HHEXK
HK$81,000,000 (2017: HK$81,000,000), which is unsecured, B3 — 581,000,000/ T ( =T — 4 :
interest-bearing at 1% per annum payable annually in arrears 81,000,000/ 7C) M E - AEEA - BF
and repayable on demand. FE1VEHE  EEEFHAIZMN WA

REREE -
A loan of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$56,932,000) as at 31 R-IEBE—-—N\F+-_A=+—H EFZAR
December 2018 (2017: RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to # 50,000,000 7T, (48 & 72 56,932,0007% 7T )
HK$59,815,000) was interest-free, unsecured and repayable in (ZZ—+%F : AR¥50,000,0007T (HHE
September 2019. 759,815,000/ 7T)) AR B - EEMRA

R-ZE-NFNLABE-

In August 2017, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a RZZ—tENA - AEEEFHIERE
former subsidiary of Pangenia for obtaining a loan of FRA B2 BB A BR] L B K ek A EUS
HK$30,000,000. The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at 3.5% 30,000,000 T 2 B o Z B R A EE
per annum and repayable in 6 months from date of drawdown. o RFMEISEFE - WERRIA
The loan was partially repaid with amount of HK$10,000,000 and HA#E AT 7 B B A {EE © 10,000,000 7T &
HK$5,000,000 in February and August 2018 respectively. The 5,000,000 Tz B A ERED BN =T
remaining balance of HK$15,000,000 was extended and is —\FZ A{EE - &k T A5 &k 15,000,000
repayable in February 2019. BTEERITER_T—NF_AEE -
An aggregate loan of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,971,000) E 45 AR K7,000,0007T(#HE R
(2017: RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,374,000)) is unsecured, 79710008 L) (ZE—tF: ARK
carries interest rate 10% and 18% per annum and repayable in 7,000,000 7T (FHE 14 8,374,000/ L) ) B &
January 2079. R LN T 10E R 18E R F IR E -
WERZT—NF—AEE-
33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 33. ERRARE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
At 1 January w—HA—H 129,899 -
Add: Contingent consideration measured i : FFREHEHARE
during the year (Note a & b) (Kiztakb) 3,000 129,899
Less: Settlement during the year B FANEE (KA 190))
(Note 19(b)) (112,272) -
Less: Remeasurement during the year 3 : ENE#at 2 (fita)
(Note a) (11,866) -
8,761 129,899
Current portion mENE S 8,761 112,272
Non-current portion EmENER = 17,627
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~8 8,761 129,899
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE (Continued)

Notes:

(€] In December 2016, the Group entered into an investment
agreement with two third parties (the “Vendor”) to acquire 55%
equity interests of AYD Group at an aggregate consideration of
RMB409,200,000 (equivalent to HK$458,304,000).

According to the investment agreement, if the results
attributable to the equity holders of AYD Group for the years
ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 have been less or
more than RMB62,000,000 (equivalent to HK$69,440,000),
RMB85,000,000 (equivalent to HK$95,200,000) and
RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to HK$134,400,000) by 5% (“Target
Results”) respectively, the number of the Consideration Shares
is required to be adjusted. In any event, if the transfer of the
Consideration Shares to the Vendor leads to the shareholding
percentage of the Group in AYD Group falls below 50%, the
Group has the option to pay cash in lieu of the Consideration
Shares. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the management
has estimated that contingent consideration of HK$112,272,000
will be payable in 2018 and HK$17,627,000 will be payable in
2019.

On 30 June 2018, the Group entered into a supplementary
investment agreement with the Vendor which agreed to revise
the calculation of the year ended 31 December 2018 contingent
consideration (“2018 Contingent Consideration”). According to
the supplementary investment agreement, the Group shall pay
RMB5,000,000 to the Vendor if AYD Group’s year ended 31
December 2018 net profit is more than RMB120,000,000,
alternatively, if year ended 31 December 2018 net profit is less
than RMB120,000,000, the Vendor should pay RMB5,000,000
(equivalent to HK$5,761,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the management has
remeasured 2018 Contingent Consideration as HK$5,761,000
(2017: HK$17,627,000), a gain on remeasurement of
HK$11,866,000 is recognised in profit or loss during the year.
The management has estimated that contingent consideration
of HK$5,761,000 will be payable in 2019.
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33. BAHAKRE®R)

e

@

R-ZZE—XRE+f REEHEMEE=
FTERDITUERE R  LEREAR
409,200,000t (8 7 458,304,000/ 7T )
I B B R &5 [E 55% A #E -

REREHZE HWERSEEEZEEA
BEEHZE-_T—XR"F —_T—+tFRK=F
—NFE+- A=+ ALFENELEDH
RIME 72 sk B 18 A R 5 62,000,000 7T (48 &
769,440,000/ 1) ~ AR 85,000,000 7T
(#8 & 17495,200,000%8 7T ) & A R #
120,000,000 7t ( #8 & 7 134,400,000 7% 7T )
5% ([BIZERE]D AIRERMOEKAE
BT AE - Ewmif - MRERNEET
EFERASENELEEBZERES
EARF50% - BIASE R ZUNRSRE
REBGETSN BE-Z—+F+=
A=+—BLIFE BEEHIBER-Z
—NERZZT-NEIMOHARES
112,272,000 7% 7T} 17,627,000 8 T °

RZZE—NEXA=+HE AEEEEH
RN —HERRE WS MESREBELE
ARE—Z-N\F+-_A=t—HILFE
WRARE ([ZT—N\FHARE] 25
o REBAREEDE WELSEEH
2 \F+-_A=+—"HILFEFH
F 42 3@ A R ¥ 120,000,000 ¢ © B A £ H
JERE 5 = AR 5,000,000 0 5F
WBRE-Z—-N\F+-_A=1t—HILFE
B0 3% % K S 2 A B #5120,000,000 7T - Bl
& 75 fE X+ A R % 5,000,000 (18 & R
5,761,000/ 7)) °

BHE-_Z-N\E+-_A=+—RHILtEE"
EBEEH T \FRAREBEHIEAR
5,761,000 7t ( = & —+ 4F : 17,627,000
BIL) FARBEmEREFTERE
11,866,000 T EEEM/AHNR-F
—NEZHAREAS5,761,0008 7T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In September 2017, Mason Strategic Investment Company
Limited ("MSIC") entered into a share purchase agreement with
a third party to acquired 100% equity interest of HFG at an
estimated aggregate consideration of HK$128,024,000. The
details of the acquisition is set out in Note 42(a).

According to the investment agreement, the vendor shall be
entitled to share the net profit for the financial year ended 31
March 2018 from 1 April 2017 up to the Completion Date.
Minimum capital requirement of HK$3,800,000 shall be deducted
from the net profit shared. The amount of shared profit included
in the consideration is HK$8,524,000.

In the event that the Aggregate Net Profit for the financial year
ending 31 March 2019 (“FY2019") exceeds HK$9,000,000 but less
than HK$11,250,000, MSIC shall pay to the vendor a cash
payment equivalent to 40% of such part of the Aggregate Net
Profit in excess of HK$9,000,000 (“Initial Sum”). In the event that
the Aggregate Net Profit for FY2019 exceeds HK$11,250,000, the
MSIC shall pay to the vendor a cash payment equivalent to
consummation of the Initial Sum and a sum equivalent to 50% of
the amount in excess of HK$11,250,000. As at completion date,
the management estimated the Aggregate Net Profit for FY2019
as HK$15,301,000. Therefore, the fair value of the profit shared
is estimated to be HK$3,000,000 and included in aggregate
consideration for calculating goodwill in the acquisition of HFG.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the management has
estimated that contingent consideration of HK$3,000,000 will be
payable in 2019.

Profit guarantee is a contingent consideration that will be
realised if the acquired businesses achieve their respective base
year profit target, calculated on certain predetermined basis,
during the designated period of time.

The Group recognises the fair value of those contingent
consideration for acquisitions, as of their respective acquisition
dates as part of the consideration transferred in exchange for
the acquired business. The fair value measurement require,
among other things, significant estimation of post-acquisition
performance of the acquired businesses and significant
judgement on time value of money.

33. BENIAKE @)
Wizt - (&)

(0)

» =—Z — £ F LA Mason Strategic
Investment Company Limited (TMSIC |) £
—RE=FFINER G AREERE
[ 89 100% #e 25 - 4R (B /128,024,000
7T o WS E IR A BT 42() ©

RIBREGH BEFEESHEE=ZT
—N\EZAZ+—BUEHFRFEHLLF(E
—E-LFMNA-BREEEREKAH) -
BEDEENF IR REELRT A
3,800,000 7T ° 5T AREBH D (LR FIE 58
8,524,000/ 7T °

WHE-ZT—AF=A=T—BLLHETF
E(ZZ—NAMREE ] BEFBEH
9,000,000 7T {8 1K 511,250,000 T
MSICZE [ & 75 2 19 48 & KA #8 [ 9,000,000
EITH AR D H 0% B ENR(E
HFRIA]D - T NFBEENBLEF
838 11,250,000/ 7T * MSICZB[M & /5 2 1+
SR & BB INFE S A 838 11,250,000
P T ER 5 B 50% B9 IR & 5 3 e R SEAK B
B EEEMF T NP RFENRAL
F415,301,000/8 7T ° ALt + 5155 F &Y
A P& 5 43,000,000 7T & 5t A Bt &t
HINEEREEMEENANRE-

HE-Z—/\F+_A=1+—HIEFE -
ERBREAENR T -NAFIHHAR
{873 3,000,000/ 7T °

IR U TS E R R R AED IR R
—EBREEEAENEEEEFR G E
15 BPEMIRE DS A IR HARE -

REBNBRAYE R PERZSREEE
HARBNAFE R RGP
HEREN D - 2FEFEFE(H
FERE) BRI RBH KRR RIET
BEAMGE - UHEEHEEEMLERH
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

fTEE®MIA

Assets Liabilities
BE 8E
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET TET
Forward exchange contracts RARSNES 49 (@) 44,734 44,750
Options HAE ) 30,662 28,386
Index options fe S A - 469
75,396 73,605
Notes: Biat
(@  The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts () AEEBIVZHERBEEEHEFER
for acting exclusively as commission agent of the clients. These EPHAREA ZERBHEBKEOL
forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge KIETEREH AR REATFETABR
purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. FTE
The fair value of foreign currency forwards are determined using RESNES B 2 AT ERBRE B BHE
forward exchange rate at the reporting date. HAMEREEE -
(b)  Pursuant to the Supplemental Shareholders Agreement date 30 b REBHAE-ZZ—/\FNA=tHHFER
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June 2018,

the Group was granted with a put option, whereby the
Group has the discretion to request the non-controlling
shareholders of AYD Group to acquire the equity interest
of the Group in AYD Group at consideration of
RMB1,455,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,657,000,000),
which is exercisable if the Company obtains AYD Group
spin-off approval from the Stock Exchange before 30 June
2020 and AYD Group fails to list its shares on the Stock
Exchange before 28 February 2021 (the “Put Option”); and

the non-controlling shareholders of AYD Group was
granted with the call option, whereby the non-controlling
shareholders of AYD Group has the discretion to acquire
all equity interest of the Group in AYD Group at a
consideration of RMB1,382,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,574,000,000), which is exercisable if the Company
fails to obtain AYD Group spin-off approval from the Stock
Exchange before 30 June 2020 (the “NCI's Call Option”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34.

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Put Option and
NCI's Call Option were HK$30,662,000 (2017: Nil) and
HK$28,386,000 (2017: Nil) respectively, and were determined by
independent professional valuer based on the Black-Scholes
Options Pricing Model.

35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35.
Movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
position are as follows:

TEEmMT R
Wizt - ()
©

RZZ—N\E+-_A=+—8 R HH#E
LEEREZRERENATFTED A
30,662,000 T( =T — £ F: T) R
28,386,000 T (ZE—tF : F) ' kM
B BEMEMBENS R — aTERAE
fEiEEBEXEE -

EEH IR
REFAREBIRTEHIEFE KT 2 B
T

2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FATT
Recognised net deferred tax ERERELEHRE
liabilities/(assets) a8l (EE)FE
At the beginning of the reporting period R 2R3 229,817 156,900
Addition — acquisition of subsidiaries NE — WEHE AR
(Note 42) (Kt 42) 16,457 67,180
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries REHEHB AR
(Note 41) (Kiz41) (32,949) -
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (ZtA)/thBEx
(Note 13) (Krat13) (28,292) 5,737
At the end of the reporting period REHRMEER 185,033 229,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 35. EEBIIE (&)
Recognised net deferred tax liabilities at the end of the RERMEERAZEBRRRELERIBAEBF
reporting period represent the following: FBINE :
Assets Liabilities
BE af&
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E—N\F =z —E-NFE —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT FET T
Depreciation allowances & ITE 13 507 - .
Pension obligation BIREEE 1,737 - - -
Tax loss FiIEEE 5,289 - - -
Intangible assets B EE - - (191,241) (231,226)
Others Hh 940 902 (1,771) -
Deferred tax RIERIEEE
assets/(liabilities) (B&E) 7.979 1,409 (193,012) (231,226)

2018 2017
—E—N\E&E —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Unrecognised deferred tax assets  KRERMNIELEHIEEERH

arising from
Deductible temporary differences AT R BT R M =R 5,780 5,780
Tax losses BIEEE 410,888 291,385
At the end of the reporting period REHBEER 416,668 297,165
Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary differences BIBRATROE - BIAEE R AT NSRS
expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have ZEHTEEE o BRAREE T KAFER
not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not FRRERT T EEHE ] HaF &= -
probable that future taxable profit will be available against E I R % F 18 B ERIRERIBEE o

which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 35. IEEBIIE (&)
As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of temporary RZZ—-—NF+ZA=+—8 BX%EE
differences associated with the Group’s PRC subsidiaries’ and FR I R R ORI B A F 2 R B AR
Australia subsidiary’s undistributed retained earnings, BRANEBENEREZBHEESIOAAR
amounting to approximately RMB254,940,000 and #5 254,940,000 7T 2. 4,515,00008 7T ° A
AU$4,515,000 respectively. No deferred tax liabilities have SEBRNEHZEMB AR SBER -
been recognised in respect of these differences because the BZEERAAERARRBAIE TS WA
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these B - RS EEERREIEAE -

subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

36. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES 36. RMEHESRE
(@) Total minimum lease payments are as (a) BREEESREBEDT :
follows:
2018 2017
—E_N&E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FH&TT
Due within one year —ERNEH 335 445
Due in the second to fifth years - ERFTH 308 830
643 1,275
Future finance charges on BERENRRMIEER
finance leases (7) (81)
Present value of finance REHEaENERE
lease liabilities 636 1,194
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BE-2-\F+-A=+—BIEE
36. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) The present value of finance lease
liabilities is as follows:

Due within one year, included under

—FREH - AR

36. MEHERE )

(b) MEHERBEZRENT :

2018 2017
—g-N\F  —Ft7
HK$'000
FHT

HK$'000
TR

current liabilities BEET 332 399
Due in the second to fifth years, FEFRFEE - FTA
included under IERBEBEET
non-current liabilities 304 795
636 1,194

37. REDEEMABLE AND EXCHANGEABLE
PREFERRED SHARE
On 24 October 2018, the Company and one of the Group’s
subsidiary, Mason Healthcare Group Limited (“Mason
Healthcare”), entered into an investment agreement with an
investor (“Investor”), Classic Harmony Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 659), in
relation to the issue of 20,000,000 non-voting preferred shares
by Mason Healthcare to the Investor at an aggregate
consideration of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$156,000,000)
("Subscription Share”), with cash dividend at the rate of
US$0.02 per annum per share. The preferred shares will be
redeemable in three years (i.e. 25 October 2021).
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BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

37. REDEEMABLE AND EXCHANGEABLE 37. EORABRELRKR#)

PREFERRED SHARE (Continued)

The Investor will have the right to exchange the preferred
shares for the shares of Mason Healthcare’s group entities
upon the occurrence of the consummation of initial public
offerings of any of these group entities, and sales or disposal of
interest in these group entities. The maximum amount of
preferred shares that may be exchanged is 100% of the
principal amount of preferred shares as at the date of issue
and any outstanding unpaid interest.

The outstanding preferred shares will be settled at the election
of the Investor, either (i) in cash at an amount equal to the
subscription price at US$1.00 per preferred share (the
“Subscription Price”) plus interest at the rate of 4% of
Subscription Price compounded annually; or (i) by the issue of
new shares of the Company as determined by dividing the
aggregate Subscription Price for all outstanding preferred
shares by the issue price (“Issue Price”). The Issue Price is
determined as higher of HK$0.28, or 80% of the average closing
price of a share of the Company as quoted on the daily
quotation sheet published by the Stock Exchange for the five
consecutive trading days immediately before maturity.

The management has designated the redeemable and
exchangeable preferred share as financial liabilities at FVTPL as
it is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis. As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the preferred
shares is HK$157,744,000.

REREMZEEEER I ERAREE
UERHERHEXEEBERERR &
BEERARNEAREREREREEE
BRM - THRZBEARESSERET
H ERB e AR AN € 58 100% A RRAE AR ARASFILE, ©

REMNZEBARBREEEZRZNARS
(ERBAENRBESRELMI1.00ET
(IREE) S MHRBELESFNE L%
FTEZAR) (i) AR D BITREMR
ZHRABEBRABTE(RTEDEEZ
RRRFITHBRMEE - BHITERKR028
ABITRIRA R R D N B % B IR A (EE
BRXZPBEBRRZAERRERARFHK
MEZ80%MER 2R EE -

BN A EE & A R B e IR IR AT EEE
ERNFERERE  BRBEEBEEEHEETE
REATEFABRNWBEAR  RZ2F
—N\F+ZA=+—H0 ELEROHAFE
#£157,744,000 7 7T °
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BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

38. REVERSE REPURCHASE AND REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS

(@)

(b)

292

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

As at 31 December 2018, the Group entered into reverse
repurchase agreements with financial institutions, which
are the counterparties entering into a commitment with
the Group to purchase the specified bonds eligible for
Swiss National Bank General Collateral Basket at a future
date at an agreed price. As part of the reverse
repurchase agreements, the Group received securities
allowed to be repledged in the absence of default of the
agreement by counterparties. If the collateral received
declines in value, the Group may, in certain
circumstances, require additional collaterals.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding amount paid
for the reverse repurchase agreements was
CHF142,029,000 (equivalent to HK$1,130,371,000) (2017:
Nil) and was recognised as receivables from reverse
repurchase agreements. As at 31 December 2018, the
fair value of the specified bonds received as collateral for
the outstanding receivable in connection with its reverse
repurchase agreements was CHF144,716,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,151,758,000) (2017: Nil).

All the above collateral is allowed to be repledged (2017:
Nil).

Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase agreements are transactions in which the
Group sells a security and simultaneously agrees to
repurchase it at the agreed date and price.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding amount
received from the repurchase agreements was
CHF44,000,000 (equivalent to HK$350,185,000) (2017: Nil)
and was recognised as obligations under repurchase
agreements. As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of
the specified bonds which the Group repledged as
collateral in connection with its repurchase agreements
was CHF44,174,000 (equivalent to HK$351,570,000) (2017:
Nil).
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38. RMEEERE R

& &) B i
RZZE-NF+ZA=+—08 " K%
B BT LR A E R
REFINEAE BT AE - R
RRABUKNEERBEERSERE
BmTBEREBTEF-—RERR
(Swiss National Bank General
Collateral Basket) W35 EfE % ° EA
RAIEEHEN—HD ERXZHEF
WHERIBZEAIBRT - NEBYE
Al T EFERHF S o fWATUEEY K
HmEETE  AREETERET
BT EREIMNERR -

RZZ—NE+=-A=+—0 " K
MEEREITOREESER
142,029,0003% + A& BB( 8 F »®
1,130,371,0008 L) (Z & — & :
) R RER A I (A [ B 175 53 B U5k
He-RZZE—\F+ZA=1+—8"
BB BFEESFAFEEAEH
2. 1) 120 B 195 26 ) o 45 B R MR TE D 3K
) A144,716,000 3 + 5% BF (#8 %
#1,151,758,0008 ) (ZZF—+F :
T)o

FrA L R A RFEIEM (=
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[=0 7% 5
(517 24 H5 N S B 1) £ 3B 5 30 RIS )
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HNZ5 -
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39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. BA

Number of
ordinary
shares

in issue Share capital

BT
EBERYA B
HK$'000
TR

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: BRARBELER
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—A—H 18,437,332,875 3,277,443
Issue of shares under rights issue, net of RIBHEREITRG -

expenses (Note) MBRER (F7:2) 22,124,799,450 2,865,519
Issue of shares under bonus issue (Note) IR IR E AT IR (T at) 4,056,213,232 -
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 R-Z—tH&+=-A=+-A8"

and 31 December 2018 —Z2-\§¥-A-HK

—E-NF+=-A=+-H 44,618,345,557 6,142,962

Note:

In October 2016, the Group proposed to (i) issue 22,124,799,450 shares
("Rights Shares”) of the Company to the qualifying shareholders, on the
basis of six Rights Shares for every five shares held by qualifying
shareholders at the date for determining their entitlements to
participate, at subscription price of HK$0.13 per share (the "Rights
Issue”); and (ii) issue 4,056,213,232 new shares (“Bonus Shares”) of the
Company to qualifying shareholders, on the basis of one Bonus Share
for every ten shares held by the qualifying shareholders at the date for
determining their entitlements (the “Bonus Issue”). Upon completion of
the Rights Issue and the Bonus Issue in February 2017, the number of
issued shares of the Company increased from 18,437,332,875 shares
t0 44,618,345,557 shares.

All new shares issued in 2017 rank pari passu in all respects with the
existing shares.

e

RZB—RF+A - AEEEZ()AEERRE
TN F22,124,799, 45085 B4 ([HERERR 1 1) -
EEBLERBRARETRSLEENE BEH
B R MHERITRIREREY - RBEATR
01377t ([#HARET]) 5 R A& BEERRETT
7R/ 7)4,056,213,232 R (0 (T4 AR AR 10 |) » F
EAGERBRRARECESHANEEESHA TR
BRADIEEEFT — BRAT AR AR D ([4TRREEAT ]) o IELAR
BITRABBEITR T —LFE - AxKE AR
Rl 2 BB TR0 E B H18,437,332,875 K 1 &=
44,618,345,557 % °

T EEBRTZMARROEME T HERA
B =B RFHAL -
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40. RESERVES

@)

294

The capital reserve was arisen from acquisition of
interest in subsidiaries in prior years.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
exchange differences relating to the translation of the
financial statements of the foreign operations of the
Group and/or its associates from their functional
currency to the Group’s presentation currency which are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

The FVOCI reserve represents fair value reserve
comprises the cumulative net charge in the fair value of
equity investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS9
that are held at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no
reserves were available for distribution to the equity
holders of the Company.
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41. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41. RIEELHEMBE QT (K EEZEHE)

LOSS OF CONTROL

Deemed disposal of RHG

As disclosed in Note 19(c) and 20, the Group has loss of control
in RHG on 8 June 2018, the equity interest in RHG decreased
from 55.02% t0 46.71%. RHG ceased as subsidiaries of the
Group and was accounted as an associate since then. In
calculating the deemed consideration upon the deemed
disposal on 8 June 2018, the Group has engaged Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”), an independent valuer to
perform valuation on RHG Group. The fair value as at 8 June
2018 was HK$1,260,000,000. The following summarised the
deemed consideration and the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities to be derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at the date of

RIELEEEEK

WK FE19C) R20FTH T - AEER =T
—N\FRAN\BAEREEERRZHIE
NEEE SR AR AE B 55.02% & 2= 46.71% °
UL EEBETEAARAMNMNE
REWERBERNAIARK  RetEZZ
—NFRANBRELEERRIERER
RNEE B TEE (4 (E AT E
BRARN([MERE ) HEEEFE T
BE RZE—N\FXANBNAFES
1,260,000,000 7 7T, ° AR 1E H & B BRI R
EREBR B ARNEBERE MR N RLK T
ROEERBENROAERMRAT

deemed disposal:

Consideration RE
Deemed consideration BRIER(E 588,546
Less: consideration paid for shares subscription S MR RE MR E (160,000)
428,546
Less: Net assets and liabilities derecognised & : KUt BERNEERSEEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) VI BB SRR (M At 16) 2,267
Intangible assets (Note 17) mEE(KiFE17) 201,900
Deferred tax assets (Note 35) BT TEE 2 (M17£35) 425
Goodwill (Note 18) EE(KE18) 183,296
Trade and other receivables B 5N E MW EIR 9,648
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 97,839
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M E TR (12,507)
Tax payables FERTTRIE (4,691)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 35) EERIB A E (3£ 35) (33,374)
Non-controlling interests ElE g (147,609)
Net assets derecognised BIFERNEERE 297,194
Gain on deemed disposal BAEH &MU 131,352
Net cash flow on deemed disposal of BIEREHBATINE SR TSE
subsidiaries
Consideration paid BEfRE (160,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHERSRRESEEY (97,839)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents RERRESEWRLFHE 257,839
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Business combinations — For the year

296

ended 31 December 2018

Acquisition of RPL

In October 2017, MSIC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a share purchase agreement with
third parties to acquired 100% equity interest of RPL at an
estimated aggregate cash consideration of
CHF63,267,000 (equivalent to HK$556,829,000), which is
calculated based on the adjustment basis stated in the
agreement.

The principal activities of RPL includes the provision of
private banking services while also offering services for
external asset managers. The acquisition of RPL was
completed in March 2018.

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$9,730,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and recognised as an expense in profit or loss under
operating expenses.

The fair value of trade and other receivables acquired as
of the acquisition date amounted to HK$1,745,548,000.
The gross contractual amount of these receivables is
HK$1,745,548,000. None of these receivables have been
impaired and it is expected that the full contractual
amounts can be collected.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
Avista, to perform valuations at the date of acquisition for
the purpose of accounting for the acquisition of RPL
according to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed has
been determined based on the valuation approach as
determined by Avista. The fair value of customer
relationship of CHF5,170,000 (equivalent to
HK$42,406,000) and banking license of CHF2,700,000
(equivalent to HK$22,146,000) are determined by income-
based approach using the discount rate of 17.10% per
annum.
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. WIBEHE AT (&)

(@) Business combinations — For the year

ended 31 December 2018 (continued)
Acquisition of RPL (Continued)

Since acquisition, RPL has contributed revenue of
HK$51,514,000 and a net profit of HK$9,694,000 to the
Group. If the acquisition of RPL had occurred on 1
January 2018, the Group's revenue and net profit would
have been increased by HK$14,831,000 and HK$6,708,000
respectively.

This pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and it is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved has the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future performance.

Acquisition of Harris Fraser Group Limited
and its subsidiaries (“HFG")

In September 2017, MSIC also entered into a share
purchase agreement with a third party to acquired 100%
equity interest of HFG at an estimated aggregate
consideration of HK$128,024,000.

The consideration consisted of the following elements:

(i) Fixed consideration

Under the share purchase agreement, the total
fixed consideration is HK$116,550,000. Upon
completion, the MSIC is responsible to pay and
procure to pay to the vendor HK$81,550,000 (“Initial
Consideration Payment”). The remaining balance of
the fixed consideration shall be payable to the
vendor in two equal installments which
represented HK$17,475,000 (“First Deferred
Payment” and “Second Deferred Payment”).

(@) XBE/H —BE=Z-NF

+T—A=+—HLFE#H)

I EERPL (&)

BULBE% - RPLE A EE E EHIES
51,514,000 7T K 54 F) 9,694,000 7
JT ° HUWBERPLA -T2 — NE—F—
BT - RIS B8 e BT m i
23 Bl Hn 14,831,000 3% 7T & 6,708,000
BT e

HHEEERHERR ARG - RORER
ﬁ%lﬁAﬂE"“HﬁlﬁﬁaﬁA_7 —\F—
H*EITE&E’JI RTAERESHR

REEEE  ITRHERRERR
E’Ui‘E/EU

WEBEREEERARARENE
AR ([BERER])

RZZE—tFNF MSICIFEE=
FEI R BZE R EEREE IR
7 - (HET R (E5128,024,0008 7T °

REHATEZRAMX

0 BEERE
REERDE  BETRER
116,550,000 7T ° R FEA 1%
MSICE B X R ERE A
181,550,000 7T ([ & HAR (B
RE) - BEREHRTEETY
2 AW E (R1H 17,475,000 75
XN TER(E—FRT
R R [FEZEREMNZKD) -
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(@) Business combinations — For the year

298

ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)
Acquisition of Harris Fraser Group Limited
and its subsidiaries (“HFG") (Continued)

(i) Adjustment to the consideration

In the event that the aggregate net profit of the HFG
Group ("Aggregate Net Profit”) for the financial
year ending 31 March 2019 (“FY2019") based on
the audited consolidated or combined financial
accounts of the HFG Group in respect of that
financial year is less than HK$7,500,000
(“Guaranteed Profits"), the consideration shall be
adjusted downward in accordance with the

following formula:

Adjusted Amount = (Guaranteed Profits -
for FY2019 Aggregate Net Profit in
the relevant Financial
Year) X 15

As at 31 December 2018, the management
estimated the Aggregate Net Profit for FY2019
would exceed the Guaranteed Profits. The
probability of the consideration being adjusted

downward has been considered remote.

(i) Profit sharing arrangement

The vendor shall be entitled to share the net profit
for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 from 1
April 2017 up to the Completion Date. Minimum
capital requirement of HK$3,800,000 shall be
deducted from the net profit shared. The amount of
shared profit included in the consideration is

HK$8,524,000.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2018

42. WEKBAR &)

(@) ¥¥e6t —BE-ZT—N\&F
+ZA=+—HLEE®)
WEESHREERERATARELKE
AT(BwEHEDE)

(i) FHERE
WEBEREEBRE 21
EFZA=+—BIHBEE
([ZB-hBBREE)) &S
BEAXANIBER - B
EEN R REE 2 M A 25
([ 4R 48 %8 |) 27 7,500,000 %
T (RER%A ) - B EER
UTARTH :

—E—5 = (RE&HM —
HHRFEZ FERAB I
KRS FEAF

#2FE)X 15

RZE-NFt+_A=1+—
B BEREB/ T -AMRK
FEZANGHEBBRE G
Moo THREOR RIS
E e

(i) BT L
ELERESE_T—tFN
A—BERKBHESHE
T-NF=ZA=+—HIHHK
FEMMEFE HEELRE
JE 3,800,000 7T7B B # 5 H) 5
FFRERINGR - RERFTAR
B )6 5858,524,000/8 7T ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T—-N\FT--A=+—HIFE
42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(@) Business combinations — For the year
ended 31 December 2018 (continued)
Acquisition of Harris Fraser Group Limited
and its subsidiaries (“HFG") (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Profit sharing arrangement (Continued)

In the event that the Aggregate Net Profit for
FY2019 exceeds HK$9,000,000 but less than
HK$11,250,000, MSIC shall pay to the vendor a cash
payment equivalent to 40% of such part of the
Aggregate Net Profit in excess of HK$9,000,000
(“Initial Sum”); In the event that the Aggregate Net
Profit for FY2019 exceeds HK$11,250,000, the MSIC
shall pay to the vendor a cash payment equivalent
to consummation of the Initial Sum and a sum
equivalent to 50% of the amount in excess of
HK$11,250,000. As at completion date, the
management estimated the Aggregate Net Profit
for FY2019 as HK$15,301,000. Therefore, the fair
value of the profit shared is estimated to be
HK$3,000,000 and included in aggregate
consideration for calculating goodwill in the
acquisition of HFG.

Share repurchase

If the Aggregate Net Profit for FY2019 (based on the
audited consolidated or combined financial
accounts of the HFG Group in respect of FY2019) is
HK$2,250,000 or less (being 30% of the Guaranteed
Profits), the vendor shall be entitled to repurchase
the Sale Shares. Based on the management, the
probability of such event has been considered
remote.

42. \WEEKMIE AR (&)
(@) ¥¥e6t —BEZE=-ZE—N\HF

+=

B=t—BLEE®#

WEEREEERAAREKE
AR (TEHREE]D#E)

(iii)

(iv)

KRE&E

S Fil > 2o (48)

W= — N BFE 2T 2
%8 1R 389,000,000 7T 18 4 7
11,250,000 7T * MSIC %8 A 38
SMAMEFZNEE RSN EE
FR iR H 9,000,000 7T 2 F B3 &6
DA0% 2 KB ([HIHHIE]) -
W= — N BFE 2T 2
%8 #8 38 11,250,000 3 7T MSIC
AR EMERZREERN
T E B 2RI - Y RIE
Ko 48 & 7 8 11,250,000 7T
2B BE 5 50% 2 FIB - R
BRRE - EREMF =N
BWHREFEEZHEFBER
15,301,000 7T o B Ik » 5 F
SR QT E A E 43,000,000
BILTRRBEEREERA
ATEAENBRERN -

el

=T —NMBEFER AR
BREBEENER _ZT— 1Y
BFEE 2 RECEAXAHY
%8R B ) /2,250,000 7T 3k A
T (BMRF R Z230%) * BT
BRBLOHEERN - BEEE
RN WERT BRI -
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(@) Business combinations — For the year

300

ended 31 December 2018 (continued)
Acquisition of Harris Fraser Group Limited
and its subsidiaries ("HFG") (Continued)

The HFG Group is principally engaged in provision of
wealth management services. The acquisition of the HFG
Group was completed in May 2018.

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$3,655,000
have been excluded from consideration transferred and
have been recognised as an expense in profit or loss
under operating expenses.

The fair value of trade and other receivables acquired as
of the acquisition date amounted to HK$13,577,000. The
gross contractual amount of these receivables is
HK$13,577,000. None of these receivables have been
impaired and it is expected that the full contractual
amounts can be collected.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
Avista, to perform valuations at the date of acquisition for
the purpose of accounting for the acquisition of HFG
Group according to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
has been determined based on the valuation approach
as determined by Avista. The fair value of IFA network of
HK$18,300,000 and brand name of HK$23,488,000 are
determined by income-based approach using the
discount rate of 17% per annum, while the fair value of
licenses of HK$7,047,000 is determined by market
approach.

Since acquisition, the HFG Group has contributed
revenue of HK$102,880,000 and a net profit of
HK$6,486,000 to the Group. If the acquisition of HFG
Group had occurred on 1 January 2018, the Group's
revenue and net profit would have been increased by
HK$66,851,000 and HK$5,726,000 respectively. This pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and it
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved has the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future performance.
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42. WEEKMIB DT (&)

(a)

¥BE —BE-ZE—N\E
+=ZBA=+—HLEE®
KEEHREEERATNRENE
AEI(BHER] (#E)
ENEETIERERHEPEETER
o WBERERN - — \GHA
=K e

Wi B A8 B X 7K 3,655,000 78 7T B P 8%
BEORETIRR - YR EERXTA
SPERRFAX

PGS B HRFT IR S ) E 5 I H M FE LR
TN FE A 13,577,0008 T ° %%
JE WL SR IE & %) 48 %8 513,577,000 75
7T o E AR EUGIBEE A - TEET
AREEEELISRE o

NEEZER 7 FEMEMIEBR
W BE R#ETT(HE - LR B BT EH
ERBNE I (KB B EE W&
B AR o FTUCEE AT 88 51 & B I P i
BENDFEREBNEBETENGE
EEE o B M SERAK RS
A F{E 5 B A18,300,0007% 7T &
23,488,000/ 7t + JyiR W A 5 R 1%
FRRER17%EE - MERITE
7,047,000 8 TTIR T 5 /A HEE o

BUlER  SNEEEAAEEERE
Uiz % 102,880,0007% 7t K& F 8 % 5@
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—ZT-N\F—A—B#ET BIAEE
B U a R DB OF E S o R
66,851,000 7T 5. 5,726,000 /8 7T © 1tk
BHEERHEHRFEARG - KRB REA
EENBREBEER - N\F—A
—HEAMIER T EREE RS
RASEEE T RERARRKREN
TEA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. WEKBAR (&)
(@) Business combinations — For the year (@) K& —BE-Z—N\F
ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) +TZA=1+—HILFE@®)
The following summarises the consideration paid, the AT B Ui B BIE R E R
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and non- & BUWBEERERESENIE
controlling interest recognised at the date of the R

respective acquisitions:

HFG Group RPL Total
EHER et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

Consideration RE
Cash consideration WERE 128,024 556,829 684,853
Recognised amounts of BRIl EER

identifiable assets FIREaEN

acquired and BRELE

liabilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment 1% - HE R B

(Note 16) (H1E 16) 432 276,679 277,111
Intangible assets (Note 17) mEE (Mt 17) 48,947 66,018 114,965
Deferred tax assets (Note 35) EEFIBE = (152 35) - 1,116 1,116
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 £/ T A - 19 19
Financial assets measured at WESEN AT 2

amortised cost WIS & E - 152,566 152,566
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b W GRIE 5,084 - 5,084
Commission receivables gk 8,493 - 8,493
Tax recoverable o] Bl e i 18 320 - 320
Reverse repurchase agreements [ [ (6] i 7 3%

(Note 38) (B15#38) - 565,716 565,716
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRS 27,228 367,491 394,719
Accrued and deferred assets e RBEE A E - 13,683 13,683
Amount due from director EWEEKIA 46 - 46
Amounts due from clients FEW % P /1B - 643,399 643,399
Amounts due from banks USRI T IR - 1,102,149 1,102,149
Other assets Hib&EE 1,355 566 1,921
Commission payables ERHAE (17,288) - (17,288)
Trade and other payables E 5 RHAMEMNFIE (6,670) - (6,670)
Dividend payables FERTAR B (5,000) - (5,000)
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. WEKBAR &)
(a) Business combinations — For the year (@) ¥B&6t —BE-_ZT—N\F
ended 31 December 2018 (continued) +TZA=1+—HILFE@®)

HFG Group Total
BHEE st

HK$'000 : HK$'000
TAT

Repurchase agreements 5 B 1hp ek (MY AL 38)

(Note 38) - (401,910) (401,910)
Tax payables FESBITE (180) (438) 618)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 35)  iRIEF: 1B & & (H17135) (8,058) (9,515) (17,573)
Provisions B - (17,314) (17,314)
Accrued and deferred liabilities — fEET RIEE & (& - (4,093) (4,093)
Amounts due to clients ENEPRIE - (2,346,728) (2,346,728)
Other liabilities HEMmAaE - (10,993) (10,993)
Total identifiable net assets Al BB EFELRE 54,709 398,411 453,120
Provisional goodwill and goodwill [ B i 2 1 i B

arising on acquisitions EEREE

(Note 18 and Note (})) (BtaF 18 RAYaE()) 73,315 158,418 231,733

128,024 556,829 684,853

Net cash flow on acquisition UgBEHB N RELE

of subsidiaries REeRnEFE
Cash acquired from subsidiaries BHBATHE RS 27,228 367,491 394,719
Cash consideration WerE (128,024) (556,829) (684,853)
Add: Consideration payable o ERRE 17,475 36,740 54,215

Contingent consideration SRR (E
payable 3,000 - 3,000

Net outflow of cash ReRReEEDRT

and cash equivalents FEE (80,321) (152,598) (232,919)
Note: Bt -

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the Group has not finalised the (i) R-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—H &
consideration for the acquisition of HFG as the EFHNAEENRERSHORE
consideration is subjected to the actual Aggregate Net BEZREBIERA T —NPREE
Profit of HFG in FY2019 as disclosed in Note 42(a)(ii). BIANBR AR EmmE ko it

5 42(a)(il) FTH a5 -

(i) Asat 31 December 2018, the Group has not finalised the iy HZE-—NF+ZA=+—HB &
consideration for the acquisition of RPL as the EEHNAETRERPLAORE - A
consideration is subjected to the contingent payments. BZREIBRNEARNR -
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Business combinations — For the year

ended 31 December 2017

Acquisition of Blend & Pack

In July 2017, GL Food Holdings Pte. Ltd (“Mason Food"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
share sales agreement with third parties, pursuant to
which Mason Food agreed to acquire 75% of the issued
capital of Blend & Pack at an aggregate cash
consideration of AU$76,778,000 (equivalent to
HK$478,617,000) based on the pricing mechanism in the
agreement. The consideration is subject to further
adjustment due to disputed items in the completion
accounts and has not been confirmed at the date of
approving the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

The principal activities of Blend & Pack is set out in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements. The
acquisition of Blend & Pack was completed in September
2017.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$2,125,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in profit or l0ss
under other operating expenses.

In respect of the acquisition of Blend & Pack, the fair
value of trade and other receivables acquired is
amounted to AU$6,930,000 (equivalent to
HK$42,480,000). The gross contractual amount of the
receivables is AU$6,935,000 (equivalent to
HK$42,444,000), of which AU$5,000 (equivalent to
HK$36,000) is expected to be uncollectible.

42. \WEEKMIE AR (&)
(b) %66t — BE=-=—+tHF

+T-ZA=+—HLFE

I B% Blend & Pack
RZZT—+FtA AEEZZ2EN
B 7~ 7IGL Food Holdings Pte. Ltd
(IMason Food |) 8255 = 75 5] 7 &%
¥ 0 ¥tk - Mason Food R & LA 1%
ERREERFTTENERSNRE
76,778,00038 7T ( #8 & 7 478,617,000
7 70) Wg B Blend & Pack 75% B 21T
BRA - REETKERRHEFHE
B BfEHE— R BRME
RNEELRE M ERE B AR RIETE -

Blend & Pack 2 = B H PN 4R A 81
HIREJMFE 19 o JiEBlend & Pack 2
R-Z—+FENATRK -

1z B #H 8 X 4K 2,125,000 78 7T 3 T~ B
BREERED  YERERTER
REMBEIHAETHM -

FUkEBlend & Pack s © FIESE
5 I Eo b [RE U5 R I8 A S E 56,930,000
ST (FHE 7 42,480,000 1) » FEUK
FIEAA KSR A 6,935,00052 7T (17
& 742,444,000 7T) + H A 5,00058
7T (48 & 74.36,000% 7T ) 78 8 ] Uk
@ °
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Business combinations — For the year

304

ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
Acquisition of Blend & Pack (Continued)

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
Avista, to perform valuations at the date of acquisition for
the purpose of accounting for the acquisition of Blend &
Pack according to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed has
been determined based on the valuation approach as
determined by Avista. The fair value of the brand name
of AU$15,020,000 (equivalent to HK$92,076,000),
customer relationship of AU$3,030,000 (equivalent to
HK$18,575,000) and license of AU$19,100,000 (equivalent
to HK$117,088,000) are determined by income-based
approach using the discount rate of 15.60% per annum.

The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling
interests at their proportionate interests in the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Blend & Pack.

Since acquisition, Blend & Pack has contributed revenue
of HK$32,954,000 and a net profit of HK$233,000 to the
Group. If the acquisition of Blend & Pack effected during
the year had been taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue and net profit of the Group would have
been increased by HK$29,166,000 and HK$4,499,000
respectively.

Acquisition of R fE#E by Shining Time

In January 2017, AYD Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Shining Time Holdings Limited), one of the Group’s
partially-owned subsidiaries, acquired 100% of the equity
interest of R EREREAR AR ("FARAEHE") at
an aggregate cash consideration of RMB5,000,000
(equivalent to HK$5,982,000). Such acquisition was part
of the restructuring plan of Shining Time according to
Appendix 5 Clause 4 “Steps of Restructuring” of the
investment agreement entered into between Pioneer
Leap and two third parties in December 2016 for the
acquisition of 55% of equity interest of Shining Time and
its subsidiaries. The shares transfer of = & 4 f& §## was
subsequently completed on 1 January 2017.
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42. WEEKMIE AR (&)
(b) %46t — BEZE=-=—+tH&F

+T—A=+—HLFE#H)

Y #& Blend & Pack (4#)
RNEBEBZEB Y FEMEMEBR
W BE AETTIHE - IR BB I KR
HERIF I (87T 15 U #E Blend
& Pack ABK o FTUk & AT 38 B & B R BT
FEBENQTAEDER EmTE
EHEANETETE - REEBAT
115,020,000 27T, (48 7 92,076,000
L) - BF & A F{E3,030,00008
7L (A& 718,575,000 7T) IR A
S {E19,100,00082 T( 4 & »
117,088,000 % 7T ) Jh iz W a0k 5 R 4%
FHIRK15.60% BT °

AEBEDEZRIFERERNBlend
& Pack Al LRI & E M B E R M s I
PIETE IRt -

B UEE% - Blend & Pack B BAREE
B B Uk 532,954,000 7T & % i F
233,000 7T © fifi i FF R #7T K9 Blend
& Pack BB N F 9117 + AIAREER
W s K2 % o 1 9 51l A0 29,166,000
BTN 4,499,000 7T ©

SREWERE Rt ESE
RZT—EF—A AEE—HEHD
% B 2 M B 2 B1AYD Holdings
Limited (518 SE R R B BR 2 A1) BA
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Business combinations — For the year

ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
Acquisition of Rt FE#E by Shining Time
(Continued)

The principal activity of M R £ fE# is the operation and
management of retails and franchise stores. The
acquisition was made with the aims to expand the scale
of operation and enlarge market presence of Shining
Time. The acquisition of 8 ;= f F& % was completed in
January 2017

No acquisition-related cost has been incurred from this
acquisition.

The fair value of trade and other receivables amounted
to approximately of RMB7,593,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,040,000). In the opinion of the management, no
receivables is expected to be uncollectable.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer,
ERFPHEREEN G TWEHEGKEBERRAR ("HH
1IE Z&"), to perform valuations at the date of acquisition
for the purpose of accounting for the acquisition of &R
#fESE according to HKFRS 3 (Revised). The fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
has been determined based on the valuation approach
as determined by ¥R IEZE.

Since acquisition, R £ EHE has contributed revenue of
HK$867,592,000 and net profit of HK$44,300,000 to the
Group.

42. \WEEKMIE AR (&)

(b)

EBEo —BE-ZT—LF
TZA=1tT—-HLEFE#E)
REBW R AR (F)

AREEEN T EEBACERER
TERFTEEE - RIBWEETE
REEREWEA B TISHEE -
AREERENECRN T —tF5—A
SERK °

SRR R S A A AR o

B RHMERFBEAFEENAR
57,593,000 7T ( *H ) 5@9,040,000 B
L) BERERE  BEAEEIIE
e

AEBRBE Y EXGEEMERTA
EREEFETHEMEGRERRA
Bl([HhHESR DRI RETHE

PARR 5 2 78 B 7% o o 7 ) 8 357 (4R

E5T) U B R AL B ARR » PTUR

A BRI EERFTREAEATET

ENPIRIERMEEGET NETE

F oo

AR BREEEEAREEE
B U %5 867,592,0007% 7T K 4% % A
44,300,000 7T, ©
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42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. WEEHEB AR (&)
(b) Business combinations — For the year (b) ¥¥&66t —BE-_ZT—LtHF
ended 31 December 2017 (continued) TZA=+—HLFE#E)
The following summarises the consideration paid, the LATBE A HE IS B I E R E
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and non- NRE -  CWBEERMAAEBEN
controlling interest recognised at the date of the &

respective acquisitions:

FEmftfEs Blend & Pack Total
et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT TAT

Consideration RE
Cash consideration HERE 5,982 478,617 484,599
Additional consideration paid B X {T&IZEIMEE

(Note (i) (Btat () - 649 649

5,982 479,266 485,248

Recognised amounts of BBl EER

identifiable assets FREEBNEIRSHE

acquired

and liabilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - B K& R4

(Note 16) (Hat16) 843 15,525 16,368
Intangible assets (Note 17) E|IEE (H1517) - 227,739 227,739
Deferred tax assets (Note 35)  IEFLFiSH B (Mfa£35) - 1,142 1,142
Inventories FE 10,682 13,932 24,614
Trade and other receivables B 5) K H b fE W R IE 9,040 42,480 51,520
Tax recoverable AU EI R IR 949 - 949
Bank balances and cash RITHHBR LIRS 2,467 3,271 5,738
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A IR (19,760) (37,754) (57,514)
Finance leases liabilities MEHEAE - (1,341) (1,341)
Tax payables FE N - (11,368) (11,368)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 35) iEFTFiSHi & 1& (Hfa£35) - (68,322) (68,322)
Total identifiable net assets Al R FEERTE 4,221 185,304 189,525
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HE-F-\F+-A=f-BLFE
42. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) Business combinations — For the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

42. WBHMIE A E )
(b) XBEs —BE-T—tF
t=A=t+—-RLEFEE®

FEfitfESE Blend & Pack

HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
T

Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M B - (46,326) (46,326)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions Ui B 2= A4 1 g 2

(Note 18) (Htz£18) 1,761 339,639 341,400
Additional goodwill IR

(Note 18 and Note (j)) (K1t 18 R AL (i) - 649 649
Net cash flow on acquisition WEMBATRE

of subsidiaries T 5,982 479,266 485,248
Cash acquired from subsidiaries #HfBATRE RS 2,467 3,271 5,738
Cash consideration BeRE (5,982) (478,617) (484,599)
Additional cash consideration B X {J#zEINE SR E

paid (Note (j)) (H1a () - (649) (649)
Net outflow of cash RekREEEYRT

and cash equivalents FEE (3,515) (475,995) (479,510
Note: ftaE -

(i) As at 31 December 2017, the Group has not finalised the
consideration for the acquisition of Blend & Pack due to
the disputes with the seller on: (i) the amount of estimated
net debt and (i) the treatment of excluding shareholder
loan in the calculation of the consideration.

As at the date of this report, the disputes have been
settled and the additional cash consideration of
HK$649,000 has been paid during the year, which
concluded a total final consideration of AU$76,896,000
(equivalent to HK$479,266,000). The relevant
consideration and goodwill stated above have been
finalised.

Goodwill arising from the above acquisitions is attributable to
the expected revenue growth, future market development and
assembled workforce that cannot be separately recognised
due to their nature. None of goodwill recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes.

R-T—+F+-A=+—8 &
RELE FTE () G FES 25 & ()
T ERERTEERRERNE
BARAENFER  AEEEHKE
& Ui 8% Blend & Pack 891K (E

WARHREBR - BEFEEHAR
EEINR & X (8 649,000 7L E R F
AXH BEERNEESRES
76,896,00002 L( #H F R
479,266,000 7T ) ° Ll fEER(E
REECDEE -

B B R E R TR 0 -
SR o T B B DA T R L M Ak B B R
TRESD S DHRZAEEHLAR
FRS B HE A, -
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43. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 43. HEWBAR
On 27 December 2018, the Group entered into a sale and RZBE-NFF+ZA=++tH KEEH
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of 1 ordinary —RE=ZFIVEERERGE  NWEEXRH
shares of Mason Financial Management Limited (representing BERERAFMNIREBRGEERER
100% of issued share capital) at consideration of BB B TR AN) - {8 67,535,000 78 7T AR
HK$67,535,000 payable by way of cash and secured promissory S REBHAREBEIN - ZHEFER
note. The disposal was completed on 28 December 2018. —T-NEFE+-A=-t+/\HEK -
The following summarises consideration received and the LT B ERBMrERREUAREER
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the date of BECREE
disposal:

Total
st

HK$'000
THETT

Net assets disposed of BHEZFEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & A F(EE Az MK EE 45,468

Deposits and prepayments & RIBFRIE 6

Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 49
45,523

Derecognition of foreign currency translation B E M B A B R AR I FESR NS TE 3 6 1

reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary (276)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR Z K 22,288
67,535

Consideration received 2R E

Cash consideration NerRE 33,768

Promissory note R 33,767
67,535

Net cash flow on disposal of a subsidiary HENBARZESRERE

Cash consideration HERE 33,768

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of WHECZIRSRIRESEEY (49)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEEBYRATE 33,719
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44. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 44. BRESHE

On 22 May 2012, with approval by the shareholders, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for a
period of ten years to replace the share option scheme
approved on 20 November 2002 that would otherwise expire
on 20 November 2012. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries and any other persons including consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The purpose of the Scheme is to
provide participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interest in the Company and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and the shareholders as
awhole.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
other share option scheme of the Company is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue from time to time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders, which was 1,843,733,288 shares. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme to any individual in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective associates
in excess of 0.1% of the Company's shares in issue and having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be subject
to prior approval by the Company'’s shareholders.

Under the Scheme, an amount of HK$1 is payable on the grant
of an option. Options may be exercised no later than ten years
from the date of grant of the share option. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of the closing price of the Company'’s
shares on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

No share options under the Scheme were granted/exercised
for both years nor outstanding as at 31 December 2018 and
2017.

RIT——FRAA- T+ —BEKREIE
AR B AR AR R B ([ 5%E T8I ) -
URERZZEZ_F+—-—A-t+B#kEZ
Bl E (AR =2 —=F+—HA=+AH
Eim) o IRIEZAE - ARRERZ AR
BRETEERES (RREAARRENES
NRAZES) RERMEMA LT (R2EER -
FAAREBABP - HEES)  UR
BAARRY - ZetEEER2EERE
HEAERARRMNRAEZ  WEBHS
HEARSARARERMHEEMIELS
7 A AR R R R A EEEEFZ o

REARNRRRFLEE  BREZFER
AN A ] E At B AR A T 814 1B M R AT
2 BRERY k2R &EZTEHAR
NAElTR B ETRMDE S 210% B
1,843,733,288 kX 11 o R AR A RIRKRE
S I+ =@ B R AT % AT
BRI 2 BT A AR T AT AL BT T M
AZRBAD BTG HBIBARA R B EITRD
BEZ 1% METARREERRRIE L
FNTEFARESEBZEMBEALTZ
BRRERTS R 2 RO B BBRARRD %
778819 2.0.1% + B 42 {E{E 833 5,000,000 7
7T - BSBASA A RIRR R TB SR ©

REBZETE BRENBREAIMN1E
TCe BRRET EEEERL ARETER
TE-fTRERARAREEEE  ANE
RAERBRMHRE L BBz KB REH
REZRRE A AT A EE % HZ FHRH
EBEMEPZBSE °

RZE—N\FEER_FT—+F+_A=+—
AMEFEL EREZ RN 1TER
B E > MEBEZ B NEZEEE
BRAE M AR ATIE ©
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45. RETIREMENT SCHEME 45. ERcHE

The Group has provided for its eligible employees a defined REBEAEAEREELHS M FI MR
contribution retirement scheme under Mandatory Provident Haerral([REeE ) A EHIERK
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets of the MPF HEl - RBEFENEERAEEEES
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an - THRRABYSTABLIEERNES -
independently administered fund managed by independent REERESTE  AEEREEET AR
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and each of the BB FTENER AT RIE B MABIA Z 5%
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of MEZ T B ER + MELA 1,500 8 TLE LBR ©

the employees’ relevant income as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation, which are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500.

During the year, the amount of employer’s contributions made RAFEER - RNEE A ERFERNREE
by the Group to the defined contribution retirement scheme FirE I £ SR BN EE 4 /81,726,000 7T (=
was approximately HK$1,726,000 (2017: HK$2,190,000). T—+4F 12,190,000 7T) °

46. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 46. R&RE R
(@) cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) BeRkREEEYEIE:

2017
—EF—tF

HK$'000
TAT

Cash available on demand BRERTERES
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFASEEY 1,603,086 1,759,412
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-N\F+-A=+—HIEE
46. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

46. RERERME D)

financing activities:

Interest
bearing
borrowings
(Note 32)

(b) MEFHELANEB YR

Amount due
toan
associate
(Note 21)

Finance lease
EITES
(Note 36)

Redeemable
and
exchangeable
preferred
share

(Note 37)
MEERT
BREER

#t

HK$'000
TAL

t 1January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H 320,016 20,000 1,194 - 341,210
Changes from cash flows: Renedi:
New bank and other TESRITRAMER
loans raised 158,798 - - - 158,798
Repayment of bank EERAREMER
and other loans (34909 - - - (34.909)
Loan from an associate REBERFAZER - 5,000 - - 5,000
Proceeds from issug of BMERRTES
redeemable and BEREETE
exchangeable preferred
shares - - - 156,000 156,000
Interest paid ERFE (23,548) - - - (23,548)
Repayment of obligation REMENERR
under finance leases - - (558) - (558)
Total changes from financing ~ REBSHER (&5
cash flows: 100,341 5,000 (558) 156,000 260783
Other changes: Rt
Interest expenses fIEER 23548 - - - 23548
Change in fair value NFHEES - - - 1744 1,744
Exchange realignment ERBE (350) - - - (350)
Total other changes A2 23198 - - 1,744 2494
At31 December 2018 R-F-)\E+-f=+-A 43555 25,000 63 157,744 626935
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BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BBAER S
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BN A SRR EMmE D ATEEN - K
statements, the Group had the following transactions with SERAFENEREB T ET ST ¢

related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel FEEBEAEZHE
The remuneration of the Company'’s directors during the year REERN  ARBEBSZHMES0T -
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Directors’ fees EEWE 1,521 1,801
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - Z8F R EWH|ZR 29,143 45,470
Contributions to defined contribution ERRHIGRGTEIHR
retirement schemes 74 66
30,738 47,337
The remuneration of the Company’s directors is reviewed by ARalEZzHeBAFTFHEESLER/A
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the KERTSBEEL R -

performance of individuals and market trends.

Further details of the emoluments of the Company's directors AArBEEMENE - THBIARGEY
are included in Note 11 to the consolidated financial TEMFEMEE -
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 48. MHEMEREBEREE
AND POLICIES

The Group's financial instruments include financial assets at AEB &R TABERAFETAEZR
FVTPL, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at ZHBEE - tTEeRITE - BT ER
FVOCI, financial assets at amortised cost, loan receivables, AEME2EREOMIEEE - REHEKAR
reverse repurchase agreements, trade and other receivables, HECHBEE  BRER  RAEER
fixed bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and % B REMEWREZIE - THRITE
cash, redeemable and exchangeable preferred share, trade DEIRITFER  BITEHKRLIRS - A&
and other payables, interest-bearing borrowings, repurchase B R EIRELR - B 5 REMENFE -
agreements, amount due to an associate, financial lease FHEER - BERE - BN —EEE QT
liabilities, long-term liabilities and contingent consideration ZE pAAEar . EHadEREMNK
payable. The accounting policies for financial instruments have KRB - 2RI ENSHBEDEARMN
been applied to the line items below. TmEEH o
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value Financial
fair value  through other assets at
through comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost
BRATETA BOTLETA R
Bz HttZEKRAZ HRAGEZ
BBEE BBEE BBREE @ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F
+=ZA=+-H
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at fair value BATHEG A BRH
through profit or loss HBEE 591,075 - - 591,075
Derivative financial instruments  $14 &g T A 75,396 - - 75,396
Financial assets at fair value BATER AL
through other ZHRAZ
comprehensive income BSEE - 633,244 - 633,244
Financial assets at REEK AT E
amortised cost LHBEE - - 173,785 173,785
Loan receivables [EER = = 1,484,474 1,484,474
Reverse repurchase agreements [ A8 335 = = 1,130,371 1,130,371
Trade and other receivables 25 M EMEWZRIE - - 1,272,248 1,272,248
Fixed bank deposits THRITTE - - 1,116,299 1,116,299
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRTER = = 94,137 94,137
Bank balances and cash RITEHB LIRS = = 1,603,086 1,603,086
Total Foy 666,471 633,244 6,874,400 8,174,115
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

48. MBEMEEBERBE#)

Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost
RAOFE REBHEEE
s ARE sTEMN
ZHKEE L py 3 -Ri
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 31 December 2018 R-E—N\EFE
+=ZB=+—H
Financial liabilities Bkas
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 73,605 - 73,605
Redeemable and exchangeable & &[] K A] #2468 5 A%
preferred share 157,744 - 157,744
Trade and other payables 5 N E M IR = 3,279,847 3,279,847
Interest—bearing borrowings sHEER - 443,555 443,555
Repurchase agreements Elfi ok - 350,185 350,185
Amount due to an associate FEf—MEE & R RIRIR = 25,000 25,000
Finance lease liabilities mEHEEE - 636 636
Long-term liabilities KHaE - 424 424
Contingent consideration payable — fEf{tsi AR (B 8,761 - 8,761
Total et 240,110 4,099,647 4,339,757
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

At 31 December 2017 R-B—+tF

Loans and
receivables

Bk
PR FKIA
HK$'000
TAET

48. MBEBREEBERBE®)

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss
EAYE
FFAER
LB EAE
HK$'000
FATT

Available-for-
sale financial
assets

AT E
MBAE
HK$'000
THET

s
HK$'000
TAT

+=-A=+—H
Financial assets BMREE
Available—for-sale HEEVBEE
financial assets - - 689,115 689,115
Financial assets at fair value & A F{EZT AEZE
through profit or loss ZHBERE - 364,272 - 364,272
Loan receivables P E K 1,490,968 - - 1,490,968
Trade and other receivables & 5 Kz E fth & Uy 2B 1,040,708 - - 1,040,708
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 58,364 - - 58,364
Bank balances and cash RITEHR A S 1,759,412 - - 1,759,412
Total st 4,349,452 364,272 689,115 5,402,839
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BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

48. MBEMEEBERBE#)

Financial
liabilities at
fair value liabilities at
through profit amortised
or loss cost
bivg £ DN
FTER
MEBRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT

Financial

BATE
A
2R
HK$'000
FHT

At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F
+=ZB=+—H

Financial liabilities BH%as

Trade and other payables B 5 RHMERFRIE - 555,962 555,962
Interest—bearing borrowings sHEER - 320,016 320,016
Amount due to an associate FEf — B & R RIRUIR - 20,000 20,000
Finance lease liabilities MEREAE - 1,194 1,194
Long-term liabilities RHEIBE - 278 278
Contingent consideration payable  FEfT s AR(E 129,899 - 129,899
Total st 129,899 897,450 1,027,349

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not have any
written risk management policies and guidelines except for
monitoring the credit risk on loan receivables and trade and
other receivables. However, the management generally adopts
conservative strategies on its risk management and limits the
Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum. The
management reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 48. BIEKREERBERBEEK (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s loan receivables, interest-
bearing borrowings, reverse repurchase agreements and
repurchase agreements. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points) higher or lower while
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s net profit
for the year would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$17,271,000 (2017: net profit for the year would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$9,916,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for all financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease represents management’'s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the end of the next annual reporting period. The analysis
was performed on the same basis for 2017.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk
because the exposure at the end of each reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

A 2= EL kR
AEBRMEZH AL TIZRABEE
HAEBEREKET FEEFR  RAOE
L EEREER - NEEYEERT
EERT AL EER

MRERALER - M F LA LT 100
BES (=T —tF - 100EE2) A
FIEESHFTE  KEE 2 FEFK T
538 h sk R A #917,271,0008 0 (—ZE—+t
F o FEFE A sk R 2 £99,916,000
I °

FRAGRE DT ZEETIBRRNEEFHRN
ERPEERBELE  WEBZEHERAR
FZRATFEZEeRm T A 2 FEER -
KB hnEOR 2 100 B EFH (—F —+F : 100
EER) FEEEFENEREE T —FE
ERMEE AR AETRENES - —
T F 2N TR EAEETT -

AEBEEERS HARNERMEEAZ
BRI NRRAFE BB - MERED
WARKE B F KR -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 48. B EMEREBERBK (#)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, PRC, Liechtenstein
and Australia with majority of business transactions being
denominated in HK$, US$, RMB, EURO, CHF and AUS.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities and therefore, exposed to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of those financial
assets and liabilities are analysed as follows:

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group's net profit before taxation (2017: net profit before
taxation) and equity in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

SNEE LB
AEETERER HE JIXHLER
BMNEERTBDEBR S ZEXHHMN
BT R AR% BT AR
BITEHE

AEBETHHREERMBREDIAETSE
BERINEEE N ERGHE  EfE
BROMNERRR - ZEMBEENRBBEZER
BENFIT

BREDH
THRIIR S BMEH A AEARR 2 E
SRR ADEHE - AEERBADT
HR (ST — £ REAUREF) Big
2B -

2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—+F

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on profit

(decrease) in  profit before (decrease) in before

foreign taxation and foreign taxation and

exchange retained exchange  accumulated

rates profits rates losses

HBRB AT HRMAT

BE =48, A R AR bE =480, A & RET

O 2) A2 FE OR2) BETE

HK$°000 HK$'000

TET FATT

RMB AR 5 40,711 5 37,622
(5) (40,711) (5) (37,622)

EURO BT 5 58,482 - -
(5) (58,482) - -

AUS BT 5 9,996 5 268
(5) (9.996) (5) (268)
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 48. BIEKREERBERBEEK (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continuead)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to each of the
Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at the date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’'s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the end of the next reporting period. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. Results of the analysis
as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the group entities’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at
the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency
risk because the exposure at the end of each reporting period
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed equity securities. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted market prices
of the equity securities had been 10% (2017: 10%) higher or
lower while all other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit before taxation would increase or decrease by
approximately HK$41,807,000 (2017: HK$36,427,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of investments.

SN LB (4%)

BRESH(E)
BRENTIIRREXSZHNERMEE
FELHEL  YVOREARAKRESER
BRZBGFENSR T AMEENEER
B FTEEMEE (CHERNE)RIGIE -

LS SEREHEIREE T —EF
EHE R \FHFAR AR A] se BB ARTA
BRUME  EMRETEERTEMER
B fr] 58 Bh T~ & 39 78 I B 36 TT A 6 B
EEBATE - LRABOMERERE
FIBMMRAS EIEEERFTENREE
ERBRBENRERIRERMEEAR
TTEXZMABTNGEANETE - N
T F 2N TR EAEETT -

AEEEEERR ARERYEEAZ
RN RERAFE 2 R - SERE D
HARKREBINE R -

BAE R
AEEZBRABEERDREEE TR
RES - GUBRED N THER AL ZBRA
EREREE -

RERBMEER  MRAEH 2TIHRE
EAETHEI0%(ZF—CF : 10%) 1=
S ERETE  NEBZBRBAE
s ERE 2 X FEE B8 ko 24
41,807,000 7T ( — & — + 4 : 36,427,000
BIT) °
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 48. BIEKREERBERBEEK (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
reasonably possible changes in the stock prices had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the investments of the Group
would change in accordance with the market price and that all
other variables remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
the relevant market price over the period until the end of the
next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.

In the opinion of the Group’s management, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk
because the exposure at the end of each reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash, fixed and pledged bank deposits. The carrying amounts
of these balances substantially represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period.

Credit quality analysis for provision of financing
services

The Group regards a loan receivable as impaired if there is
objective evidence that a loss event has occurred since initial
recognition and the loss event has an impact on future
estimated cash flows from the asset.

A loan receivable that has been renegotiated due to a
deterioration in the borrower’s credit/financial condition is
usually considered to be impaired unless there is evidence that
the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.
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BHET
48.

A== 2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality analysis for provision of financing
services (Continued)

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
The Group provides financing services only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all
these borrowers are subject to credit verification procedures.

Loan receivables that are past due but not impaired are those
for which principal payments are past due but the Group
believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the
level of security or collateral available and/or the stage of
collection owed to the Group, if any.

Credit quality for business other than provision of
financing services

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures.

The Group performs credit evaluations on accounts receivable
from all clients, including cash and margin clients. Accounts
receivable from cash client are due within the settlement date
commonly adopted by the relevant market convention, which
is usually a few days from trade date. Because of the short
settlement period involved, credit risk arising from accounts
receivable due from cash clients is considered as low. The
Group normally obtains liquid securities as collaterals from
margin clients of its financial brokerage business.

The Group normally enters into transactions with brokers and
clearing houses which are registered with regulatory bodies
and with sound reputation in the industry.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited in
financial institutions, which are leading and reputable and are
assessed as having low credit risk. The Group has not suffered
any significant losses arising from the non-performance by
these parties in the past and management does not expect this
position to change in the future.

48.

MRS EE B FERBER (@)
EERE#)
RUBMEBRBNEEERDT (E)

Eﬁﬁa;mf%ﬁﬁ WA EREE

RIRE - ALEEAERUTBEEERY
Z%EE%M@@%% NEEZHEKR
FMEZSERALERREAKER
r%‘c

EEHERBREZERRERISAEE R
5 EASEERRERERIER SR L
AEBEWHKER(ER) RBEHRELT

2 -

RERMERBLUINEBEFEER

ANEEEEE
IR 5 - BBAKBE ZBER
EHETRSNEF  MALRE
BERF e

RAUAGERFZE=TTE
A BRI
BEEZ

AEBEREUMBEES (BEAZRAIRE
}E)E’JEETALH SEAE - BEREEFZ
RIPEETSEN EERAZEER
JE;W—M% 25 BIERBRA - MRS
MEEHE SRR RXPERRELELZ
FEERBREN AEE—REAEPHL
KEBNAREPMBRDESELER

[ ]
AR °

AREE—fRED WE*A%%%DEH%IEA%W
FERMBEZELENREETETR

REBBEFRIBERAEL - MB RET
HEERBREZCRIELE  WATEREZE
BERBRBR AEEBTTEAZZTAL
TRAOAHMEZEMNEREBL  MERE
[EFEEHRRZM AT &
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BHET
48.

wASESR == IR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each client, customer and
borrower. The default risk of the industry in which clients,
customers and borrowers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as 55%
(2017: 72%) and 54% (2017 47%) of the total loan receivables
and trade and accounts receivable respectively, which were
due from the Group's five (2017: five) largest borrowers and
five (2017: five) largest customers.

The Group does not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group to material credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the
consolidated financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represented the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk without taken into account the value of any collateral
obtained.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility principally through bank and
other borrowings. The Group closely monitors its exposure to
liquidity risk by reviewing the cash position report on a daily
basis and analysing the efficiency of fund management.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had margin
facilities of HK$48,200,000 (2017: HK$300,000) from certain
financial institutions and brokers to maintain funding flexibility
and meet liquidity needs and none (2017: Nil) of the facilities
were utilised at the end of the reporting period.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 48. B EREEEERBEK#®)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRR %)

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial AEERERPAFBRANRNBEMNR
liabilities at the end of the reporting period, based on FIEETAENBEEZHEBER c AEHE
contractual undiscounted payments. The Group's financial RERMEERERBTANIBAEFTE 2
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the FadEiaT

remaining contractual maturities, are summarised below:

Total
On demand contractual Total
or less than 3-12 1-5 Over undiscounted carrying
3 months months years 5 years cash flow value

BERS CLES g
SR3MBR 3E128A 1255 SENE  RERAE AREE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL B BT TAT TAL

At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE

TZA=1+-H
Trade and other payables B3R EMENTIE 3,279,473 381 - - 3279854 3,279,854
Interest-bearing borrowings 5t S &3 292,676 139,976 22,000 - 454,652 443,555
Repurchase agreements B RS 350,185 - - - 350,185 350,185
Amount due to an associate  JEff—F i E A AIFE 25,156 - - - 25,156 25,000
Contingent consiceration R SkARE
payable - 8,761 - - 8,761 8,761
3,947,490 149,118 22,000 - 4,118,608 4,107,355
At 31December 2017  R=B-+#
tZR=1-A
Trade and other payables 23 R EMENIE 555,178 784 - - 555,962 555,962
Interest-bearing borrowings  #t S &3 31,684 275,186 23,000 - 329,870 320,016
Amount dug to an associate R —F LA FIZUE 20,125 - - - 20,125 20,000
Contingent consideration R SARE
payable - 112,272 17,627 - 129,899 129,899
606,987 388,242 40,627 - 1,035,856 1,025,877
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE
49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

49. AV EHE

The following presents the assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in
these financial statements on a recurring basis at 31 December
2018 across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value
measurement categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The
levels of inputs are defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Management believes that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation techniques are reasonable, and that they
were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are

INTARFEFERFTEEERZEMH
BEAARBERATFEZEERABAR -F
—NF+Z A=+ HREEVBRELE
AEBRAFEFEMAEZ A FE=E
EMEY > HAFEAESEKESRE
ABBUEAEREATEFERIE -
PSR E 2 MAFRIAT

o F1R(RSER  AFRERNFGEA
ARGHERAEEXRETLETSZ
WECREHE)

o F24: RERRFNVRZERESN
HNEERBBEZBABIRD AR
KEFEBEMAST &

o  FEIR(REZFR)  HREEXEE
ZBANBURTI AR o

BEEERRAMERMEENMGEF A FE
DEEE  IRBEMRZHXEEEE-
TEREHFHEEZEVBEERMBKA
BEAFEZEMLERMERZHBENE
NEABIE)

determined (in particular, the valuation techniques(s) and
inputs used):

Valuation
Fair values as at Fair value technique(s) or
Financial assets and financial liabilities 31 December 2018 hierarchy significant input(s)
R=ZB-NE+=A=+-H BRI
BBEERMBEE ZAFE AVLEER EERAYE
Unlisted equity securities classified as HK$633,244,000 Level 2 Market Approach —
financial assets at FVOCI (2017: available-for-sale (2017: HK$630,525,000) Guideline Public
financial assets) (Notes 22 and 25) Company Method
SERRATEFARMZERANGTEEES 633,244,000 % 7T 28 TiEE — 185 R R
FIEMRAZER (5 IRHENBEE) (ZZ—+% 1 630,525,000 T) AEE
(Hfzt22 R 25)
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B TS HR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BEZT-A\F+t=RA=+—

HILSFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 49.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

MBEERMBEE

Equity securities listed in and outside Hong Kong
held for trading classified as financial assets at
FVTPL (2017 held for trading financial

assets at FVTPL)

PRARATEFARSNH BEENFEERLR

BARAI LR AES

(ZF—1F: 51F

EEMRATEHARSENIBEE)

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong not held for
trading classified as financial assets at FVTPL
(2017 not held for trading financial assets

at FVTPL)
PRARRHERARS

BT AEBL I

RIFEENNER LTOBRAES
(ZF—F : UHHERENEATE

StARBENMBEE)

Unlisted equity securities not held for
trading classified as financial assets at FVTPL

(2017: Nil)
DERERFE AR

M EMRAES(ZF

SETHEERYFHERER
—t5F: #)

Ul]ﬂ

Forward exchange contracts classified as
financial assets (2017:Nil) and
financial liabilities (2017:Nil) at FVTPL

PRARRHERARS
rUBaE(=

IETBAE(CT—tF  E)

TLF B WERIIMNESH

Fair values as at

31 December 2018
R-E-NE+=A=+-A
ZAYE

HK$226,166,000
(2017: HK$164,930,000)

(Note 22)

226,166,000 % 7T

(ZZ—+4 1 164,930,000 7T)

(Hrix22)

HK$191,906,000
(2017: HK$199,342,000)
(Note 24)

191,906,000 % 7T
(ZF—tF:
199,342,000 7T ) (HfiE24)

HK$173,003,000
(2017: Nil) (Note 24)

173,003,000 7T
(Z2—+F : T)(Hit24)

Assets: HK$44,734,000
(2017: Nil)

Liabilities: HK$45,219,000
(2017: Nil) (Note 34)

B 44,734,000 T
(Z2—t5: %)

815 : 45219,000% 7T
(ZF—5F: F) (Wit

Fair value
hierarchy

DFEER

Level 1

F1R

Level 1

Level 2

2

Level 2

Valuation
technique(s) or

significant input(s)
EERMR
ETHALE

Quoted bid prices

iz EAE

Quoted bid prices

Pz EAE

Market Approach —
Guideline Public
Company Method

miEE — K3l AR
NGV

Forward exchange rate

EHEX
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AR5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-N\F+_A=1T—HILFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 49.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

MBEERMBAER

Option contracts classified as financial assets
(2017:Nil) and financial liabilities (2017:Nil)
at FVTPL

PRREATE ;Jr)\T%i?T’lE’JW%;éF
(ZZ2—t5  B)RUBRECC
HEEA )

Index option contracts classified as financial
liabilities at FVTPL (2017:Nil)

AEBRATET AER
(Z2—t%:8)

Redeemable and exchangeable preferred share
classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL
(2017: Ni

AEBRATET AER

AEREER(ZF—tF  §)

Contingent consideration payable classified with

financial liabilities at FVTPL (2017 financial
liabilities at FVTPL)
ABRAEAFEAER
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T—+%F:#)

SHETHRRNERSES

S RGN EDR

SR RMENRARE
(ZF—F : BAVEFABROMBERE)

Fair values as at

31 December 2018
R-Z-N\&+-A=t+-H
ZAYE

Assets: HK$30,662,000
(2017: Nil) (Note 34)
Liabilities: HK$28,386,000
(2017: Nil) (Note 34)
BE © 30,662,00087T
(Z2—t5F : F)(WiE )
B1E 1 28,386,000 7T
(ZE—+F ) (W)

HK$469,000 (2017: Nil
(Note 34)
469,000/ 7T
(ZF—tF ) (W)

HK$157,744,000
(2017: Nil) (Note 37)

157,744,000 %7
(ZF—tF: F)(HE37)

HK$8,761,000
(2017: HK$129,899,000)
(Note 33)

8,761,000/ 7T

AT @R

(%)

Fair value
hierarchy

DAVEER

Level 3

F3

Level 1

F1H

Level 3

F3®

Level 3

F3®

(ZZ—+% : 129,899,000/ 1)

(K 33)

Valuation
technique(s) or
significant input(s)
RERS
EEL DN ¢

Black-Scholes options
pricing model

A% — SR
EERLN

Hang Seng Index

(EEEES

Binomial option

pricing model

“RA BT ERA

Forecasted net profit

Bl



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TS HR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

49.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

As at 31 December 2018
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL

RZE-NE+ZA=1+-H

BOVEAARENUBEE

Quoted
bid price
in active
markets

Level 1

EERTS
iz EAE
F18
HK$'000
TET

DV ETEE)

AFEER
TRINAARSMT AN AT ENES
®

Fair value measurement using
FRAATETE

Significant
ohservable
inputs

Significant

unohservable

inputs

Level 3

EARTHR

BAYE
3R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

Level 2
EATHE
BAYE
F28
HK$'000
TET

Equity securities listed in B LMRAES

Hong Kong — held for —FEEE

trading 221,677 - - 221,677
Equity securities listed B ETRAE S

overseas — held for —FEEE

trading 4,489 - - 4,489
Equity securities listed in BB LTRAES

Hong Kong — not —WIHRHEER

held for trading 191,906 - - 191,906
Unlisted equity securities I EMBRARES

— not held for trading —VIBEEE - 173,003 - 173,003
Forward exchange contracts REONEA D = 44,734 - 44,734
Option contracts HEAH - - 30,662 30,662

Financial assets at FVOCI BOFESARLMR2EBA
e ERE
Unlisted equity securities FELRAES - 633,244 - 633,244
Liahilities 8F
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AP EGABRNHEEE

Forward exchange contracts BAMNES L = (44,750) = (44,750)
Option contracts HEAD - = (28,386) (28,386)
Index option contracts SHHEAD (469) = - (469)
Redeemable and AERRTERELR

exchangeable

preferred share - - (157,744) (157,744)
Contingent consideration R ARE

payable - - (8,761) (8,761)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 49. AV EFTE#E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERE)

Fair value measurement using
FIAATEE

Quoted
bid price in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BB BATBR SATTHE
iz EAB BAHR B
B EWE E3® it
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT THT BT THT

As at 31 December 2017 RN-B—-t&+=-A=1+—-A
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEGABREN
BRERE
Equity securities listed in BB LTRAES
Hong Kong — held for trading —R{EEE 162,291 - - 162,291
Equity securities listed BN ETRAES
overseas — held for trading —HEEE 2,639 - - 2,639
Equity securities listed in B LTRAES
Hong Kong — not held —HBEEER
for trading 199,342 - - 199,342
Available-for-sale FEHERBEE
financial assets
Unlisted equity securities FEEMRAES - 630,525 - 630,525
Liabilities af
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATESABRNGTH
8%
Contingent consideration JERSARE
payable - - (129,899) (129,899)
There were neither transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair REERS R 1 REFE2RAFERT
value measurements nor transfers into and out of Level 3 fair ECEREER  TESEARELEIRAN
value measurement during both reporting periods. FEFE -
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B TS HR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Fair value measurement of option contracts
The fair value of option contracts is a Level 3 recurring fair
value measurement calculated based on Black-Scholes options
pricing model. The valuation requires making estimates on the
volatility rate and risk free interest rate. Below is a summary of
significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of option
contracts together with a quantitative analysis as at 31
December 2018:

49. DXVEE#E)
SN D TEE
Hga A HERER IR — SRR
BREEERAFENEIRLEUERAFE
B - MEAHRP R ERRNEET
HE - LATARZZE—NF+ZA=+—
BHMgANHENERTBRBARE
HEERTEENN

Sensitivity of
fair value to the input

Range/
Amount

#E S8

WABBZATESRM

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique input
BEATUEE
fh{E R BB
Option contracts classified Black-Scholes Volatility rate
as financial assets and options pricing
financial liabilities at FVTPL model
DEREATEFAERN  MAhR RS
MBEENRMBAEN — ETEAHTRE
S H e ER
Risk free

interest rate

ER R

10% increase/decrease in
the volatility rate would
result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
approximately
HK$2,529,000/
HK$2,540,000 (assets)
and HK$3,047,000/
HK$3,061,000
(liabilities) (2017: Nil)
SRBNRIE AN, 10% 15 E 5
NEEEM
2,529,0005% 7T,/2,540,000
7t (&) & 3,047,000
#7T,/3,061,0008L(BE)
(ZT—+F: F)

33.79% (assets)
and 36.83%
(liabilities)
(2017: Nil)

33.79% (BE) &
36.83% (A {&)
(ZZ—+F: &)

10% increase/decrease in
the risk free interest rate
would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
approximately
HK$534,000/

HK$541,000 (assets) and
HK$279,000/HK$278,000
(liabilities) (2017: Nil)

SRR FI RGN, B 10% 5
BHAFERD/EMG
534,000 7% 7t,/541,000 7% 7T
(BEE) K 2790007 7T,/ 278000

BrT(BR)(Z2—+5F:

%)
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35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 49. AV EFTE#E)
Fair value measurement of option contracts HESHANATEFE @)
(Continued)
A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balances HES MBI RBARA T ELESEERY]
of option contracts is provided as below: RAATR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Option contracts — assets HEEHN —BE
Opening balance BRI #E A
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (B3I EMERFE) = -
Addition during the year (Note 34) FRRNE (K15E34) 30,662 -
At the end of the reporting period  R#R&EHIK 30,662 -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Option contracts — liabilities HEEH —afE
Opening balance BRI AE e
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (B3R E MR FE) = -
Addition during the year (Note 34) FRARNE (H7E34) (28,386) -
At the end of the reporting period  R#IEHIR (28,386) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 49. DXVEE#E)

Fair value measurement of redeemable and
exchangeable preferred share

The fair value of redeemable and exchangeable preferred
share is a Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. As
disclosed in Note 37, the Investor of the preference shares will
have the right to exchange these shares for the shares of
Mason Healthcare's group entities upon the occurrence of the
consummation of initial public offerings of any of these group
entities, and sales or disposal of interest in these group entities
(the “Conditions”). The valuation of preference share requires
making estimation on the fair value of these group entities by
Binomial option pricing model, with significant unobservable
inputs including probability assumptions for conditions
fulfilment.

If the probability assumptions for Conditions fulfilment are 10%
higher/lower while all other variables we held constant, the
carrying amount of redeemable and exchangeable preferred
share would increase/decrease by HK$1,272,000/
HK$1,319,000.

A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balances
of redeemable and exchangeable preferred share is provided
as below:

Redeemable and exchangeable
preferred share

Opening balance
(Level 3 recurring fair value)

IR E R AR E R

AR E R AR E TR A P ERT
g

AEE R A EREERNAFERFEIR
REMRNTEFE - A7 PrIEE
REREKREEEIASEERE 2 HRRH
BENRHEESIHERNZEEBERNE
mig - BEBRNKREEBEENLZSFRN
K\ZEREBEROBRND ([EED - 8%
B EAB B _RREEEERERTA
BRH AR (BEEKRFTNBRER
HREEEEBNQFEETEHE -

1538 B e D BEIR B R T L B AR
5 7R 80 08 TH, R 10% + AU AT
1 e T 8 5 B 0 B L 0469 0, >
1,272,000 7T,1,319,000 % 7T ©

B A A B S R R HI R R A T
EEBEEIIRMT

2018
BN\

2017
—EFE—tF
HK$'000
FHT

HK$'000
THET

B (EIREFERTE)

Addition during the year (Note 37) FRRNE (K5137) 156,000 -
Net change in unrealised valuation loss MBS HERH R B HERBE

recognised in profit or loss BE)FEE 1,744 -
At the end of the reporting period REREEIR 157,744 -
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BHET
49.

wASESR == IR

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Fair value measurement of contingent
consideration payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable is a Level 3
recurring fair value measurement.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the management of the
Company was of the opinion that AYD Group can achieve the
profit target by reference to the forecasted net profit
attributable to the equity holders of AYD Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018.

On 30 June 2018, the Group entered into a supplementary
investment agreement to revise the calculation of contingent
consideration payable for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The Group shall pay RMB 5,000,000 to Cosmicfield (equivalent
HK$5,761,000) if AYD Group's 2018 net profit is more than
RMB120,000,000 (equivalent HK$138,264,000), alternatively, if
2018 net profit is less than RMB120,000,000, Cosmicfield
should pay RMB 5,000,000 to the Group.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable is
determined by management of the Company with reference to
the valuation performed by an independent profession valuer,
by reference to the forecasted net profit attributable to the
equity holders of AYD Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2018.

The forecasted net profit attributable to the equity holders of

AYD Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018
has involved significant unobservable input as following:

Forecasted net profit for the year ended

31 December 2017 HK$139,000,000
Forecasted net profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 HK$145,500,000

The management of the Group was of the opinion that AYD
Group can achieve the profit target by reference to the
forecasted net profit attributable to the equity holders of AYD
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018.
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49.

AR EFTEE)
ERASAREN D FEFE

B SRR BN ATFEREIREHED
FEIE -

ﬁé:f—t¢+*ﬂi+—5¢¢§’
RARERERE  K2EBE-_T—+
FRZT— A¢+ B=+—BHLFEE
BEEEETEE ARGENLT =88
EEEERAFNBEZE -
RZZ—NFEXA=1+H ANEEFTLH
FEEWFE BT EZE - N\F+=
A=+—BLEFEEMIARENTE -
HEREBEE-T— \FH4MNERNARE
120,000,000 7T (#8557 138,264,000 7T ) *
Al K £ [# 78 W Cosmicfield Xz fF A R ¥
5,000,000 7T ( #8 5 745,761,000 7T ) + 5
N WM ZFE-NFHAFERNARE
120,000,000 7T, * Bl Cosmicfield 78 4] 7 &
X+ AR # 5,000,000 7T °

ENSIAREORATLEIBARAGEEE
KBEB U EEGBEMAMEHERZEEH
EIEAERZT-NFTA=1+—
BIEFEEEEREERTE ARGTRA
MFEE -

He_Z—+t&Fk=-_Z—N\F+=A
—+—HIFEREESRESREAR
TRTERIAE I F K T 51 8 K71 Al B SR o) A
% -

BE-T—tHFt-A=t-H

IEEERRLER 139,000,000 7

BE-T-)\FtZR=1—H

EEERAmA 145,500,000 7T

AEEEEERA  KE8EBE-_T—+
FRZE-NF+-B=+— E¢¢r§§
LEEEESEAABETEANLH B8

EEENERBNER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

49. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 49.

Fair value measurement of contingent
consideration payable (continued)

A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balances
of contingent consideration payable (Level 3) is provided as
below:

DV ETEE)

BAHAREN D P EFTEE)

R S ARER R IR D FEEH (B
M) BIRFIREAT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Contingent consideration payable  ERRHANKE

FiB FHET

Opening balance BRW) 4564

(Level 3 recurring fair value) (BIZIEEERTAE) 129,899 -
Addition during the year (Note 33(b)) FRRNE (M52 330b)) 3,000 -
Settlement during the year (Note 19(b)) S N&E (K12 19(b)) (112,272) -
Remeasurement during the year FRNEFE = (K777 33@)

(Note 33(a)) (11,866) 129,899
At the end of the reporting period  RIREHK 8,761 129,899

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group's loan receivables, trade and
other receivables, fixed and pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and amount due
to an associate that are carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair value as at the end of
reporting period.

FELAFEIRZMBEERAE
ZDVE

N B R SRS AR 2 BB E 5
R A RERHOR « R EERRITEN -
RITEBRERS  E 5 REMEN R
RERBEARREAZRABREIN2H
HEHEAZATPEIEEAEER -
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35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

50. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 50. EXERE

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment
of dividends to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debts, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders (comprising
issued share capital and reserves). No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, which are engaged in the
brokerage of securities and commodities and related services,
are entities regulated by the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and subject to the respective minimum capital requirements.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure to be
maintained, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of these subsidiaries. The minimum capital
requirements for these subsidiaries were complied with during
the year.
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BREENIRABRRRMOER - AEEE
BRABREEAZEE  PEARIIRS -
MR R R B AR AN S BT R AR S B E EE A
WMAEE c AEEHNEAEEEELF
B R RREFEYRREESRE
(BEEBETRARER) BE=-Z—N
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EHABE  BURRBFHMELS -

AEBEETHEBAR (REERFLAREL
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

51. COMMITMENTS 51. &iE
Capital expenditure commitments BRI AE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following REFRPEERD  AEBAEFUTERH
capital expenditure commitments: TOERYE

2017

HK$'000
TAT

Contracted but not provided for, netof B ET4ME KRB - IR D NIESE

deposit paid
— Acquisition of property, plant — WEYE - BE KEE

and equipment - 395
— Acquisition of intangible assets, —EEEEE

computer software and systems B NS E S 1,984 3,628
— Subscription of interests in Agate — 288 Agate Fund 2 # 25

Fund (Note 22(c)) (Hta£22(c) - 115,918
— Subscription of interest in HMCB — REEHMCB Fund LP Z k2

Fund LP 23,158 23,486

25,142 143,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

51. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 51.
Commitments under operating lease
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of office equipment and premises, which are
payable as follows:

EEE)

REHEERE
FEEEREBEA

RERPEER  AEERBERMBRIER

BEMEZ A BEHEEHE 2 BT RER
RIEHESEFENAT -

2018 2017
—E-NE —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T FATT
Within one year —F R 74,182 32,685
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_FEERF(BEEEMSF) 105,779 75,823
Over five years HBilmAF 8,658 -
188,619 108,508

The Group as lessor AEEESHAA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of sub-lease of premises are as follows:

REBPEER - REBRTAIHHELE
HERETHWEEIAYENRKKEEE
FEW IR REAA T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EFE—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHERT FAT

Within one year —FR 1,265 1,228
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_FZERF(BEEEMSF) 5,174 2,227
6,439 3,455
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

52. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 52. MK EERMKERE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of financial instruments TRIVEAEE  AIRTZAFHEER
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements BB em T AFE -

and similar agreements.

Financial assets subject to offsetting
T 85 B i B
Gross amount of
recognised
financial  Net amount of Related amounts not offset in
liabilities offset  financial assets  the consolidated statement of financial position
inthe presented in the TERGAERRRER 2 ARLE
Grossamountof  consolidated  consolidated Securities
recognised  statementof  statementof  Cash collateral collateral
financial assets financial position financial position received received Net amount
REEHTE
RRREH REAEE
& ZEER RR&E312
BHEEAR g -t E HBEETE CURSEAYM CURFEAM b
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T BT BT T Thn TAL

At 31 December 2018 RIE-NE

tZA=t-R
Type of financial assets HHEERY
Accounts receivable duefrom  EUHREEEL
margin clients 723,000 (21,348) 701,652 - (247,935) 453,717
Accounts receivable duefrom  EMEBLEES
HKSCC 112,391 (32,891) 79,500 - - 79,500
Reverse repurchase RREEGE
agreements 1,130,371 - 1,130,371 - 1,130,371 -
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE
t2A=1-A
Type of financial assets HHEERY
Accounts receivable due from  EUAEZFEER
margin clients 543,204 (27,486) 520,718 - (#15,903) 104,815
Accounts recelvable due from BB SSEE
HKSCC 166,234 (46,562) 119,672 - - 119672
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

52. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 52. MK EERMEEE D)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting
THEENBEE
Gross amount of  Net amount of
recognised financial Related amounts not offset in
financial assets liabilities  the consolidated statement of financial position

Grossamountof  offsetinthe presented in the TERGRIBRRREH 2 EHLE
recognised  consolidated  consolidated Securities

financial ~ statementof  statementof  Cash collateral collateral
liabilities financial position financial position received received Net amount
REEHTE
RREHEH AR
55 ZBRR RRARE5Z
BBaRAE BREESE HBEETE CURSEAYN CURFEAM ik
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T BT B BT Thr TAL

At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE
tZA=t-H

Tyne of financial iabiities B8 AR
Accounts payable due ERAERPER

to margin clients 28,362 (21,348) 7,014 - - 7014
Accounts payable due EREEEEEN

toHKSCC 32,891 (32,891) - - - -

Repurchase agreements iR 350,185 - 350,185 (350,185) - -

At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE
tZA=t-8

Tyne of financial iabilties B8 R
Accountspayabledueto  ERAREFER

margin clients 56,247 (27,486) 28761 - - 28761
Accounts payable due EREEEEET
toHKSCC 46,562 (46,562) - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥k B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

53. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has provided
guarantees in favour of banks, financial institutions and
third party individuals, in respect of facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries, amounting to HK$428,213,000 (2017:
HK$204,567,000). Of these facilities, a total of
HK$319,584,000 (2017: HK$180,641,000) has been
utilised.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has provided a
financial guarantee in respect of a loan granted to a third
party individual with the principal amount of
RMB51,000,000 (equivalent to HK$58,071,000) (2017:
RMB51,000,000 (equivalent to HK$57,270,000)) for a loan
guarantee fee income of HK$591,000 (2017:
HK$1,266,000) recognised in profit or loss.

The maximum liability of the Group at the end of the
reporting period under this guarantee of RMB54,681,000
(equivalent to HK$62,263,000) (2017: RMB52,653,000
(equivalent to HK$58,850,000)), representing the
outstanding amount of the loan and interest payable to
the third party as at the end of the reporting period. At
the end of the reporting period, the management does
not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under this guarantee and the loan was
repaid in February 2019.

54. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
The Group had the following event after the end of the
reporting period:

Disposal of Blend & Pack

On 8 February 2019, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement with a third party (the “"Buyer”), pursuant to which
the Group agreed to sell 66,746 ordinary shares of Blend &
Pack (representing 46% of issued capital of Blend & Pack) to
the Buyer, at an aggregate consideration of AU$47,791,000
(equivalent to HK$271,455,000).

53. IRAE

a)

RZEBE—-N\FE+ZA=+—0 " £2
BIELARRAT - BB RE=FEA
A ARETETHEAT 2/E
428,213,000 t( = & — + F:
204,567,000 7T ) IR LR - TEZ S
Bh& R BB A A $£319,584,000%8
T(ZZ—+4F : 180,641,000/87T) °

R-ZBE—NE+-_A=+—H &%
EERBETEZFAALSEAAR
# 51,000,000 7T (18 & P4 58,071,000 %5
) (ZF—+%F : AR 51,000,000
JC (& 757,270,000 L)) 2 B &
ME=FIREMEER  BERERE
I A A591,0008 T( =& — 5 -
1,266,00078 7T) R IE T FERR ©

RERPLEER AEBREZ
EREO &S B EARM54,681,0007T
(FBE M 62,263 00078 7L) (=T —+4F -
AR 52,653,000 7T (4878 74 58,850,000
B ERERBEEAENE=
FERZAREESBRAE - REWR
HEER  ERERATANERE
HRERAAEBREBEZRZERD
REZZ—NF_RAEE-

54. REMBRER
AEBR RS HRE T EL T ER

H & Blend & Pack

i

T-NF-ANB AEEBEE=]

TEF DI —mBROEERS - Bt AS%
[E & 7 B 77 $5 5 Blend & Pack 66,746 1% %
1% (#5Blend & Pack B 241TAE AN 46%) » #AH(E
7347,791,000)2 7T (AEE 7271,455,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 SR B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

54.

55.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)
Disposal of Blend & Pack (continued)

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement, completion is
conditional upon the fulfilment of the terms and conditions on
or before 15 April 2019. As part of the terms and conditions,
the Group has also entered into a put and call option deed
relating to a further disposal of the remaining 29% of the issued
capital (“Option Shares”) of Blend & Pack. The Group will cease
to have any interest in Blend & Pack upon the completion of
the disposal of all Option Shares.

At the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, the condition have not been fulfilled and the
disposal of 46% interest in Blend & Pack has not been
completed.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF

DIRECTORS

(a) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors
There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors of the Company that were entered
into or subsisted during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
After consideration, the management is of the opinion
that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

(b)
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54.

55.

REHBREERE)

i £ Blend & Pack (#)
BERBRNDEEHZE  THREEAEF_-Z
—NEFEWE A+ H B3z BTER KRGS
% AAEE - ERERRGEH—E5 -
N & [H JRE] 37 B — 25 B & Blend & Pack
BT ANER T 29% ([HAER % 1) BEM
Roh MR HIE R - REEBE R TR L
EMAERNDETBEAEABlend &
Pack Rz °

RZSHREMERREMEBR - ZIGMH
i AREER B IR FEAK T & R Blend & Pack
B 46% 1z o

FREENENESR

(@) UESAZHAZER %£E
RRHEMR 5
BE-T—)\FR-F—tF+_A
S+ —BLLFE BRI ERE
AARTEERZ M ANER  EH
REHMRS -

EERRS ZHRESHONE
RfEs

BEEERERRR  AFRIBE—
E-N\ER_F—EF+_A=1—
BIEFEEMRRE - ARAREEHE
FEREEEI A REEEBH
EAEBRARS RHFERAHZEER
B EAER -

(b)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-NF+_HA=+—HILFE

56. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 56. AR BFHMREK

COMPANY

2017
—EF—tF
HK$'000
FHIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR 2 5,287,123 5,102,344
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ERKEE = 579,600
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEASAE Mm@
other comprehensive income MBS EE 633,244 -
5,920,367 5,681,944
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b pE IR 9,154 12,940
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 607,429 256,725
616,583 269,665
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H bS58 (4,991) (8,768)
(4,991) (8,768)
Net current assets BREBEE 611,592 260,897
Total assets less current liabilities ®BEERGHARG 6,531,959 5,924,841
Non-current liabilities EFRBERS
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEER (20,000) (20,000)
NET ASSETS FEE 6,511,959 5,922,841
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital [ 6,142,961 6,142,961
Reserves (Note) i (Ha) 368,997 (220,120)
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 6,511,959 5,922,841

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26 March 2019 and signed on its behalf by

MEEFER _T-NAF=ZA-FTXAH#E
REETIE T TIRRER

Ko Po Ming Lui Choi Yiu, Angela
=SEH EE G
Director Director
EFE EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-—/\F+_A=1+—HLFE

56. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 56. XRBFHMRREKE)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: pree
Movements of reserves of the Company G-

FVOCI

Accumulated

reserve (losses)/profit

AT E A
LTES PN

2R
HK$'000
FHET

Rt (B18),
A

HK$'000
TR

Total
reserves

R
HK$'000
FHT

At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—tF—H—AH - (243,536) (243,536)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 )% Al| 2 2 E W A 48 58
for the year - 23,416 23,416
At 31 December 2017 and RZZT—tF+=ZA=+—AH
at 1 January 2018 r=E-—NF—A—H - (220,120) (220,120)
Initial adoption of HKFRS 9 BIXRME B SRS AR
EL 136,211 (86) 136,125
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—HA—AH
KB 136,211 (220,2006) (83,995)
Profit for the year FEREF - 535,559 535,559
Other comprehensive income for FRHMEERA
the year
Items that will not be reclassified EgBTreEmsEE
subsequently to profit or loss BmzIEE
Change in fair value of Em T EIRA T EAEM
equity instruments at FVOCI ZEBAZ AT EE (82,567) - (82,567)
Total other comprehensive income Hib2EIRALEEE (82,567) - (82,567)
Total comprehensive income for FREHEWALTE
the year (82,567) 535,559 452,992
At 31 December 2018 R=-B-—NE+=B=+—H 53,644 315,353 368,997
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBEMREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the A TAXREERNBERETREE 2 £EREE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited REEHE  HHEEALEZEAMBRRLLE
consolidated financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is E&E# o8 -

set out below.

RESULTS ¥iE
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—2-N\E 3 A —F-RF ZFHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET TRT TRT

Revenue Wz
Continuing operations BECEER 3,506,994 2,900,438 66,501 166,517 567,458
Discontinued operations BRI E TS = - - 193 430
3,506,994 2,900,438 66,501 166,710 567,888
Profit/(loss) before taxation — REiATHFN],/(EE) 207,010 87,401 (792,836) 241,651 744,146
Income tax (expense)/credit  FrEH () /1% (30,998) (60,931) 2,340 (263) (16)
Profit/(loss) for the year  F R,/ (&) 176,012 26,470 (790,496) 241,388 744,130
Non-controlling interests IR b 2 (85,828) (79,630) 318,474 115,760 -
Profit/(loss) for the year ZAATERZEA
attributable to equity EEER (BE)
holders of the Company 90,184 (53,160) (472,022) 357,148 744,130
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

At 31 December
Rt=R=t+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—B-NE —FT—+HF —F-RK —FT-HF —FOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT THET THET THRT THET

Total assets BWRE 11,376,554 7,793,748 5,042,277 4,408,366 2,599,181
Total liabilities FEN=E (4,574,922)  (1,300,905)  (1,489,199) (353,642) (33,579)
Net assets FEE 6,801,632 6,492,843 3,553,078 4,055,224 2,565,602

Equity attributable to equity AR RI#EZEIFE A

holders of the Company eI 6,161,419 6,070,763 3,256,441 3,026,464 2,565,602
Non-controlling interests IR fE 2 640,213 422,080 296,637 1,028,760 -
Total equity B 6,801,632 6,492,843 3,553,078 4,055,224 2,565,602
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